
Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood | Enriching All Lives through Recreation, Parks and Nature 

1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014      815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 
 
 

1 E. CRYSTAL  
 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

Regular Park Board Meeting 

April 18, 2024 | 6:30pm 

Administrative Office 

E X P L O R E |   P L A Y | E X P E R I E N C E                                            1 E. Crystal Lake Avenue, Crystal Lake, IL 

  

 
 

AGENDA -Revised 
 

I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call           

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Approval of Agenda 

V. Matters from the Public                                                                

VI. Unfinished Business 

VII. Staff Introductions                                             

VIII. Consent Agenda 

A.  Approval:   Voucher Expenses  

B.  Approval:  Interim Voucher Expenses 

C.  Accept:   Treasurer’s Report  

D.  Approval:   Regular Meeting Minutes 03.21.24  

E.  Approval:   Committee Meeting of the Whole Minutes 04.04.24 

F.  Approval:   Revisions to Park District Policy 6.0 Bidding Procedure 

G.  Approval:   Knights of Columbus Tootsie Roll Drive Request NFP 

H.  Approval:   Dravel Syndrome Foundation NFP 

IX. Items Removed from Consent Agenda 

X. Presentation:  Speer Financial ARS Bond Presentation 

XI. New Business Action Items  

A. Approval:  Bond Authorization Ordinance 

An Ordinance authorizing the issuance of General Obligation Park Bonds 

(Alternate Revenue Source) of the District, in an aggregate principal amount 

not to exceed $3,500,000 for the payment of land condemned or purchased 

for parks, for the building, maintaining, improving and protecting of the same 

and the existing land and facilities of the District and for the payment of the 

expenses incident thereto. 

B. Approval:  Executive Director Contract 

C. Approval:  Burke Play Equipment Giveaway 

 

XII. Discussion Items           

XIII. Reports to the Board 

XIV. Matters from the Board 

XV. Executive Session 

a) Personnel 2 (c) 1 

b) Board Member Performance2 (c) 3 

c) Land Acquisition / Lease 2 (c) 5 

d) Sale or Lease 2 (c) 6 

e) Litigation 2 (c) 11 



f) Review of Minutes Including Semi-annual Review to Release 2 (c) 21 

XVI. Reconvene  

XVII. Action from Matters from Executive Session  

XVIII. Adjourn              

 

 

Next Park Committee of the Whole Meeting: May 2, 2024 

Annual Board Meeting: May 16, 2024 

Administrative Office 6:30pm 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The public comment portion of the meeting occurs at the time set forth on the meeting agenda. The public 

comment period is intended to provide an opportunity for individuals to comment on matters related to the 

Park District.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes per person during the public comment portion of the 

meeting, unless extended by the Board at its discretion. The total amount of time allocated for public 

comments at a particular meeting is 30 minutes unless determined otherwise by the Presiding Officer.  

 

ADA:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act this and all other meetings of the Crystal Lake 

District are located in facilities that are physically accessible to those who have disabilities. If additional 

reasonable accommodations are needed for persons who qualify under the Act as having a “disability,” 

please contact the Park District during normal business hours at 815-459-0680 at least 48 hours prior to any 

meeting so that such accommodations can be provided.  





























































asandor
Text Box
 Total:                 $881,823.35 Previous Total:  $378,874.20 Revised Total:   $502,949.15



































4/12/2024 4:14:51 PM Page 1 of 1

Treasurers Report
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Summary

Date Range: 05/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

Fund
Beginning

Cash Balance Revenues Expenses
Net Change

Assets
Net Change

Liabilities
Actual

Ending Balance
Calculated -

Actual Ending
Calculated

Ending Balance

01 - CORPORATE 4,587,159.28 5,303,027.784,289,244.60 10,869.83 158,192.33 3,404,313.943,404,313.94 0.00

02 - RECREATION 4,814,740.59 5,070,381.543,362,581.65 -7,552.65 -38,930.41 3,153,423.763,153,423.76 0.00

03 - IMRF 300,614.52 331,081.34273,886.19 0.00 -13,492.66 256,912.03256,912.03 0.00

04 - LIABILITY 149,688.40 120,930.76180,154.39 0.00 55,773.32 153,138.71153,138.71 0.00

05 - BOND & INTEREST 2,442,305.84 2,562,694.81270,825.25 0.00 0.00 150,436.28150,436.28 0.00

06 - AUDIT 25,239.07 20,850.0010,740.45 0.00 250.00 14,879.5214,879.52 0.00

07 - SPECIAL RECREATION 708,863.41 491,699.69392,775.37 0.00 0.00 609,939.09609,939.09 0.00

08 - NATURAL HISTORY 357,746.01 310,363.92200,817.06 245.00 -2,156.04 250,110.19250,110.19 0.00

09 - POLICE 0.00 0.00324.50 0.00 0.00 324.50324.50 0.00

10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS 125.00 52.590.00 0.00 0.00 72.4172.41 0.00

11 - AQUATIC 294,770.79 360,980.53-142,495.54 2,238.00 13,261.53 -224,204.81-224,204.81 0.00

12 - FOOD SERVICE 151,877.93 145,861.53435,513.57 120.00 7,032.30 434,377.67434,377.67 0.00

15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 7,816.52 141,067.82164,948.04 0.00 0.00 31,696.7431,696.74 0.00

16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS 3,402,592.89 2,555,202.135,421,276.43 0.00 157,009.68 6,111,657.516,111,657.51 0.00

17 - PARK PLACE 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

19 - DRIVING RANGE 227,234.56 136,517.06172,469.30 472.00 42,374.73 220,340.07220,340.07 0.00

20 - RACKET CLUB 1,336,780.32 1,330,289.37489,637.35 -2,965.21 -34,380.54 533,474.05533,474.05 0.00

Report Total: 18,807,555.13 18,881,000.8715,522,698.61 3,426.97 344,934.24 15,100,891.6615,100,891.66 0.00



For questions about your accounts: 
Local: 312 704 6146
In-State: 312 704 6140
National: 888 889 1025

STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 1, 2024 TO MARCH 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number: xxx-xx8448  

ENV# CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 
FIFTH THIRD SECURITIES, INC.
MD 1MOB2A
5050 KINGSLEY DRIVE
CINCINNATI, OH 45263

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT
A PARTNERSHIP
1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE
CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014

By the courtesy of: 
PELLEGRINO & S SHAH

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 1 of 14

BEGINNING VALUE OF YOUR PORTFOLIO $4,428,235.69

TOTAL VALUE OF YOUR PORTFOLIO $4,094,086.47

CHANGE IN VALUE OF YOUR PORTFOLIO
$ millions

FOR YOUR INFORMATION
Fifth Third Securities, Inc. Investments offered through Fifth Third Securities, Inc., member
FINRA/SIPC  

2020 2021 2022 2023 CURRENT
0.653

1.593

2.532

3.471

4.410

Change In Value Of Your Portfolio  information can be found in Miscellaneous Footnotes at the end of this
 statement.



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 2 of 14

Account Overview

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 2 of 14

ACCOUNT ALLOCATION

CDs 71.0%

U.S. Treasury / Agency Sec. 24.3%

Money Markets 4.7%

Percent Prior Period Current Period
Money Markets 4.7 % $49,607.87 $191,838.12
CDs 71.0 $3,388,697.82 $2,907,808.35
U.S. Treasury / Agency Sec. 24.3 $989,930.00 $994,440.00

TOTAL 100.0 % $4,428,235.69 $4,094,086.47

Account Allocation  shows the percentage that each asset class represents of your total account value. Account
Allocation for equities, fixed income, and other categories may include mutual funds and may be net of short
positions. NFS has made assumptions concerning how certain mutual funds are allocated. Closed-end mutual funds
and Exchange Traded Products (ETPs) listed on an exchange may be included in the equity allocation. The chart
may not reflect your actual portfolio allocation. Consult your broker/dealer prior to making investment decisions.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNT VALUE Current Period Year-to-Date

BEGINNING VALUE $4,428,235.69 $4,409,913.43
Additions and Withdrawals ($350,000.00) ($350,000.00)
Misc. & Corporate Actions $0.00 $0.00
Income $11,230.25 $28,087.78
Taxes, Fees and Expenses $0.00 $0.00
Change in Value $4,620.53 $6,085.26
ENDING VALUE (AS OF 03/31/24) $4,094,086.47 $4,094,086.47
Refer to Miscellaneous Footnotes for more information on Change in Value.

INCOME
TAXABLE Current Period Year-to-Date

Taxable Dividends $1,185.81 $6,681.85
Taxable Interest $10,044.44 $21,405.93
TOTAL TAXABLE $11,230.25 $28,087.78
TOTAL INCOME $11,230.25 $28,087.78

Taxable income is determined based on information available to NFS at the time the statement was
prepared, and is subject to change. Final information on taxation of interest and dividends is available
on Form 1099-Div, which is mailed in February of the subsequent year.

MESSAGES AND ALERTS 

Customers wishing to learn more about their investment professional can contact the FINRA
BrokerCheck Hotline Number at 1-800-289-9999 or visit the FINRA Regulation website
www.finra.org. Customers can also obtain an investor brochure that includes information
describing the FINRA BrokerCheck program by contacting Brokerage Operations
1-888-889-1025.                

National Financial Services LLC, NFS is required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to
provide certain financial information from its Statement of Financial Condition. At December
31, 2023, NFS had net capital of $9,866 million, which was 25.08 percent of aggregate debit
items and exceeded its minimum requirement by $9,079 million. To acquire the Statement of
Financial Condition, log on to www.mybrokerageinfo.com. If you wish to obtain a copy of this
document at no cost, or have any questions regarding its contents, please call Fidelity at
800-439-5627.



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 3 of 14

Account Overview   continued

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 3 of 14

MESSAGES AND ALERTS continued

Please note that the FDIC insured deposit at Fifth Third Bank under the Fifth Third BD
Program is not covered by SIPC. The FDIC insured deposit is eligible for FDIC insurance subject
to FDIC coverage limits at the time funds are deposited at Fifth Third Bank. As referenced in the
Fifth Third BD Program disclosure document, clients are responsible for monitoring their total
assets at Fifth Third Bank to determine the extent of available FDIC coverage. 

Effective May 28, 2024, the settlement cycle for certain securities will shorten from Trade
Date plus 2 Settlement Days to 1 Settlement Day.  This change will require payment for
trades to be finalized by the next business day, after a trade has been executed.   

Fifth Third Securities reminds you to please promptly report any inaccuracies or discrepancies in
your account to Brokerage Operations by calling 1-888-889-1025. Please reconfirm any oral
communications in writing to your investment professional to further protect your rights under
the Securities Investor Protection Act SIPA. Visit 53.com/FTSdisclosure to find important
disclosures for retail investors, which includes information on the services our firm offers, fees,
costs, and conflicts of interest.



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 4 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Holdings
NFS-provided cost basis, realized gain (loss) and holding period information may not reflect all adjustments necessary for tax purposes.  Please refer to Footnotes and Cost Basis Information at the end of this
statement for more information.

For additional information regarding your holdings, please refer to the footnotes at the end of the statement.

Client Investment -  Reflects the amount from share purchases, transfers and conversions that have customer or third party provided cost basis. The amount does not reflect all account activity, including, but not
limited to shares acquired via certain corporate actions, gifted/inherited, date of death step-up, or dividend reinvestments. The amount may fluctuate over time based on activity within the account due to buying,
transferring or converting additional shares or selling all or part of a security. Transfers or conversions that do not have cost basis will not be reflected in the Client Investment amount. The reflected Client Investment
amount does not represent your cost basis reported on IRS Form 1099-B, as it is a separate calculation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 4.69% of Total Account Value 

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Price on
03/31/24

Current
Market Value

Estimated
Annual Income

Money Markets 

FEDERATED HERMES GOVT OBLIGATIONS IS GOIXX
7 DAY YIELD   5.18% CASH
Dividend Option Cash
Capital Gain Option Cash

191,838.12 $1.00 $191,838.12     

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  $191,838.12 



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 5 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 5 of 14

HOLDINGS > FIXED INCOME - 95.31% of Total Account Value 

ALERT: You have a fixed income position due to mature within the next 90 days.

For an explanation of fixed income pricing, please see the last page. Redemption schedule(s), bond rating(s), and other information are provided where available. If information does not appear regarding a particular
investment, it is not available.

Copyright 2022, S&P Global Market Intelligence.   Reproduction of any information, data or material, including ratings ("Content") in any form is prohibited except with the prior written permission of the relevant
party. Such party, its affiliates and suppliers ("Content Providers") do not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness, timeliness or availability of any Content and are not responsible for any errors or omissions
(negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, or for the results obtained from the use of such Content. In no event shall Content Providers be liable for any damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses
(including lost income or lost profit and opportunity costs) in connection with any use of the Content. A reference to a particular investment or security, a rating or any observation concerning an investment that is part
of the Content is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold such investment or security, does not address the suitability of an investment or security and should not be relied on as investment advice. Credit ratings are
statements of opinions and are not statements of fact.

Moody's© Copyright 2022, Moody's Investors Service, Inc.   ("Moody's"). Moody's ratings ("Ratings") are proprietary to Moody's or its affiliates and are protected by copyright and other intellectual property laws.
Ratings are licensed to Licensee by Moody's. RATINGS MAY NOT BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED
OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT
MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. Moody's® is a registered trademark.

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Estimated
Price on
03/31/24

Estimated
Current

Market Value
Estimated

Annual Income
Original/Adjusted

Cost Basis
Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

CDs 
Certificates of Deposit (CDs), including Market Indexed CDs and Market Linked CDs (collectively, MCDs) are generally shown at estimated market prices based upon a matrix or model pricing method that may not
represent the actual price if sold prior to maturity.  However, CDs and MCDs may be shown at face value for up to seven calendar days from date of issue if estimated market prices have not been received from a third
party pricing vendor.  The actual value of CDs and MCDs may be different from their purchase price.  CDs and MCDs are subject to interest rate risk.  The estimated market price reflected for MCDs may not be based
on the actual closing value of the linked market index on the final maturity date and the market value of MCDs may not correspond directly to increases or decreases in the underlying linked market index.   You may sell
CDs or MCDs in the secondary market subject to market conditions.  The secondary market for CDs and MCDs is generally illiquid.  If sold prior to maturity, the value of MCDs may be less than the purchase amount or
face value. The sale or redemption of any fixed income security prior to maturity may result in a substantial gain or loss, and an early withdrawal penalty may apply.  Certain MCDs may only be redeemed on
pre-specified liquidation dates and may have call features that allow the issuer to call the MCD prior to maturity.  Certain Step Rate CDs are also subject to reinvestment risk if call provisions are exercised by the issuer
and if a CD with a comparable rate is not available.

See sales materials or contact your broker/dealer for additional information.

UMPQUA BK ROSEBURG ORE CD 5.40000% 90421MFL2
03/29/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON MAR 29
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

238,000 $1.00 $238,000.00 $238,000.00     

Client Investment $238,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $238,000.00   D

BANK BARODA NEW YORK BRH CD 5.50000% 06063HRJ4
04/01/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 01
1ST CPN DTE 04/01/2024
Accrued Interest           $6774.04

243,000 $1.00001 $243,002.43 $243,000.00     



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 6 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 6 of 14

HOLDINGS > FIXED INCOME  continued

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Estimated
Price on
03/31/24

Estimated
Current

Market Value
Estimated

Annual Income
Original/Adjusted

Cost Basis
Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

BANK BARODA NEW YORK BRH CD 5.50000% 06063HRJ4 continued
Average Unit Cost             $1.00
Client Investment $243,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $243,000.00   D $2.43

BYLINE BK CHICAGO ILL CD 5.50000% 12441PBB1
04/02/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 02
1ST CPN DTE 04/02/2024
Next Interest Payable:  04/02/24
Accrued Interest           $6664.19
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

243,000 $1.00002 $243,004.86 $243,000.00     

Client Investment $243,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $243,000.00   D $4.86

FORTIS BK DENVER COLO CD 5.05000% 349928AB7
04/12/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 12
1ST CPN DTE 04/12/2024
Next Interest Payable:  04/12/24
Accrued Interest           $2711.78
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

245,000 $0.99989 $244,973.05 $245,000.00     

Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($26.95)

WESTERN ALLIANCE BK PHOENIX CD 5.10000% 95763PRL7
04/16/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 16
1ST CPN DTE 04/16/2024
Next Interest Payable:  04/16/24
Accrued Interest           $2601.70
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

245,000 $0.99989 $244,973.05 $245,000.00     

Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($26.95)

BANK HAPOALIM B M NEW YORK CD 5.10000% 06251A6J4
04/17/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH

245,000 $0.99988 $244,970.60 $245,000.00     



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 7 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 7 of 14

HOLDINGS > FIXED INCOME  continued

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Estimated
Price on
03/31/24

Estimated
Current

Market Value
Estimated

Annual Income
Original/Adjusted

Cost Basis
Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

BANK HAPOALIM B M NEW YORK CD 5.10000% 06251A6J4 continued
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 17
1ST CPN DTE 04/17/2024
Accrued Interest           $2567.47
Average Unit Cost             $1.00
Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($29.40)

JPMORGAN CHASE BK N A CD 5.00000% 46656MAE1
04/17/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 17
1ST CPN DTE 04/17/2024
Accrued Interest          $11378.36
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

238,000 $0.99972 $237,933.36 $238,000.00     

Client Investment $238,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $238,000.00   D ($66.64)

EVERBANK N A JACKSONVILLE FLA 5.05000% 29978MBM9
04/19/2024 CD FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 19
1ST CPN DTE 04/19/2024
Next Interest Payable:  04/19/24
Accrued Interest           $2474.50
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

245,000 $0.99984 $244,960.80 $245,000.00     

Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($39.20)

COASTALSTATES BK HILTON HEAD I CD 19057WDC2
5.05000% 04/22/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 22
1ST CPN DTE 04/22/2024
Accrued Interest           $2372.81
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

245,000 $0.99982 $244,955.90 $245,000.00     

Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($44.10)



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 8 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 8 of 14

HOLDINGS > FIXED INCOME  continued

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Estimated
Price on
03/31/24

Estimated
Current

Market Value
Estimated

Annual Income
Original/Adjusted

Cost Basis
Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

1ST SEC BK OF WASH MOUNTLAKE CD 5.05000% 33625CHA0
04/25/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON APR 25
1ST CPN DTE 04/25/2024
Accrued Interest           $2271.12
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

245,000 $0.9998 $244,951.00 $245,000.00     

Client Investment $245,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $245,000.00   D ($49.00)

INDEPENDENT BK MCKINNEY TEX CD 5.40000% 45385JBG2
05/30/2024 FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON MAY 30
1ST CPN DTE 05/30/2024
Accrued Interest           $4330.95
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

238,000 $1.00 $238,000.00 $238,000.00     

Client Investment $238,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $238,000.00   D

U S BK NATL ASSN CD 5.50000% 12/03/2024 90355UBG9
FDIC INSURED CASH
CPN PMT @ MATURITY
ON DEC 03
1ST CPN DTE 12/03/2024
CALLABLE ON  06/03/2024 @   100.0000
Accrued Interest           $4290.61
Average Unit Cost             $1.00

238,000 $1.00035 $238,083.30 $238,000.00     

Client Investment $238,000.00
Adjusted Cost Basis $238,000.00   D $83.30

Total CDs 2,908,000 $2,907,808.35 $2,908,000.00 ($191.65)

U.S. Treasury / Agency Securities 

UNITED STATES TREAS BILLS ZERO CPN 912797HQ3
0.00000% 05/09/2024 CASH
Average Unit Cost            $98.71

1,000,000 $99.444 $994,440.00 $987,094.44     $7,345.56



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 9 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 9 of 14

HOLDINGS > FIXED INCOME  continued

Description
Symbol/Cusip
Account Type Quantity

Estimated
Price on
03/31/24

Estimated
Current

Market Value
Estimated

Annual Income
Original/Adjusted

Cost Basis
Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

UNITED STATES TREAS BILLS ZERO CPN 912797HQ3 continued
Client Investment $987,094.44

Total Fixed Income 3,908,000 $3,902,248.35 $3,895,094.44 $7,153.91 

Total Fixed Income Client Investment $3,895,094.44

Total Securities  $3,902,248.35 $3,895,094.44 $7,153.91 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO VALUE $4,094,086.47 $3,895,094.44 $7,153.91 

TOTAL CLIENT INVESTMENT $3,895,094.44

Activity
NFS-provided cost basis, realized gain (loss) and holding period information may not reflect all adjustments necessary for tax purposes.  Please refer to Footnotes and Cost Basis Information at the end of this
statement for more information.

PURCHASES, SALES, AND REDEMPTIONS 

Settlement
Date

Account
Type Transaction Description Quantity Amount

Redemptions 

03/04/24 CASH REDEEMED MERCHANTS BK CARMEL IND CD
5.40000% 03/04/2024 REDEMPTION
PAYOUT #REOR R6002598200000        

(238,000) $238,000.00   

03/22/24 CASH REDEEMED STATE BK INDIA CHICAGO ILL CD
5.50000% 03/22/2024 REDEMPTION
PAYOUT #REOR R6002679150000        

(243,000) $243,000.00   

Total  Redemptions $481,000.00



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448

Page 10 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 10 of 14

ACTIVITY >CORE FUND ACTIVITY

For more information about the operation of your core account, please refer to your Customer Agreement.
Settlement
Date

Account
Type Transaction Description Quantity Amount

03/01/24 CASH YOU BOUGHT FEDERATED HERMES GOVT
OBLIGATIONS IS @ 1         

1,185.81 ($1,185.81)   

03/04/24 CASH YOU BOUGHT FEDERATED HERMES GOVT
OBLIGATIONS IS @ 1         

241,380.25 ($241,380.25)   

03/22/24 CASH YOU BOUGHT FEDERATED HERMES GOVT
OBLIGATIONS IS @ 1         

249,664.19 ($249,664.19)   

03/28/24 CASH YOU SOLD FEDERATED HERMES GOVT
OBLIGATIONS IS @ 1         

(350,000) $350,000.00   

TOTAL CORE FUND ACTIVITY ($142,230.25)

ACTIVITY >ADDITIONS AND WITHDRAWALS > OTHER ADDITIONS AND WITHDRAWALS

Date
Account
Type Transaction Description Quantity Amount

Other Additions and Withdrawals  
03/28/24 CASH WIRE TRANS TO BANK WD73268945         ($350,000.00)   

HOME STATE BANK, NATIONAL ASSN    *****6001
Total  Other Additions and Withdrawals ($350,000.00)

TOTAL ADDITIONS AND WITHDRAWALS ($350,000.00)

ACTIVITY > INCOME > TAXABLE INCOME 

Settlement
Date

Account
Type Transaction Description Quantity Amount

Taxable Dividends 



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 11 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 11 of 14

ACTIVITY > INCOME > TAXABLE INCOME continued

Settlement
Date

Account
Type Transaction Description Quantity Amount

02/29/24 CASH DIVIDEND RECEIVED FEDERATED HERMES GOVT
OBLIGATIONS IS DIVIDEND RECEIVED        

$1,185.81   

Total  Taxable Dividends $1,185.81

Taxable Interest 

03/04/24 CASH INTEREST MERCHANTS BK CARMEL IND CD
5.40000% 03/04/2024        

$3,380.25   

03/22/24 CASH INTEREST STATE BK INDIA CHICAGO ILL CD
5.50000% 03/22/2024        

$6,664.19   

Total  Taxable Interest $10,044.44

Total  Taxable Income $11,230.25

TOTAL INCOME $11,230.25

Footnotes and Cost Basis Information

Amortization, accretion and similar adjustments to cost basis have been provided for many fixed income securities (and some bond-like equities), however, they are not provided for certain types, such as
short-term instruments, Unit Investment Trusts, foreign fixed income securities, or those that are subject to early prepayment of principal (pay downs).  Where current year premium or acquisition premium
amortization is provided, the prior years' cumulative amortization is reflected in the adjusted cost basis, but we cannot provide a breakdown or the total of such prior amortization amounts.

NFS is required to report certain cost basis and related information to the IRS on the Form 1099-B.  Your official 1099-B forms for certain transactions will reflect which lots have been sold for tax purposes.
To apply a specific identification cost basis method to 1099-B reporting, appropriate instructions must be on file with NFS or be received by NFS before the trade has settled.  Absent such instructions, NFS
determines cost basis at the time of sale based on its default methods of average cost for open-end mutual funds and first-in, first-out (FIFO) for all other (including ETFs) unless your broker dealer has
elected to use another default method.  NFS applies FIFO (or other disposal method, if applicable) based on its records, which may be different from yours.  For transactions that are not subject to 1099-B
cost basis reporting, you should refer to your trade confirmations and other applicable records to determine which lots were considered sold for tax purposes.

While NFS must meet IRS requirements with respect to certain information required to be reported to the IRS, NFS-provided cost basis, realized gain and loss, and holding period information may not reflect
all adjustments necessary for your tax reporting purposes. NFS makes no warranties with respect to and specifically disclaims any liability arising out of a customer's use of, or any tax position taken in
reliance upon, such information.

For investments in partnerships, NFS does not make any adjustments to cost basis information as the calculation of basis in such investments requires supplemental information from the partnership on its
income and distributions during the period you held your investment. Partnerships usually provide this additional information on a Form K-1 issued by April 15th of the following year. 



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 12 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 12 of 14

Footnotes and Cost Basis Information   continued

Consult your tax advisor for further information.

D - Adjusted cost basis reflects any cumulative original issue discount, premium, or acquisition premium, and it assumes such amounts were amortized by the taxpayer over the life of the security 
from acquisition date through disposition date. For securities still held, maturity date was used instead of disposition date. Premium amortization was calculated using the yield-to-maturity method. 
Acquisition premium was calculated using the ratable accrual method. If applicable, adjusted cost basis reflects market discount accretion which was calculated using the straight-line method and 
was recognized at disposition date. Gain/loss displayed for this transaction was based on cost basis as adjusted for premium and discount as stated above and does not reflect any losses disallowed 
because of wash sales (if applicable). The adjusted cost basis may not reflect all adjustments necessary for tax reporting purposes and may also not apply if you are using an alternative amortization 
calculation method. Refer to IRS Publication 550, Investment Income and Expenses, for additional information.   

If a sale, redemption or other disposition involved multiple tax lots, the transaction's totals may have been calculated using a combination of adjusted and unadjusted cost basis information. For lots where
adjusted cost basis and its associated gain/loss are known, that was used, otherwise "regular" unadjusted cost basis and its associated gain/loss was used.

Miscellaneous Footnotes

CHANGE IN VALUE OF YOUR PORTFOLIO is the change in market value of your portfolio assets over the time period shown.  The portfolio assets include the market value of all the securities in the
account, plus insurance and annuity assets if applicable.  The time frame of the graph is from account opening or September 2010, whichever is later, to the current period.   Please note that large increases
and/or declines in the change in the value of the portfolio can be due to additions, distribution and/or performance. 

CHANGE IN VALUE reflects appreciation or depreciation of your holdings due to price changes plus any activity not reflected within Additions and Withdrawals, Misc. & Corporate Actions, Income, Taxes,
Fees and Expenses, and Other Activity sections. Change in Value does not reflect activity related to assets in which NFS is not the custodian (e.g. Insurance and Annuities, Assets Held Away and Other
Assets Held Away).

CALLABLE SECURITIES LOTTERY - When street name or bearer securities held for you are subject to a partial call or partial redemption by the issuer, NFS may or may not receive an allocation of
called/redeemed securities by the issuer, transfer agent and/or depository. If NFS is allocated a portion of the called/redeemed securities, NFS utilizes an impartial lottery allocation system, in accordance with
applicable rules, that randomly selects the securities within customer accounts that will be called/redeemed. NFS' allocations are not made on a pro rata basis and it is possible for you to receive a full or
partial allocation, or no allocation. You have the right to withdraw uncalled fully paid securities at any time prior to the cutoff date and time established by the issuer, transfer agent and/or depository with
respect to the partial call, and also to withdraw excess margin securities provided your account is not subject to restriction under Regulation T or such withdrawal will not cause an undermargined condition.

PRICING INFORMATION - Prices displayed are obtained from sources that may include pricing vendors, broker/dealers who clear through NFS and/or other sources. Prices may not reflect current fair market
value and/or may not be readily marketable or redeemable at the prices shown.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS - Some transaction types necessitate a foreign currency exchange (FX) in order to settle. FX transactions may be effected by Fidelity Forex, LLC. on a principal
basis. Fidelity Forex, LLC., an affiliate of NFS, may impose a commission or markup on the prevailing interbank market price, which may result in a higher price to you. Fidelity Forex, LLC. may share a portion
of any FX commission or markup with NFS.  More favorable rates may be available through third parties not affiliated with NFS. The rate applicable to any transaction involving an FX is available upon request
through your broker-dealer.



Statement for the Period March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Partnership
Account Number:  xxx-xx8448   

Page 13 of 14

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 13 of 14

Miscellaneous Footnotes   continued

COST BASIS LEGISLATION - New IRS Rules will require National Financial Services to report cost basis and holding period information for the sale of shares of open end Mutual Fund holdings purchased on
or after January 1, 2012 on Form 1099-B.  National Financial Services determines the cost basis for all shares of open end mutual funds using a default method of average cost.  Alternatively, account owners
or their brokers and advisors can instruct National Financial Services to determine the cost basis for shares of open end mutual funds by 1) setting up their non-retirement accounts with one of our eleven tax
lot disposal methods available to investors or 2) identifying specific tax lots to sell at the time of a transaction.  Contact your broker or advisor to learn more about the cost basis tracking of your holdings.

Interval Fund Owners: Please note an interval fund is structured as an unlisted closed-end mutual fund, and not a traditional open-end mutual fund. Material differences between an interval fund and a
traditional open-end mutual fund may exist, including trading/liquidity limitations, and buyback and repurchase features. Please refer to the prospectus for the interval fund you own for specific information and
other important considerations or contact your financial professional.



GLOSSARY Short Account Balances -If you have sold securities under the short sale rule, we have, in
accordance with regulations, segregated the proceeds from such transactions in your Short Account. Any
market increases or decreases from the original sale price will be marked to the market and will be transferred
to your Margin Account on a weekly basis.    Market Value - The Total Market Value has been calculated out to
9 decimal places but the individual unit price is displayed in 5 decimal places. The Total Market Value
represents prices obtained from various sources, may be impacted by the frequency in which such prices are
reported and such prices are not guaranteed. Prices received from pricing vendors are generally based on
current market quotes, but when such quotes are not available the pricing vendors use a variety of techniques
to estimate value. These estimates, particularly for    fixed income securities, may be based on certain
minimum principal amounts (e.g. $1 million) and may not reflect all of the factors that affect the value of the
security, including liquidity risk. In certain situations, a price may be derived from a single broker quote. The
prices provided are not firm bids or offers. Certain securities may reflect "N/A" or "unavailable" where the price for
such security is generally not available from a pricing source. The Market Value of a security, including those

priced at par value, may differ from its purchase price and may not closely reflect the value at which the security
may be sold or purchased based on various market factors. Investment decisions should be made only after
consulting your broker-dealer. 
Estimated Annual Income (EAI) & Estimated Yield (EY) - EAI for fixed income is calculated using the coupon
rate. For all other securities, EAI is calculated using an indicated annual dividend (IAD). The IAD is an estimate of
a security's dividend payments for the next 12 months calculated based on prior and/or declared dividends for that
security. EY reflects only the income generated by an investment and not changes in its price which may
fluctuate. Interest and dividend rates are subject to change at any time and may be affected by current and future
economic, political and business conditions. EAI and EY are estimates only and may include return of principal
and/or capital gains, which would render them overstated. EAI and EY are provided for informational purposes
only and should not be used or relied on for making investment, trading or tax decisions. EAI and EY are based on
data obtained from information providers believed to be reliable, but no assurance can be made as to accuracy,
timeliness or completeness.

CUSTOMER SERVICE: Please review your statement and report any inaccuracy or discrepancy immediately
by calling the telephone number of your broker-dealer reflected on the front of this statement.  Reports of
any inaccuracy or discrepancy regarding your brokerage account or the activity therein should be directed to your 
broker-dealer at the telephone number and address reflected on the front of this statement and National
Financial Services LLC ("NFS").
NFS carries your brokerage account and acts as your custodian for funds and securities that are deposited with
NFS by you or your broker-dealer.  In addition to your initial contact with your broker-dealer you may
contact NFS at (800) 801-9942.  Any oral communications regarding inaccuracies or discrepancies should be
reconfirmed in writing to protect your rights, including those under the Securities Investor Protection Act ("SIPA").
When contacting either your broker-dealer or NFS, remember to include your entire brokerage account number to
ensure a prompt reply.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  Free credit balances ("FCB") are funds payable to you on demand. FCB are
subject to open commitments such as uncleared checks and exclude proceeds from sales of certificated
securities without delivery of the certificate. If your FCB is swept to a core position, you can liquidate the core
position and have the proceeds sent to you or held in your account subject to the terms of your account
agreement. Required rule 10b-10(a) information not contained herein will be provided on written request. Fidelity
may use this free credit balance in connection with its business, subject to applicable law.
Credit Adjustment Program.  Accountholders receiving payments in lieu of qualified dividends may not be
eligible to receive credit adjustments intended to help cover additional associated federal tax burdens.  NFS
reserves the right to deny the adjustment to any accountholder and to amend or terminate the credit adjustment
program.
Options Customers. Each transaction confirmation previously delivered to you contains full information about
commissions and other charges. If you require further information, please contact your broker-dealer.
Assignments of American and European-style options are allocated among customer short positions pursuant to
a random allocation procedure, a description of which is available upon request.  Short positions in
American-style options are liable for assignment at any time.  The writer of a European-style option is subject to
exercise assignment only during the exercise period. You should advise your broker-dealer promptly of any
material change in your investment objectives or financial situation.  Splits, Dividends, and Interest.  Expected
stock split, next dividend payable, and next interest payable information has been provided by third parties and
may be subject to change. Information for certain securities may be missing if not received from third parties in
time for printing. NFS is not responsible for inaccurate, incomplete, or missing information. Please consult your
broker-dealer for more information about expected stock split, next dividend payable, and next interest payable for
certain securities.
Equity Dividend Reinvestment Customers.  Shares credited to your brokerage account resulted from
transactions effected as agent by either: 1) Your broker-dealer for your investment account, or 2) through the
Depository Trust Company (DTC) dividend reinvestment program. For broker-dealer effected transactions, the
time of the transactions, the exchange upon which these transactions occurred and the name of the person from
whom the security was purchased will be furnished upon written request. NFS may have acted as market maker
in effecting trades in 'over-the-counter 'securities.
Retirement Contributions/Distributions.  A summary of retirement contributions/distributions is displayed for
you in the activity summary section of your statement.   Income Reporting. NFS reports earnings from
investments in Traditional IRAs, Rollover IRAs, SEP-IRAs and, Keoghs as tax-deferred income. Earnings from
Roth IRAs are reported as tax-free income, since distributions may be tax-free after meeting the 5 year aging
requirement and certain other conditions.  A financial statement   of  NFS is available for your personal
inspection at its office or a copy of it will be mailed to you upon your written request.
Statement Mailing.  NFS will deliver statements by mail or, if applicable, notify you by e-mail of your statement's
availability, if you had transactions that affected your cash balances or security positions held in your account(s)
during the last monthly reporting period. At a minimum, all brokerage customers will receive quarterly statements
(at least four times per calendar year) as long as their accounts contain a cash or securities balance.

Sales Loads and Fees. In connection with (i) access to, purchase, sale, exchange or redemption of, and/or
maintenance of positions in mutual funds, ETFs and other investment products such as alternative investments or
private placements ("funds") or (ii) infrastructure needed to support such funds, some funds, or their investment

affiliates, pay your introducing broker dealer and/or NFS sales loads and 12b-1 fees described in the Offering
Materials as well as additional compensation for shareholder services, start-up fees, platform support and
maintenance, and marketing, engagement and analytics programs. Additional information about the source(s)
and amount(s) of compensation as well as other remuneration received by FBS or NFS will be furnished to you
upon written request. At time of purchase fund shares may be assigned a load, transaction fee or no transaction
fee status. At time of sale, any fees applicable to your transaction will be assessed based on the status assigned
to the shares at time of purchase.     Margin.  If you have applied for margin privileges and been approved, you
may borrow money from NFS in exchange for pledging the assets in your account as collateral for any outstanding
margin loan. The amount you may borrow is based on the value of securities in your margin account, which is
identified on your statement. If you have a margin account, this is a combined statement of your margin account
and special memorandum account other than your non-purpose margin accounts maintained for you under
Section 220.5 of Regulation T issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board. The permanent
record of the separate account, as required by Regulation T, is available for your inspection upon request.     
NYSE and FINRA. All transactions are subject to the constitution, rules, regulations, customs, usages, rulings
and interpretations of the exchange market and its clearing house, if any, where the transactions are executed,
and of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"). The
FINRA requires that we notify you in writing of the availability of an investor brochure that includes information
describing FINRA Regulation's BrokerCheck Program ("Program"). To obtain a brochure or more information
about the Program or FINRA Regulation, contact the FINRA Regulation BrokerCheck Program Hotline at (800)
289-9999 or access the FINRA's web site at www.finra.org.   FINRA Rule 4311   requires that your broker-dealer
and NFS allocate between them certain functions regarding the administration of your brokerage account. The
following is a summary of the allocation services performed by your broker-dealer and NFS. A more complete
description is available upon request.     Your broker-dealer is responsible for:     (1) obtaining and verifying
brokerage account information and documentation, (2) opening, approving and monitoring your brokerage
account, (3) transmitting timely and accurate  orders and other instructions to NFS with respect to your brokerage
account, (4) determining the suitability of investment recommendations and advice, (5) operating, and supervising
your brokerage account and its own activities in compliance with applicable laws and regulations including
compliance with margin rules pertaining to your margin account, if applicable, and (6) maintaining required books
and records for the services that it performs.     NFS shall, at the direction of your broker-dealer:  (1) execute,
clear and settle transactions processed through NFS by your broker-dealer, (2) prepare and send transaction
confirmations and periodic statements of your brokerage account (unless your broker-dealer has undertaken to do
so). Certain securities pricing and descriptive information may be provided by your broker-dealer or obtained from
third parties deemed to be reliable, however, this information has not been verified by NFS, (3) act as custodian
for funds and securities received by NFS on your behalf, (4) follow the instructions of your broker-dealer with
respect to transactions and the receipt and delivery of funds and securities for your brokerage account, and (5)
extend margin credit for purchasing or carrying securities on margin. Your broker-dealer is responsible for
ensuring that your brokerage account is in compliance with federal, industry and NFS margin rules, and for
advising you of margin requirements. NFS shall maintain the required books and records for the services it
performs.   Securities in accounts carried by     NFS are protected in accordance with the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation ("SIPC") up to $500,000.  The $500,000 total amount of SIPC protection is inclusive of up
to $250,000 protection for claims for cash, subject to periodic adjustments for inflation in accordance with terms
of the SIPC statute and approval by SIPC's Board of Directors.  NFS also has arranged for coverage above these
limits. Neither coverage protects against a decline  in the market value of securities, nor does either coverage
extend to certain securities that are considered ineligible for coverage. For more details on SIPC, or to request a
SIPC brochure, visit      www.sipc.org   or call 1-202-371-8300. Funds used to purchase or sweep to a bank
deposit are SIPC protected until deposited to a Program Bank at which time funds may be eligible for FDIC
insurance. Assets Held Away, commodities, unregistered investment contracts, futures accounts, loaned
securities and other investments may not be covered. Precious metals are not covered by SIPC protection. Mutual
funds and/or other securities are not backed or guaranteed by any bank, nor are they insured by the FDIC and
involve investment risk including possible loss of principal.
End of Statement 722239.10.0

 

Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

MN   _CEBQCPSZBBMTBMG_BBBBB 20240328 P

Account carried with National Financial Services LLC, Member
NYSE, SIPC

Page 14 of 14



Last Statement: February 29, 2024
Statement Ending: March 31, 2024

Page:
Account Number 650018044

1 of 1

D:\\CrystalLakeBankTrust_REG\\Work\\Outputs

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT
WAYNE HUMMER TR CO, CUSTODIAN
ONE E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE
CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014-6101

MAXSAFE PUBLIC FUNDS MMDA Account Number: XXXXXX8044

Balance Summary Earnings Summary

$3,398,049.47

Interest Rates

5.460%
5.436%
5.433%
5.431%
5.441%

5.440%
5.448%
5.445%
5.451%

5.456%
5.450%
5.452%
5.467%

5.473%
5.477%
5.471%
5.460%

Credits 

Additions

Daily Balances

Beginning Balance as of 03/01/24 $3,398,049.47
+ Deposits and Credits (1) $15,739.20
- Withdrawals and Debits (0) $0.00
Ending Balance as of 03/31/24 $3,413,788.67
Analysis or Maintenance Fees for Period $0.00
Number of Days in Statement Period 31

Interest for Period Ending 03/31/24 $15,739.20
Interest Paid Year to Date $45,956.37
Annual Percentage Yield  (APY) 5.61%
Number of Days for APY 31
Average Balance for APY

Date Interest Rate
Feb 29
Mar 01
Mar 04
Mar 05
Mar 07

Date Interest Rate
Mar 08
Mar 11
Mar 13
Mar 14

Date Interest Rate
Mar 15
Mar 18
Mar 19
Mar 20

Date Interest Rate
Mar 21
Mar 22
Mar 27
Mar 28

Date Description
Mar 31 INTEREST CREDIT $15,739.20

Date Balance
Feb 29 $3,398,049.47

Date Balance
Mar 31 $3,413,788.67

APBJGOBIDKFMBPHMGPANEMDK
AINGPKHKFDBKFLHOLKGPKOJK
ABHPBHFOLDOPIOAKEDFMPJPK
ALHMHIPKPHNHNHAPPMNKOCPK
ADOPIMFFJIJCMEBIBDOKACGK
AGMCKGAKAGAOECOKAOGKACMK

351 TWS600CR033024032727 01 000000000 8 002

351 0001364 0001-0001 TWS600CR033024032727 01  L  8

3
5
1
 0

0
0
1
3
6
4
 0

0
0
1
-0

0
0
1
 0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

APBJGOBIDKFMBPHMHNBOGK
AINGPKHKFDBKFLHOKAPPIK
ABHPBHFOLDOPJPHGBPEJHK
ALHMHIPKNHANBNCEFJFEJK
ADOPJNFDOAKFLDKMHAFINK
DDLLDLDLDLDLDLDLLLDLLL





40 Grant Street
Crystal Lake, Illinois 60014

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT
MONEY MARKET
1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE
CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014-6101

Managing Your Accounts

Branch Name
Home State Bank,N.A. (Main
Facility)

Phone Number (815) 459-2000

Mailing Address
40 Grant Street
Crystal Lake, Illinois 60014

Online Access www.homestateonline.com

Summary of Accounts

Account Type Account Number Ending Balance

MUNI PREFERRED MONEY MARKET XXXX7402 $1,857,860.42

MUNI PREFERRED MONEY MARKET-XXXX7402

Account Summary
Date Description Amount

03/01/2024 Beginning Balance $1,853,002.00

1 Credit(s) This Period $4,858.42

0 Debit(s) This Period $0.00

03/29/2024 Ending Balance $1,857,860.42

Interest Summary
Description Amount

Interest Earned From 03/01/2024 Through 03/29/2024

Annual Percentage Yield Earned 3.35%

Interest Days 29

Interest Earned $4,858.42

Interest Paid This Period $4,858.42

Interest Paid Year-to-Date $15,201.82

Average Ledger Balance $1,853,002.00

Account Activity

Post Date Description Debits Credits Balance

03/01/2024 Beginning Balance $1,853,002.00

03/29/2024 INTEREST $4,858.42 $1,857,860.42

03/29/2024 Ending Balance $1,857,860.42

Daily Balances

Date Amount

03/29/2024 $1,857,860.42

Statement Ending 03/29/2024
  Page 1 of 2

4310D32B00D83946B68D57E56499101E 20240329 Checking Account Statements



 

 

 

  1,150,839.170      $1.00   $1,150,839.17 100.0%

   $1,145,582.38      $1.00    1,145,582.380

03/28/24 INCOME REINVEST                  $5,256.79      $1.00       5,256.790   1,150,839.170

Illinois LGIP                                          $.00             $5,256.79            $5,256.79           $15,353.22

 

Page   1 of   1

 

Illinois LGIP                         

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DIST             

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DIST             

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DIST             

  

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DIST             

1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE               

CRYSTAL LAKE IL  60014-6101        

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

REINVEST     REINVEST

 

 

                $0.00

                $0.00 

 

(800) 947-8479                                    

www.illinoisfunds.com                             

  +  Purchases

   -  Withdrawals 

    

   $1,150,839.17      $1.00    1,150,839.170

Distributions: Dividends Cap Gains

                 $.00             $5,256.79            $5,256.79           $15,353.22

 

 

 

 

Share Market Value % of Account

Fund Name Shares Price on 03/31/2024 Holdings

Trade Transaction Dollar Share Shares this Total Shares

Date Description Amount Price Transaction Owned

Beginning Balance as of 03/01/2024

Illinois LGIP/5000                         

Ending Balance as of 03/31/2024

Fund Name Capital Gains Income Distributions Period to Date Year to Date

Total Portfolio

 

        $1,145,582.38 

        $1,150,839.17 

 

for the period of:  March 1, 2024 - March 31, 2024         

Investor Services:

Internet:

 

Portfolio Value Beginning 03/01/2024

Portfolio Value Ending 03/31/2024

 

Account Number   7139124049 

Account Number  7139124049 

 

Account Number   7139124049 

 

 

000158

  

*58110*

    

E

C

 

 

 

IJK

  

STUVWX

GHIJKL

 

MNOPQR

  

 

 

 

AB

 

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

 

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

 

    

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 INVESTOR STMT INDEX IL 0009999 9999      DEFAULT   366005841 000000243 QUARTERLY  20240331FUND ACCOUNT INDEX  0005000 07139124049  

FDPS-MIMS-PLACEMARK=436314300400001580000001NYYNRN                                                                      

IDXH=USBILXPOINVMI00099999999     DEFAULT  DEFAULT                       00000000000000024320240331012XIL             IDXD=999IL1116000500007139124049366005841CRYSTAL-LA

 

 

  

 

XIL..*58110*.4363143004.00304.00304.CNSFST01.....IL........XIL.......000000243                           

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

tbecke
Typewritten Text

tbecke
Typewritten Text
######

tbecke
Typewritten Text
######

tbecke
Typewritten Text
######

tbecke
Typewritten Text
#######

tbecke
Typewritten Text
#######



CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT

ACCOUNT STATEMENT

For the Month Ending

March 31, 2024

Customer Service

PO Box 11760

Harrisburg, PA 17108-11760

Contents

Cover/Disclosures

Summary Statement

Individual Accounts

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT 

MRS. KRISTINE BECKE

1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVE

CRYSTAL LAKE, IL 60014-5763

Client Management Team

Accounts included in Statement

0454 GENERAL FUND

4757 Grant - Haligus Rd park

www.ipdlaf.orgOnline Access 1-800-731-6830Customer Service 

Michelle Binns

Director

209 South LaSalle MK-IL-RY2C

Chicago, IL 60604

872.240.6962

binnsm@pfmam.com

 

Amber Cannegieter

Key Account Manager

213 Market Street

Harrisburg, PA 17101-2141

1-800-731-6830

cannegietera@pfmam.com

 

Jeffrey K. Schroeder

Managing Director

209 South LaSalle MK-IL-RY2C

Chicago, IL 60604

331-278-8382

schroederj@pfmam.com

 



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024

Account Statement

Important Disclosures

Important Disclosures
365 and dividing the result by 7. The yields quoted should not be considered a 

representation of the yield of the fund in the future, since the yield is not fixed. 

Average maturity represents the average maturity of all securities and 

investments of a portfolio, determined by multiplying the par or principal value of 

each security or investment by its maturity (days or years), summing the 

products, and dividing the sum by the total principal value of the portfolio. The 

stated maturity date of mortgage backed or callable securities are used in this 

statement. However the actual maturity of these securities could vary depending 

on the level or prepayments on the underlying mortgages or whether a callable 

security has or is still able to be called. 

 Monthly distribution yield represents the net change in the value of one share 

(normally $1.00 per share) resulting from all dividends declared during the month 

by a fund expressed as a percentage of the value of one share at the beginning 

of the month. This resulting net change is then annualized by multiplying it by 

365 and dividing it by the number of calendar days in the month. 

 YTM at Cost The yield to maturity at cost is the expected rate of return, based 

on the original cost, the annual interest receipts, maturity value and the time 

period from purchase date to maturity, stated as a percentage, on an annualized 

basis. 

 YTM at Market The yield to maturity at market is the rate of return, based on the 

current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value and the time 

period remaining until maturity, stated as a percentage, on an annualized basis. 

 Managed Account A portfolio of investments managed discretely by PFMAM 

according to the client’s specific investment policy and requirements. The 

investments are directly owned by the client and held by the client’s custodian. 

 Unsettled Trade A trade which has been executed however the final 

consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place. 

 

Please review the detail pages of this statement carefully. If you think your 

statement is wrong, missing account information, or if you need more information 

about a transaction, please contact PFMAM within 60 days of receipt. If you have 

other concerns or questions regarding your account, or to request an updated 

copy of PFMAM's current disclosure statement, please contact a member of your 

client management team at PFMAM Service Operations at the address below.

PFM Asset Management LLC

 Attn: Service Operations

 213 Market Street

 Harrisburg, PA 17101

 NOT FDIC INSURED     NO BANK GUARANTEE     MAY LOSE VALUE

This statement is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide 

specific advice or recommendations. PFM Asset Management LLC ("PFMAM") is an 

investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and a 

subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc. ("USBAM"). USBAM is a subsidiary 

of U.S. Bank National Association ("U.S. Bank"). U.S. Bank is a separate entity and 

subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. U.S. Bank is not responsible for and does not guarantee the 

products, services or performance of PFMAM. PFMAM maintains a written disclosure 

statement of our background and business experience. If you would like to receive a 

copy of our current disclosure statement, please contact Service Operations at the 

address below. 

 Proxy Voting PFMAM does not normally receive proxies to vote on behalf of its clients. 

However, it does on occasion receive consent requests. In the event a consent request 

is received the portfolio manager contacts the client and then proceeds according to 

their instructions. PFMAM’s Proxy Voting Policy is available upon request by contacting 

Service Operations at the address below. 

 Questions About an Account PFMAM’s monthly statement is intended to detail our 

investment advisory activity as well as the activity of any accounts held by clients in 

pools that are managed by PFMAM. The custodian bank maintains the control of assets 

and executes (i.e., settles) all investment transactions. The custodian statement is the 

official record of security and cash holdings and transactions. PFMAM recognizes that 

clients may use these reports to facilitate record keeping and that the custodian bank 

statement and the PFMAM statement should be reconciled and differences resolved. 

Many custodians use a settlement date basis which may result in the need to reconcile 

due to a timing difference. 

 Account Control PFMAM does not have the authority to withdraw funds from or deposit 

funds to the custodian outside the scope of services provided by PFMAM. Our clients 

retain responsibility for their internal accounting policies; implementing and enforcing 

internal controls and generating ledger entries or otherwise recording transactions. 

 Market Value Generally, PFMAM’s market prices are derived from closing bid prices as 

of the last business day of the month as supplied by Refinitiv or Bloomberg. For certain 

short-term investments or where prices are not available from generally recognized 

sources the securities are priced using a yield-based matrix system to arrive at an 

estimated market value. Prices that fall between data points are interpolated. 

Non-negotiable FDIC-insured bank certificates of deposit are priced at par. Although 

PFMAM believes the prices to be reliable, the values of the securities may not represent 

the prices at which the securities could have been bought or sold. Explanation of the 

valuation methods for a registered investment company or local government investment 

program is contained in the appropriate fund offering documentation or information 

statement. 

 Amortized Cost The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the 

amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase date 

until the date of the report. Discount or premium with respect to short term securities 

(those with less than one year to maturity at time of issuance) is amortized on a 

straightline basis. Such discount or premium with respect to longer term securities is 

amortized using the constant yield basis.

Tax Reporting Cost data and realized gains / losses are provided for informational 

purposes only. Please review for accuracy and consult your tax advisor to determine 

the tax consequences of your security transactions. PFMAM does not report such 

information to the IRS or other taxing authorities and is not responsible for the 

accuracy of such information that may be required to be reported to federal, state or 

other taxing authorities. 

 Financial Situation In order to better serve you, PFMAM should be promptly notified 

of any material change in your investment objective or financial situation. 

 Callable Securities Securities subject to redemption prior to maturity may be 

redeemed in whole or in part before maturity, which could affect the yield represented. 

 Portfolio The securities in this portfolio, including shares of mutual funds, are not 

guaranteed or otherwise protected by PFMAM, the FDIC (except for certain 

non-negotiable certificates of deposit) or any government agency. Investment in 

securities involves risks, including the possible loss of the amount invested. Actual 

settlement values, accrued interest, and amortized cost amounts may vary for 

securities subject to an adjustable interest rate or subject to principal paydowns. Any 

changes to the values shown may be reflected within the next monthly statement’s 

beginning values. 

 Rating Information provided for ratings is based upon a good faith inquiry of selected 

sources, but its accuracy and completeness cannot be guaranteed. 

 Shares of some local government investment programs and TERM funds are 

marketed through representatives of PFMAM's affiliate, PFM Fund Distributors, Inc. 

which is registered with the SEC as a broker/dealer and is a member of the Financial 

Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board (“MSRB”). You may reach the FINRA by calling the FINRA Hotline at 

1-800-289-9999 or at the FINRA website address 

https://www.finra.org/investors/investor-contacts. A brochure describing the FINRA 

Regulation Public Disclosure Program is also available from FINRA upon request. 

 Key Terms and Definitions

 Dividends on local government investment program funds consist of interest earned, 

plus any discount ratably amortized to the date of maturity, plus all realized gains and 

losses on the sale of securities prior to maturity, less ratable amortization of any 

premium and all accrued expenses to the fund. Dividends are accrued daily and may 

be paid either monthly or quarterly. The monthly earnings on this statement represent 

the estimated dividend accrued for the month for any program that distributes earnings 

on a quarterly basis. There is no guarantee that the estimated amount will be paid on 

the actual distribution date.

 Current Yield is the net change, exclusive of capital changes and income other than 

investment income, in the value of a hypothetical fund account with a balance of one 

share over the seven-day base period including the statement date, expressed as a 

percentage of the value of one share (normally $1.00 per share) at the beginning of 

the seven-day period. This resulting net change in account value is then annualized by 

multiplying it by



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024

Account Statement

Consolidated Summary Statement

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT

Investment Allocation

Investment Type Closing Market Value Percent

 3,368,424.55  100.00 Local Government Investment Pool

$3,368,424.55 Total  100.00%

Portfolio Summary

 and Income

Closing

 Market Value

 Current

Portfolio Holdings

 Cash Dividends

Yield

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class  14,679.20  3,368,424.55 5.18 %

$14,679.20 $3,368,424.55 Total

Maturity Distribution (Fixed Income Holdings)

Portfolio Holdings Closing Market Value Percent

 3,368,424.55 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 100.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

Under 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days

181 days to 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total $3,368,424.55 

 1

 100.00%

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

Sector Allocation

100.00%

Local Government
Investment Pool

Summary Page 1



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024

Account Statement

Consolidated Summary Statement

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT

 and Income

Closing Market

Value

Change in

Value Trades MaturitiesDeposits ValueAccount Name

Account

Number

 Cash DividendsUnsettled Redemptions / Sales/Purchases /Opening Market

0454  3,052,250.92  13,359.57  0.00  0.00  3,065,610.49  0.00  13,359.57 GENERAL FUND

4757  301,494.43  1,319.63  0.00  0.00  302,814.06  0.00  1,319.63 Grant - Haligus Rd park

$3,353,745.35 $14,679.20 $0.00 $0.00 $3,368,424.55 $14,679.20 Total $0.00 

Summary Page 2



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024Account Statement - Transaction Summary

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - GENERAL FUND - 0454

Opening Market Value

Purchases

Redemptions

Change in Value

Closing Market Value

 3,052,250.92 

 13,359.57 

 0.00 

 0.00 

$3,065,610.49 

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class

Unsettled Trades  0.00 

 13,359.57 Cash Dividends and Income

March 31, 2024 February 29, 2024

Asset Summary

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class  3,065,610.49  3,052,250.92 

$3,065,610.49 $3,052,250.92 Total

Asset Allocation

100.00%

Illinois Portfolio,
IPDLAF+ Class

Account 0454 Page 1



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024Account Statement 

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - GENERAL FUND - 0454

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class

 3,052,250.92 Opening Balance

03/28/24 04/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  13,359.57  3,065,610.49 

 3,065,610.49 

 3,065,610.49 

 3,065,610.49 

 3,053,974.74 

 117,491.25 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 117,491.25 

 2,948,119.24 

 13,359.57 

 3,065,610.49 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 13,359.57 

 3,052,250.92 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

March July-March

 5.17%

Account 0454 Page 2



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024Account Statement - Transaction Summary

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Grant - Haligus Rd park - 4757

Opening Market Value

Purchases

Redemptions

Change in Value

Closing Market Value

 301,494.43 

 1,319.63 

 0.00 

 0.00 

$302,814.06 

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class

Unsettled Trades  0.00 

 1,319.63 Cash Dividends and Income

March 31, 2024 February 29, 2024

Asset Summary

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class  302,814.06  301,494.43 

$302,814.06 $301,494.43 Total

Asset Allocation

100.00%

Illinois Portfolio,
IPDLAF+ Class

Account 4757 Page 1



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024Account Statement 

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT - Grant - Haligus Rd park - 4757

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ Class

 301,494.43 Opening Balance

03/28/24 04/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  1,319.63  302,814.06 

 302,814.06 

 302,814.06 

 302,814.06 

 301,664.70 

 2,814.06 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 302,814.06 

 0.00 

 1,319.63 

 302,814.06 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 1,319.63 

 301,494.43 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

March July-March

 5.17%

Account 4757 Page 2













Page 1 of 3 

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT |1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVENUE | CRYSTAL LAKE, IL | 60014 
Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood - Enriching All Lives Through Recreation, Parks and Nature 

 

                 Park District Board of Commissioners 

Committee Meeting of the Whole 

April 4,  2023 
                    

 Explore | Play | Experience                              
 

 

Call to Order:  

President Eric Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.   
 

Roll Call:   

Commissioners Present:  

Cathy Cagle, Jason Heisler, Michael Jacobson, Karen Johnson, Sarah Michehl, Eric Anderson 

Late Arrival: Commissioner Linda Matthias arrived at 6:45pm. 
 

Legal Counsel:  Scott Puma, Ancel, Glink, Diamond, Bush, DiCianni and Krafthefer, P.C. 

Staff:  Jason Herbster, Executive Director, Erik Jakubowski, Superintendent of Park Services, 

Tina Becke, Superintendent of Business Services, Kurt Reckamp, Superintendent of Recreation 

Programs and Facility Services, Anne Sandor, Recording Secretary 

Pledge of Allegiance:          

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   

Citizens:                            

Craig Mackey, Jen & Joe LaMonica, Rich Hickey, Gary and Cataline Meyer, Greg Waggoner, 

Greg Kobelinski, Bill Carvell, Jim Rocheford, Ned Zeman, Annette Peterson, Scott Swanson, Jerry 

and Mary Adee, Jeff McInerny, Sandra Kinahan 

Approval of Agenda: 

Commissioner Anderson asked to move items E. Lake Advisory Committee Formal Recognition 

and I. Lake Use by Non-Motorized Boats be moved to items A. and B. Commissioner Michehl 

moved to approve the agenda, as revised. Seconded by Commissioner Jacobson. All were in 

favor. 

Matters from the Public:                             

Resident, Joe LaMonica asked for clarification of if non-motorized boats included sailboats.   

Greg Kobelinski reported that a notice with misinformation was sent to the SPOA regarding the 

Park District regarding the restrictions on human powered watercraft. He stated that the District 

was referring to their rental boats at Main Beach. 

Mr. Kobelinski expressed concern with inexperienced boaters and suggested restricting rentals to 

the no wake areas. Additional remarks are included in the correspondence section of the April 18, 

2024 Regular Board meeting packet.   

Executive Director Herbster noted that staff will be enforcing the boat rental guidelines and will be 

able to monitor the boats out on the water with the jet ski.   

Commissioner Heisler noted that the information on the Park District website and the Lake 

Safety/Ecology Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of Lakewood, City of Crystal Lake 

and the Park District was incorrect.  He stated that Lake Safety should be removed from the 

document, since the agreement is for Lake Ecology. 

Commissioner Anderson moved that literature regarding the Intergovernmental Agreement states 

specifically that the Park District’s participation in the Agreement is for lake ecology and for the 

collections and disbursement of lake usage decal fees, only.  Seconded by Commissioner Heisler.  

All were in favor. 



Page 2 of 3 

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT |1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVENUE | CRYSTAL LAKE, IL | 60014 
Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood - Enriching All Lives Through Recreation, Parks and Nature 

 

Commissioner Michehl questioned why public emails regarding Lake Use by Non-Motorized Boats 

were received prior to the date that the agenda was posted. Commissioner Anderson stated that 

Commissioner Cagle requested the item to be posted on the agenda.   

He stated that he believed Cagle was requesting a discussion about changing wake/no wake 

hours associated with motorized boats for the entire lake.  He felt it was appropriate for him to 

discuss this issue with the public and apologized for his misinformation.  Commissioner Michehl 

requested that agenda items be discussed at the Board level prior to requesting community 

feedback. 

Commissioner Cagle stated that she wanted to discuss the boat rental guidelines and how the 

limited wake hours are limiting the rights of the lakefront homeowners. She requested to take 

back the recommendations and to let the city and village decide.  Commissioner Anderson 

stated that there was no Board recommendation.  Executive Director Herbster stated that the 

Board's directive was to include the rules in the rental guidelines, which the staff has done, and to 

send the request of the resident to the Village and the City.  Commissioner Anderson requested 

discussion regarding the District’s boat launch access at a future meeting.    

Lake Advisory Committee Formal Recognition: 

Executive Director Herbster noted that the Lake Advisory Committee would like to be recognized 

as a Committee of the Park District.  Commissioner Cagle stated that the original intention of the 

Lake Advisory Committee was to be a stand alone committee and for the committee to be an 

advisory committee for the City, Lakewood and the Park District.  Commissioner Heisler stated that 

he would be in favor if the committee was for ecology purposes only and suggested a name 

change such as the Lake Ecology Advisory Committee.  Commissioner Cagle asked if the current 

committee is involved with non-ecology matters.  Mr. Kobelinski stated there were none.   

Commissioner Cagle requested that there be structured meetings and regular meeting minutes.  

Commissioner Anderson stated that the Committee would be an Advisory Committee  to the Park 

District for lake ecology purposes. Heisler suggested the other municipalities be involved.   

Commissioner Matthias moved to recognize the Lake Advisory Committee be recognized as   

advisory to the Park District for lake ecology purposes only.  Commissioner Cagle stated that she 

would be in favor if there was more structure to the Committee.  Commissioner Jacobson noted 

that they are asking to be recognized.  Commissioner Michehl requested to review the Memo of 

Understanding.  Seconded by Commissioner Heisler. 

Roll Call:  Ayes: 4 (Heisler, Johnson, Matthias, Anderson)  Nays: 3 (Cagle, Johnson, Michehl) 

Misericordia Fundraising Event Request: 

Commissioner Cagle requested sending emails to previous organization to get their requests in by 

a deadline of six week prior to the event.  Executive Director Herbster stated that staff would 

approve the requests, if possible, if they were too lake for a Board meeting.   

Commissioner Michehl moved to approve the request submitted by Misericordia, as presented.  

Seconded by Commissioner Matthias.  All were in favor. 

Amendment-Park Policy 6.0 -Bidding Procedures: 

Executive Director Herbster stated that Legislation in Springfield increased to the bid limit in May 

2022, from $25,0000 to $30,000.  The Board agreed to place Amendment-Park Policy 6.0 -Bidding 

Procedure on the agenda for approval at the Regular Park Board meeting on April 18, 2024. 

Executive Director Herbster will include the State statute in the policy, in place of the dollar 

amount. 

Park District Policy Manual - 5 Year Update: 

The Board agreed to have staff review the Park Policy Manual and present updates to the Park 

Board for review.   
 



Page 3 of 3 

CRYSTAL LAKE PARK DISTRICT |1 E CRYSTAL LAKE AVENUE | CRYSTAL LAKE, IL | 60014 
Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood - Enriching All Lives Through Recreation, Parks and Nature 

 

ADA Transition Plan: 

Executive Director Herbster noted that staff has budgeted in the 2024-2025 budget for a 

consultant to review and create a revised timeline using the current ADA Transition Plan.  

Haligus Road Park -Formal Naming 

Commissioner Cagle stated that she felt that the park should not be named after a person or of 

political nature.  Commissioner Anderson stated that he did not want to restrict the name of the 

park after someone.  Commissioner Cagle agreed and suggested to have staff come up with 

guidelines for a public park naming contest.  Commissioner Matthias suggested including the 

policy with the guidelines.  Commissioner Michehl suggested including the qualifying names 

portion of the policy.  The Board agreed.  The Park Naming Contest concept will include a 

timeline and will be presented to the Board at the Committee of the Whole meeting on May 9, 

2024. 

A resident stated that when he needed to contact Park Police regarding an incident at Kamijima 

Park, the Dispatch did not know where the park was located.  Executive Director Herbster will 

follow up with Dispatch.    

3rd Quarter Seasonal Program Report 

Superintendent Reckamp presented a report listing the status of program enrollment in winter 

programs from November 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024.  He stated that a more comprehensive 

report will encompass all of the year-to-date comprehensive analysis after the summer season. 

Barlina Barn 

Commissioner Cagle stated that the costs are important and suggested contacting the historical 

society to the cost for a historical documentation consultant.  Executive Director noted that 

Manager Olson prepared a list of what she felt would be needed to be done to preserve the 

barn. She reached out to several architectural firms. Proposals were received from two firms to 

examine the architectural review of the barn, silo and corn crib, structural review of the barn, silo 

and corn crib, and a historic review of site ownership. The proposals were priced between $16,000 

and $19,000. The historical commissioner proposed a roof replacement at $145,000; this project 

will need to go out to bid. Olson will continue to research costs for this project. 

Commissioner Cagle asked if anyone looked into a barn grant. Executive Director Herbster stated 

that he is looking to determine if the project qualifies.  Commissioner Michehl requested all costs 

and to prioritize.  The Board agreed.  

Jim Heisler, resident, stated that he has been successful with asking for donations to restore the 

barn.  Cagle asked if she could assist Heisler with seeking donations.  Puma stated that would be 

acceptable because it is separate from the Park District. 

Matters from the Board:  There were none. 

Executive Session: 

Commissioner Cagle moved to enter Executive Session to discuss item A. Personnel 2 (c)1 at 

7:26pm. Seconded by Commissioner Matthias.   

Roll Call: Ayes: 7 (Jacobson, Johnson, Matthias, Michehl, Cagle, Heisler, Anderson) Nays: 0 

Reconvene:  Commissioner Cagle moved to reconvene open session at 8:15pm.  Seconded by 

Commissioner Jacobson. All were in favor. 

Commissioner Anderson adjourned the meeting 8:16 PM. 

 

Approve: ___________________________________ Attest:_______________________________________ 

                                  President                     Secretary  







































Crystal Lake Park District

Prepared by: Aaron Gold

Vice President

GO Park Bonds (ARS), 
Series 2024A: 
Board Financing Plan 
Presentation

April 18, 2024

Independent Municipal Advisor 

SPEER FINANCIAL

230 W MONROE ST, SUITE 2630

CHICAGO, IL 60606

PHONE: 312.346.3700 

http://www.speerfinancial.com/contactus.html


Property Tax Supported Non-Property Tax  Supported

• Source of repayment: Payable from a direct 

property tax unlimited as to rate or amount.

• Constrained to 2.875% of the District's EAV (How 

much the District can have outstanding in total).

• Subject to Referendum approval

General Obligation Park Bonds

Non-Referendum General 
Obligation Park Bonds

• Source of repayment: Payable from a direct property 

tax unlimited as to rate but limited as to amount.

• Constrained to 0.575% of the District's EAV (How much 

the District can have outstanding in total).

• District's subject to PTELL: Limited to the District's 

Debt Service Extension Base (How much the District 

can levy each year to pay the principal and interest 

due on the bonds).

• Not subject to referendum approval

• Source of repayment: Often referred to as "double-

barreled" bonds. Alternate revenue source bonds are 

paid from any lawfully available resource and have a 

property tax levy as back up should the primary source 

of repayment not be available to pay the principal and 

interest on the bonds.

• Generally, not subject to any debt capacity constraints.

• Subject to a 30-day backdoor referendum period.

• Subject to a 1.25x debt service coverage requirement.

General Obligation (Alternate 
Revenue Source) Park Bonds

Debt Certificates
• Source of repayment: Payable from any lawfully 

available resource.

• Constrained to 2.875% of the District's EAV (How 

much the District can have outstanding in total).

Park District Financing Alternatives



3Speer Financial, Inc.

Total Debt Capacity

Non-Referendum Total
Debt Capacity Debt Capacity

0.575% of EAV 2.875% of EAV
District EAV (2023 Estimated EAV) 1,965,807,328         
Total 1,965,807,328         

Statutory Non-Referendum Authority (0.575% of EAV) 11,303,392                  
Statutory Debt Limitation (2.875% of EAV) 56,516,961              

Applicable Debt: Final Maturity Date:
GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2020A 12/15/2024 725,000                     -                                 -                            
GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2022B 12/15/2042 5,315,000                 -                                 -                            
GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2023 12/15/2024 1,219,990                 1,219,990                     1,219,990                
GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2024A* 12/15/2027 1,495,000                 -                                 -                            
GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B* 12/15/2025 1,259,360                 1,259,360                     1,259,360                

Total 10,014,350               2,479,350                     2,479,350                

Legal Debt Margin* 8,824,042                     54,037,611              

*Preliminary, subject to change (as of 12/5/2024).



4

Debt Service Extension Base (DSEB)

Speer Financial, Inc.

Year DSEB CPI Increase
Cumulative 

Increase
Base 931,458.41
2009 932,389.86 0.10% 931.45
2010 957,564.38 2.70% 26,105.97
2011 971,927.84 1.50% 40,469.43
2012 1,001,085.67 3.00% 69,627.26
2013 1,018,104.12 1.70% 86,645.71
2014 1,033,375.68 1.50% 101,917.27
2015 1,041,642.68 0.80% 110,184.27
2016 1,048,934.17 0.70% 117,475.76
2017 1,070,961.78 2.10% 139,503.37
2018 1,093,451.97 2.10% 161,993.56
2019 1,114,227.55 1.90% 182,769.14
2020 1,139,854.78 2.30% 208,396.37
2021 1,155,812.74 1.40% 224,354.33
2022 1,213,603.37 5.00% 282,144.96
2023 1,274,283.53 5.00% 342,825.12
2024 1,317,609.17 3.40% 386,150.76



5Speer Financial, Inc.

 

Crystal Lake Park District, McHenry County, Illinois 
General Obligation Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2024A 
Dated: July 9, 2024 | ***Preliminary*** 

Purpose:  $1.5M Biannual Capital Improvement Plan Issuance
Call Date:  NA

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total
07/09/2024 - - - - -
12/15/2024 220,000.00 5.000% 32,391.67 252,391.67 -
06/15/2025 - - 31,875.00 31,875.00 284,266.67
12/15/2025 205,000.00 5.000% 31,875.00 236,875.00 -
06/15/2026 - - 26,750.00 26,750.00 263,625.00
12/15/2026 675,000.00 5.000% 26,750.00 701,750.00 -
06/15/2027 - - 9,875.00 9,875.00 711,625.00
12/15/2027 395,000.00 5.000% 9,875.00 404,875.00 -
06/15/2028 - - - - 404,875.00

Total $1,495,000.00 - $169,391.67 $1,664,391.67 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,387.83
Average Life 2.266 Years
Average Coupon 5.0000001%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.5298186%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.4492055%



6Speer Financial, Inc.

Call Date:

Bond Year 12/15 6/15 Total 12/15 6/15 Total 12/15 6/15 Total 12/15 6/15 Total 12/15 6/15 Total Rollover Bonds Corporate Fund Total

2024 141,400    -        141,400    346,800    -        346,800     315,375     18,125       333,500     254,200    106,300    360,500     -              -              -              1,057,775             124,425                1,182,200       
2025 -             -        -             -             -        -              743,125     -              743,125     106,300    106,300    212,600     252,392     31,875       284,267     1,101,817             138,175                1,239,992       
2026 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              906,300    90,300       996,600     236,875     26,750       263,625     1,143,175             117,050                1,260,225       
2027 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              280,300    86,500       366,800     701,750     9,875         711,625     982,050                96,375                  1,078,425       
2028 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              286,500    82,500       369,000     404,875     -              404,875     691,375                82,500                  773,875           
2029 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              287,500    78,400       365,900     -              -              -              287,500                78,400                  365,900           
2030 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              293,400    74,100       367,500     -              -              -              293,400                74,100                  367,500           
2031 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              299,100    69,600       368,700     -              -              -              299,100                69,600                  368,700           
2032 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              304,600    64,900       369,500     -              -              -              304,600                64,900                  369,500           
2033 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              309,900    60,000       369,900     -              -              -              309,900                60,000                  369,900           
2034 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              310,000    55,000       365,000     -              -              -              310,000                55,000                  365,000           
2035 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              315,000    49,800       364,800     -              -              -              315,000                49,800                  364,800           
2036 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              324,800    44,300       369,100     -              -              -              324,800                44,300                  369,100           
2037 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              329,300    38,600       367,900     -              -              -              329,300                38,600                  367,900           
2038 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              333,600    32,700       366,300     -              -              -              333,600                32,700                  366,300           
2039 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              337,700    26,600       364,300     -              -              -              337,700                26,600                  364,300           
2040 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              346,600    20,200       366,800     -              -              -              346,600                20,200                  366,800           
2041 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              350,200    13,600       363,800     -              -              -              350,200                13,600                  363,800           
2042 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              358,600    6,700         365,300     -              -              -              358,600                6,700                     365,300           
2043 -             -        -             -             -        -              -              -              -              341,700    -             341,700     -              -              -              341,700                -                         341,700           

Total 141,400    -        141,400    346,800    -        346,800     1,058,500  18,125       1,076,625  6,675,600 1,106,400 7,782,000  1,595,892  68,500       1,664,392  9,818,192             1,193,025             11,011,217     

*Preliminary, subject to change.

Crystal Lake Park District
Aggregate Alternate Revenue Source Bond Debt Service Schedule (4-18-2024)

Series 2012B Series 2018A Series 2020A Series 2022B Series 2024A*
12/15/2020 NA NA 12/15/2031

Payment Source
NA



7Speer Financial, Inc.

Uses Difference

Levy        
Year

Bond          
Year

Rollover Bond 
Proceeds*

ARS Bond                  
Proceeds*

Total ARS                                           
Debt Service*

Annual Capital 
Proceeds                        

(Operating Fund 
Contribution)*

2021 2022 983,545                      -                               1,370,875                           (387,330)                
2022 2023 1,162,520                  5,500,000                  1,263,507                           5,399,013              
2023 2024 1,204,990                  -                               1,182,200                           22,790                    
2024 2025 1,243,960                  1,500,000                  1,239,992                           1,503,968              
2025 2026 1,263,000                  -                               1,260,225                           2,775                      
2026 2027 1,282,000                  -                               1,078,425                           203,575                 
2027 2028 1,301,000                  -                               773,875                              527,125                 
2028 2029 1,321,000                  -                               365,900                              955,100                 
2029 2030 1,341,000                  -                               367,500                              973,500                 
2030 2031 1,361,000                  -                               368,700                              992,300                 
2031 2032 1,381,000                  -                               369,500                              1,011,500              
2032 2033 1,402,000                  -                               369,900                              1,032,100              
2033 2034 1,423,000                  -                               365,000                              1,058,000              
2034 2035 1,444,000                  -                               364,800                              1,079,200              
2035 2036 1,466,000                  -                               369,100                              1,096,900              
2036 2037 1,488,000                  -                               367,900                              1,120,100              
2037 2038 1,510,000                  -                               366,300                              1,143,700              
2038 2039 1,533,000                  -                               364,300                              1,168,700              
2039 2040 1,556,000                  -                               366,800                              1,189,200              
2040 2041 1,579,000                  -                               363,800                              1,215,200              
2041 2042 1,603,000                  -                               365,300                              1,237,700              
2042 2043 1,627,000                  -                               341,700                              1,285,300              
2043 2044 1,651,000                  -                               -                                       1,651,000              

32,127,015 7,000,000 13,645,599 25,481,416

Crystal Lake Park District
Rollover Bond Financing Model - 4/18/2024

Sources

*Prel iminary, subject to change.



8Speer Financial, Inc.

Task Party Responsible Date

Distribute Draft Authorizing Ordinance Bond Counsel By 4/11/2024

Distribute BINA Order Bond Counsel Week of 4/18/2024

Financing Plan Presentation District and Speer 4/18/2024

Adoption of the Authorizing Ordinance District 4/18/2024

Publication of Authorizing Ordinance District Week of 4/22/2024

Distribute Draft Preliminary Official Statement (POS) Speer Week of 4/22/2024

Distribute Ratings Package Speer Week of 4/22/2024

Publication of BINA Notice District By 5/9/2024

Rating Call All Parties Week of 5/13/2024

BINA Public Hearing District 5/16/2024

Comments Received on Draft POS All Parties Week of 5/20/2024

Receive Bond Rating District and Speer By 5/31/2024

Finalize and Distribute POS Speer By 6/6/2024

Distribute Draft of Bond Ordinance Bond Counsel Week of 6/10/2024

Sale (Closed Speer Auction) All Parties 6/20/2024

Bond Ordinance Adopted District 6/20/2024

Closing All Parties 7/9/2024

Newspaper Publication

Board Action

Speer Financial, Inc.

Crystal Lake Park District
General Obligation Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2024A

Financing Timetable























































            

Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 

 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:  April 11, 2024 
  
TO:  Park Board of Commissioners   
 
FROM:  Amy Olson – Manager of Planning and Development 
 
SUBJECT:  Burke Great Play Giveaway–Win the Ultimate Playground  
  Upgrade! 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Burke is hosting a play giveaway for a new playground.  The play equipment would be 
a wonderful replacement opportunity at Knack Park which has been identified in our 
Comprehensive Masterplan as a Priority A for replacement.   
 

 
This playground, valued at $ 41,000, is the giveaway. Winner to select colors. 

 
This opportunity is like the lottery, the more entries, the better chances of winning the 
giveaway as per the sweepstakes rules.  The deadline to enter is 5/17/2024. 
 



            

Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 

 

We propose asking CLPD staff submit entries along with posting on social media to ask 
our community to submit entries on our behalf--and ask that you submit an entry too! 
 
Images of Knaack Park Playground 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
This is for discussion purposes. 
 



 

 

  

 

Report to the Board from: Jason Herbster 

Date: April 9, 2024 

Barlina Barn Tour 

A tour of Barlina Barn was provided to resident Jim Heisler on March 12, 2024, so 

he could gain a better understanding of the current condition of the structure. 

While he understood the concerns with the current conditions, he felt the 

internal structure was solid and the barn worth the consideration of saving.  

NISRA Outdoor Space 

NISRA is considering improving outdoor space at the Sage Therapeutic 

Recreation Center in Crystal Lake. They are looking to add a small basketball 

court and play area. NISRA Executive Director Jim Weisman asked if I would 

review their plan, walk the area and provide feedback on the potential project. 

This improvement would be a nice addition to the facility. My recommendation 

was to reach out to the City to determine zoning requirements, storm water 

requirements and any other pre-planning task that should be done with a 

project of this nature.  

Annual Staff Performance Reviews 

Time was spent this past month completing and providing staff with their annual 

performance review. This is always a nice time of year to reflect on the 

accomplishments of the past year along with areas to improve that will help 

staff continue to develop along with continuing to move the organization 

forward. 

NRPA Staff Tour 

On March 15, 2024, Alexandra Reynolds, Associate Editor of NRPA magazine 

and Crystal Lake resident, toured the Crystal Lake Park District. Alexandra works 

for NRPA remotely and they encourage staff to get out and learn about their 

local recreation agency. We completed an in depth tour of the Park District and 

it was a terrific opportunity to showcase what is offered to the community. 



Alexandra took an interest the Sterne’s Fen and the uniqueness it brings to the 

area. She has reached out to do a story on the fen with the assistance of John 

Fiorina and Preston Skultety. 

Crystal Lake Chamber of Commerce 

An ambassador meeting was attended this past month along with a ribbon 

cutting for the new housing complex, Enclave, located at Crystal Lake Avenue 

and Main Street. This new development was nice and is a great addition to the 

downtown area. 

Crystal Lake Parks Initiative Foundation 

The Crystal Lake Parks Initiative Foundation has been hard at work over the past 

month preparing for the 2024 cardboard regatta. All foundation members have 

been doing an excellent job trying to secure sponsorships, putting together the 

day of needs for the event and everything in between. The addition of three 

new members has helped as they have hit the ground running and are 

contributing to the tasks at hand. Manager of Program Services, Heidi Stolt, has 

joined the group as a staff liaison and is learning what she can do to help. The 

foundation meets again on April 10, 2024, to begin solidifying the plans for the 

regatta. 

Prairie Ridge High School Marketing Class 

Superintendent Reckamp, Manager Stolt and I met with the marketing class at 

Prairie Ridge High School to present our project regarding teen programming at 

the Park District. The students were very professional and fully engaged in what it 

was we were presenting. They had several good questions, and we are 

confident that they will present us with excellent ideas on what we may be able 

to do for the teens in our community. Presentations are expected to take place 

on April 22nd and April 24th at Prairie Ridge high school. All board members are 

invited to attend these presentations. 

 

 



    
Report to the Board from:  Tina Becke, Superintendent of Business Services  

Date: April 12, 2024 
 
2023/24 Budget/YTD Recap 
Month-end financial and treasurer reports for the month ending March 31, 2024 
are included in the board packets.  
 
The Revenue Producing Funds report for March 2024 as compared to March 
2023 provides a more accurate picture of the District’s operation funds. For 
March Activity, the Total Variance includes the 2023 Board approved transfer of 
funds from Corporate and Recreation to Capital Projects for $1,000,000. This also 
affects the Year-to-Date Activity Total, which in 2024, the transfers were 
$1,600,000 from Corporate, $840,000 from Recreation, and $200,000 from the 
Racket Club. 
 
2024/25 Budget 
The Budget and Appropriation ordinance has been prepared in tentative form 
and is conveniently available to public inspection for at least 30 days prior to 
final action thereon. 
 
New Hires and Returning Employees 
Employee training took place for the thirty-two additional employees processed 
into the payroll system in March 2024. 
 
Statement of Economic Interest 
All filers have completed their statements. 
 
Purchasing Card  
Fifth Third distributed the 2023 Commercial Card Rebate and we received 
$9,276.24.  
 
 
 
 

Rebate History 

Spend Year Rebate Amt Increase over 

2019 $ 1,123.97 Previous Year 

2020 $ 2,932.40 $1,808.43 

2021 $ 4,255.92 $1,323.52 

2022 $ 6,827.72 $2,571.80 

2023 $ 9,276.24 $2,448.52 

Total $24,416.25  



4/12/2024 4:42:15 PM Page 1

Monthly Budget Report
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

Account Typ…

YTD
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining Total Budget
March

Activity
March

Budget

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
YTD

Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue 1,338,468.50113,392.14 1,229,753.54104,626.22 1,336,780.32 8.70%-7.73%-8,765.92 107,026.78

Expense 1,394,921.50112,268.09 1,298,525.79134,818.29 1,312,634.77 -1.09%-20.09%-22,550.20 -14,108.98

Total Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION: -56,453.001,124.05 -68,772.25-30,192.07 24,145.55-31,316.12 92,917.80

Center: 14 - POLICE

Expense 29,407.002,403.71 26,768.431,891.16 17,654.60 34.05%21.32%512.55 9,113.83

Total Center: 14 - POLICE: 29,407.002,403.71 26,768.431,891.16 17,654.60 34.05%21.32%512.55 9,113.83

Total Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB: -85,860.00-1,279.66 -95,540.68-32,083.23 6,490.95-30,803.57 102,031.63

Report Total: -85,860.00-1,279.66 -95,540.68-32,083.23 6,490.95-30,803.57 102,031.63

tbecke
Cross-Out

tbecke
Rectangle

tbecke
Typewritten Text
Annual Payback for Capital Projects Budgeted in Capital Fund  (58,698.50)  Court Contract total $821,779/14

tbecke
Typewritten Text
YTD Activity Column Report Total less Annual Payback for Capital Projects Budgeted in Capital Fund (52,207.55)  

tbecke
Typewritten Text
The $200,000 transfer to Capital Projects was completed in February 2024.



 

 

Report to the Board from: Erik Jakubowski, Superintendent of Park Services 

 

Date:  April 4th, 2024 

 

Overview of park projects and work performed for the month of March: Staff worked on 

the following as well as general custodial and maintenance. 

Grounds: 

• Prep and get mini golf ready for opening day 

• Firewood sale 

• Preseason inspections of all sports fields  

• Clean up planting beds 

Maintenance: 

• Replaced batteries in all smoke detectors, Day Light Savings 

• Ready mini golf for opening; repairing ponds, etc. 

• Build new picnic tables for upcoming season 

• Replacing HVAC filters at all applicable buildings 

Natural Resources 

• Seeding 

• Volunteer Day  

• Burning at Fetzner 

• Clearing at Grand Oaks 

Special Events, Recreation, Affiliate Groups & Miscellaneous: 

• Replacing banners @ Administration, Barlina, Main & Palmer House  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Breakdown of hours Park Services:  March 2023 and March 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION & PAINTING 

(Inspections & trash pick-up hours are noted in black also) 

 

MAINTENANCE:  CUSTODIAL:  GROUNDS: MOWING: VANDALISM: WEEKEND:  
 

 

 

 
 

YEAR   2023 2024 

MAINTENANCE: 1064.00 938.50 

GROUNDS: 1197.50 1087.50 

CUSTODIAL: 325.50 425.00 

TRASH PICKUP:  161.00 163.00 

VANDALISM: 0.50 0.00 

IRRIGATION: 0.00 0.00 

SNOW REMOVAL:  189.00 92.00 

ICE RINK MAINTENANCE:  0.00 0.00 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE:  102.50 52.50 

TRUCK MAINTENANCE:  83.50 72.50 

MISCELLANEOUS:   70.50 150.50 

RECYCLING:  0.00 0.00 

SAFETY TRAINING:   0.00 45.50 

Weekly Hours 3,194.00 3,027.00 

Weekend/Holidays/Includes weekend inspections & snow removal 74.00 72.50 

Custodial Weekend/Holiday 51.50 106.00 

Weekend/Holiday hours 125.50 178.50 

BUILDINGS 43.00 39.50 

GROUNDS & DOG PARK GROUNDS  34.00 31.50 

PLAYGROUNDS/TENNIS COURTS/EXERCISE EQUIPMENT 30.50 20.50 

SKATE PARK 0.00 17.50 

SLED HILLS 15.50 9.00 

BATTING CAGES: 0.00 1.50 

TOTAL INSPECTION HOURS 123.00 119.50 

TOTAL HOURS/MONTH 3,442.50 3,325.00 



ADMINISTRATION 
CENTER: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 13.50 

CUSTODIAL 56.00 

GROUNDS 25.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 96.50 

 

ASBURY PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

BRIGHTON OAKS:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.50 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 7.00 

 

BUTTERNUT PRESERVE:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 8.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 13.50 

 

CANTERBURY:  

MAINTENANCE 1.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 2.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 6.50 

 

CRESS CREEK 
PROPERTY:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 0.50 

 

DELLA STREET PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

FEINBERG PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

 



FETZNER PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 5.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 10.00 

 

FOUR COLONIES:  

MAINTENANCE 1.50 

GROUNDS 7.50 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 13.50 

 

GRAND OAKS: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 128.00 

CUSTODIAL 65.00 

GROUNDS 1.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 217.50 

 

HAMPTON PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 0.50 

 

 

HIDDEN POND:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 0.50 

 

HILLFARM: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 0.50 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection     Barn 0.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

BARLINA HOUSE: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 1.50 

CUSTODIAL 46.50 

GROUNDS 14.00 

Building inspection 1.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 2.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 66.00 

 

POLICE HOUSE: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 0.50 

CUSTODIAL 5.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 6.50 

 

 



INDIAN PRAIRIE: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 4.50 

GROUNDS 14.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 26.50 

 

KEN BIRD  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

KNAACK PARK  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 2.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 6.00 

 

LADD PARK  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 2.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 6.00 

 

 

LAPINS PARK  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

LIPPOLD PARK  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 188.00 

MOWING / MISC. WEEK 0.00 

Grounds inspection 1.00 

Playground inspection 0.00 
Exercise equipment 

inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 11.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 

209.5
0 

 

LIPPOLD BATTING 

CAGES:  

MAINTENANCE 52.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

Inspections 1.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 53.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LIPPOLD BONCOSKY 
COMPLEX 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 0.50 

CUSTODIAL 3.50 

GROUNDS 14.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 2.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 23.50 

 

LIPPOLD DOG PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 2.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 10.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 16.50 

 

DISC GOLF:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

LIPPOLD FOOTBALL 
FIELDS 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 1.50 

CUSTODIAL 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

GOLF LEARNING 
CENTER 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 99.50 

GROUNDS 20.00 

MOWING 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 119.50 

 

MINI GOLF  

MAINTENANCE 213.50 

GROUNDS 178.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 391.50 

 

LIPPOLD LITTLE 

LEAGUE 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 0.50 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

TOTAL HOURS: 4.00 

 

LIPPOLD MICKEY SUND 
FIELDS  

MAINTENANCE 1.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 4.00 

 

 

 

 



LIPPOLD SKATE PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Inspections 17.50 

TRASH PICK UP 2.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 19.50 

 

LIPPOLD SOCCER 
FIELDS 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 10.00 

CUSTODIAL 13.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 34.00 

 

LIPPOLD STORAGE 
COMPOUND 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 4.00 

GROUNDS 60.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 65.50 

 

MAIN BEACH 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 75.00 

CUSTODIAL 40.00 

GROUNDS 79.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

WATER READINGS: 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 218.50 

 

MAINTENANCE GARAGE 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 31.00 

GROUNDS 52.00 

MOWING 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 1.50 

TOTAL HOURS: 84.50 

 

SAFETY TRAINING: 45.50 

 

EQUIPMENT 
MAINTENANCE: 52.50 

 

TRUCK MAINTENANCE: 72.50 

 

NAOKI KAMIJIMA  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

NISRA 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 8.00 

CUSTODIAL 30.50 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 38.50 

 

 

 

 

 



OAK HOLLOWS PARK  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 0.50 

 

PALMER HOUSE 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 2.00 

CUSTODIAL 8.00 

GROUNDS 1.00 

MOWING 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TOTAL HOURS: 15.00 

 

RACKET CLUB 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 9.00 

GROUNDS 103.00 

MOWING 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

Building inspection 2.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TOTAL HOURS: 

114.5
0 

 

SAMUEL JOHNS:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 3.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 7.00 

 

SEMINARY:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 2.50 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 7.00 

 

SHAMROCK HILLS 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 2.50 

CUSTODIAL 6.00 

GROUNDS 22.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 36.00 

 

SPOERL PARK 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 25.00 

CUSTODIAL 20.50 

GROUNDS 13.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 3.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 77.00 

 

STERLING MEADOWS 
PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 2.50 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 3.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 6.50 



 

STERNES WOODS: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 8.00 

CUSTODIAL 11.00 

GROUNDS 6.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

Grounds inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 48.00 

 

Beal's & Christ's Properties  
SUNSET MEADOWS 
PARK: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 9.00 

GROUNDS 29.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 39.00 

 

 

VETERANS ACRES 
PARK 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 36.50 

CUSTODIAL 21.00 

GROUNDS 110.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.00 

Grounds inspection 1.00 

Playground inspection 0.50 

Splash Pad inspections 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 10.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 203.50 

 

 

 

NATURE CENTER: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 134.00 

CUSTODIAL 21.00 

GROUNDS 33.00 

Building inspection 2.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 210.50 

 

ROTARY BUILDING 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 27.50 

CUSTODIAL 18.50 

GROUNDS 0.00 

Building inspection 0.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 52.50 

 

OAKWOODS LODGE 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

CUSTODIAL 15.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

Building inspection 0.50 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 24.00 

 

WEST BEACH 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 19.50 

CUSTODIAL 28.00 

GROUNDS 29.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 96.50 

 

 

 



WILLOWS EDGE PARK: 0.0 

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

WINDING CREEK PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

WOODLAND ESTATE 
PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.00 

 

WOODSCREEK PARK 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 18.00 

CUSTODIAL 16.50 

GROUNDS 61.50 

MOWING 0.00 

Building inspection 1.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 0.50 

Splash pad inspection 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 5.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 120.00 

 

WYNDWOOD PARK:  

MAINTENANCE 0.00 

GROUNDS 0.00 

MOWING 0.00 

Grounds inspection 0.50 

Playground inspection 1.00 

TRASH PICK UP 4.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

TOTAL HOURS: 5.50 

 

MISCELLANEOUS: 150.50 
SLED HILL 
INSPECTIONS 9.00 

Indian Prairie 3.00 

Babe Ruth Hill 3.00 

Nature Center Hill 3.00 

  
Total Sled hill 
inspections 9.00 

 

 

TOTAL SNOW REMOVAL 92.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BUILDING 
MAINTENANCE: 0.00 

MAINTENANCE 938.50 

GROUNDS 1087.50 

CUSTODIAL 425.00 

MOWING 0.00 

TRASH PICK UP 163.00 

VANDALISM 0.00 

IRRIGATION 0.00 

ICE RINKS 0.00 

SNOW REMOVAL 92.00 

WATER READINGS 0.00 

SAFETY TRAINING 45.50 

EQUIPMENT 
MAINTENANCE 52.50 

TRUCK MAINTENANCE 72.50 

MISCELLANEOUS 150.50 

RECREATION 0.00 

RECYCLING 0.00 

SPECIAL EVENTS 0.00 

AFFILIATE GROUPS 0.00 

 Weekly Hours 3027.00 

 

Weekend Hours  

Weekend / Holiday Hours 72.50 

Custodial Weekend / Holiday 106.00 

  

Weekend / Holiday hours 178.50 

 

Total Hours: Week 3325.00 

 

Inspection Hours:  

BUILDING 39.50 

GROUNDS 31.50 

PLAYGROUNDS  20.50 

BATTING CAGES 1.50 

SKATE PARK 17.50 

SLED HILLS 9.00 

ICE RINK 0.00 

  
TOTAL INSPECTION 

HRS. 119.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 

     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

 
 
Report to the Board from:  Manager of Park Planning and Development 
 
Date:  April 11, 2024 
 
 
Haligus Road Park Project Update 
We are reviewing construction documents and anticipate finalizing the drawings for bid letting 
in the upcoming weeks.   
 
Main Beach Back Deck and Awnings 
New fabric was installed on the west awnings and new entry awnings were installed over two 
doors at the east side of Main Beach Pavilion.  

  
New Decks at Main Beach 
 

  



Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

  
New Fabric on West Awnings 
 

  
New Awnings over Entrances 
 
Spoerl Park Playground Surfacing Project 
The playground surfacing project is complete with new artificial turf.  Cushiony soft, the new 
playground surfacing passed attenuation testing with ease. 

 



Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

 

 

Nature Center Interpretive Exhibits Project  
Exhibit Concepts shall be installing the new interpretive exhibits in the next two weeks, starting 
Monday April 15.  The grand re-opening is scheduled for Saturday, June 1 to welcome our 
community to see the new exhibits.  A fun-filled day is planned with hands-on activities 
focused on nature and the three unique ecosystems found at Veteran Acres, Wyngate Prairie 
and Sterns Woods and Fen parks.   
 

  



Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

John Fiorina, Interpretive Services Facility Manager, has been coordinating with Parks staff to 
repair, clean, build new walls, buff and polish the floor, fix the columns and more at the Nature 
Center in preparation for the new exhibits!  How the floor sparkles! 

 

 

  



Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

Main Beach Deck Replacement Project 
The back decks at Main Beach have been replaced with new composite wood decking.   
 

 
The previous deck is warped with uneven surface boards. 
 

 
Deck supports are installed in preparation for the surface decking 
 



Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood  
1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014     815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 
     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 
 

 
The decks are now complete. 
 
North Rotary Shelter Replacement Project Update 
The shelter has been ordered and permit documents submitted.  We are approximately 12 
plus weeks out before delivery.  Contractor Team Reil is waiting for the delivery date in order to 
schedule out their site work.  
 
Com-Ed Green Region Grant Project at the Nature Center Entrance 
Staff are organizing a volunteer planting Saturday morning planting event for mid-May. 
Volunteers include the Crystal Lake Dawnbreakers Rotary Club along with Boy Scout Troop 
165.  The Board will be updated as soon as a date has been set for the event. 

 

 



 

 

 
 

From: Kurt Reckamp, Superintendent of Recreation Programs and Facility Services 

Date: April 2024 

 

 

Submitted by Cultural Arts and Special Events Supervisor, Emma Koenig 

(Itty Bitty Ballerina Dance Class, Son Date Night, Puzzle Paloooza Spring ’24)) 

 

Dance/Baton: Dance and baton classes continue to progress throughout the session. Costumes have 

been ordered and our instructors are busy finalizing recital routines with our dancers. The recital is set 

Fund: 02 - RECREATION Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total  $        182,312  $        213,444  $        233,621  $     3,625,199  $     4,177,673  $     4,580,195 

Expense Total  $        240,020  $        279,950  $     1,137,657  $     2,755,991  $     3,550,697  $     4,664,412 

Surplus (Deficit)  $        (57,708)  $        (66,506)  $      (904,036)  $        869,208  $        626,976  $         (84,217)

Fund 08 - NATURAL HISTORY Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total  $            1,939  $            2,293  $            2,981  $        299,210  $        311,663  $        353,896 

Expense Total  $          21,566  $          21,036  $          24,141  $        239,578  $        250,701  $        277,632 

Surplus (Deficit)  $        (19,627)  $        (18,743)  $        (21,160)  $          59,632  $          60,962  $          76,264 

Fund: 11 - AQUATIC Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total  $            3,960  $            3,114  $            3,163  $        248,297  $        257,239  $        289,822 

Expense Total  $            4,743  $          10,182  $            6,174  $        250,508  $        366,337  $        353,916 

Surplus (Deficit)  $             (783)  $          (7,068)  $          (3,011)  $           (2,211)  $       (109,098)  $         (64,094)

Fund: 12 - FOOD SERVICE Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total  $               328  $               235  $               429  $        139,016  $        158,584  $        151,877 

Expense Total  $             (153)  $               691  $               949  $        105,370  $        137,904  $        144,266 

Surplus (Deficit)  $               481  $             (456)  $             (520)  $          33,646  $          20,680  $            7,611 

Fund: 19 - DRIVING RANGE Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total  $                   7  $               301  $               767  $        155,689  $        166,072  $        226,484 

Expense Total  $               487  $            1,575  $            1,018  $          70,180  $        145,011  $        107,902 

Surplus (Deficit)  $             (480)  $          (1,274)  $             (251)  $          85,509  $          21,061  $        118,582 

Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB Feb-22 Feb-23 Feb-24 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD 2024

Revenue Total 96,406$          108,781$        70,811$           $        993,187  $     1,120,351  $     1,232,154 

Expense Total 81,331$          95,790$          306,930$         $        805,683  $        880,184  $     1,193,579 

Surplus (Deficit)  $          15,075  $          12,991  $      (236,119)  $        187,504  $        240,167  $          38,575 



 

for Friday, May 24th at 7pm, and will take place at Crystal Lake South High School with a theme of 

“Welcome to the Jungle.” 

 

Ballroom & Line Dance: Both adult line dancing and ballroom classes have run for the Spring session. 

We are excited that these classes continue to have healthy enrollment and participation from the 

community. We have received positive feedback since opening the cash bar at Main Beach for our 

social dance nights. We will not be holding classes in the Summer but will be offering a Luau Line 

Dance event and some free lessons before the final Summer Concert at the Beach, for Hillbilly 

Rockstars, a country band. 

 

Theater: Our production of Into the Woods Jr. is well underway, and we are halfway through 

rehearsals. The cast meets on Mondays and Wednesdays to rehearse for the show, learning blocking, 

songs, choreography, and new scenes. Costumes have been ordered and parks is in the process of 

building set pieces. Our shows are at Crystal lake South High School at 7pm on both June 6th and 7th 

 

Voice: Voice is back, and class has plenty of registration to run. Miss Ava will be teaching the 8 week 

session the Summer. 

 

Art: Both adult and child art classes have run for every month of the Winter/Spring session. We look 

forward to offering new classes with new paintings for each month of the Summer. 

 

Cooking: Both the Winter and the Spring sessions had 9 and 7 participants, respectively. Unfortunately, 

this does not meet the minimum of 10 to run, so we have needed to cancel and refund. We are 

considering looking into a new contractor and offering classes with a lower minimum. 

 

Summer Concert Series 2023: Bands for the Summer Concert Series have been booked. We are so 

excited to welcome 7 professional groups, and our Voices in Harmony and Community Band to the 

beach to perform on Tuesday evenings this year. We are contracting B&B Productions again this year 

to provide high quality professional audio for the concerts. We will also have 2 food trucks and a 

dessert truck at each event. The complete list of performers is below: 

• 5/28: Kaleidoscope Eyes (Beatles Tribute) 

• 6/4: Community Band 

• 6/11: Classical Blast (classical Bach and rock) 

• 6/18: Valius (cover band) 

• 6/25: The Flat Cats (swing/big band) 

• 7/2: Voices in Harmony  

• 7/16: 28 Days (cover band) 

• 7/23: Rosie and the Rivets (60’s rock and roll) 

• 7/30: Community Band 

• 8/6: Hillbilly Rockstars (country) 

 

Son Date Night 2024: The Son Date Night went off without a hitch, we had 150 guests in attendance. 

Everyone enjoyed a Super Mario Brothers themed evening with a DJ, dancing, treats, ice cream, 

crafts, special characters, and more. Lots of memories were had by all, and we received positive 

feedback from multiple attendees. 

 

Princess Fest: We have maxed out for the first ever Princess Fest. We will have 75 in attendance. With 

a Lollapalooza style event, we will have 3 stages of meet and greet areas with 3 separate princesses, 

Cinderella, Tiana, and Ariel. 

 

 



 

Submitted by Recreation Aquatics Supervisor Stephanie Scott 

 

Beach Operations: Registration for Boat Launch Access, Lake Usage Decals, and Dry Storage at West 

Beach began on April 1. Paddlers and sailors lined up for registration for Dry Storage at West Beach 

as early as 4:45 AM on April 1. Dry Storage spots for kayaks and canoes sold out by noon on April 2. 

There are currently 3 spots remaining for sailboats. 

 

111 Boat Launch Access Fobs were sold in the first week. Thank you to Robin Oerkfitz, Tara Mackey, 

and Anne Sandor for their hard work and diligence in this first week of registration. 

 

Youth Volleyball: Enrollment for EVP Volleyball Skills and Drills classes decreased slightly from 13 

participants in February to 8 participants in March. We hosted a Volleyball Skills & Drills Spring Break 

Camp and had 8 participants ages 11-14. This is down significantly from 16 participants last year. 

 

Hot Shots Sports: A new session of Hot Shots Sports begins in April. Enrollment is already ahead of last 

session. Up-to-date numbers will be posted in the May board report. 

 

Martial Arts: Shotokan Karate started their Spring session in early April. Numbers are up slightly from 

last session with 21 participants enrolled but remain relatively low compared to 36 participants 

enrolled in 2023. In-house Hapkido remains popular with its second session in a row of maximum 

enrollment. We have seen a trend of parents enrolling alongside their children to participate in 

Hapkido as a family.  

 

Submitted by Lippold Park/Athletic Supervisor Ian Booker 

 

ASBB: The boys’ basketball league finished March 17th and the boys had another great season. Below 

are some compliments from volunteer coaches regarding the league.  

 

“I loved coaching this year. It was a great league and a great season. Hoping to do it the next 

couple years.” 

 

“It was fun to work with all the boys and watch them get better week after week. You run a great 

program and look forward to doing it again for my daughters.” 

 

“I just wanted to reach out to say thank you so much for a great season. It was a wonderful 

experience helping with After School Basketball. I really appreciate all your help throughout the 

year.” 

 

“Please keep me on list for next season.. I love it.” 

 

Lippold: The batting cages opened the last week of March. After last year’s break in, our Parks 

Department did an amazing job rebuilding the batting hut, installing new bill changers, token boxes 

and much needed other repairs. The community is happy the batting cages are open again for the 

year.   

 

Field maintenance staff were busy getting the turf fields set up for the season. A contractor finished 

installing new batters boxes on all four turf fields with new lines just in time for the first tournament 

hosted by One Nation on March 30.    

 

 

 



 

Submitted by Recreation Supervisor Sam Thompson 

 

Extended Time: For the Extended Time (E.T.) program, the waitlist is now in place for the remainder of 

the year. Registration for the 2024-25 academic year will open on May 1st for current families, and on 

May 15th for new families. 

 

Preschool: 68 students are currently enrolled for the 2024-2025 school year. We are planning a 

celebration for the Week of the Young Child from April 8th to April 12th, featuring themed dress-up 

days and school-wide activities. Notably, on April 2nd, a student's father graciously played guitar for 

the school, creating a sing-along event enjoyed by all. Additionally, we are preparing for a tornado 

drill on April 18th and 19th and are in the process of ordering school supplies for the next academic 

year. Our last field trip to Veteran Acres Park is scheduled for April 25th and 26th. Throughout the 

month, we are also organizing activities in anticipation of Mother’s Day. 

 

Summer Camp: Turning to our Camp programs, registration has significantly increased from with 

waitlists still open. The preschool camp has reached its full capacity of 40 children, with 19 additional 

children on the waitlist. We are currently seeking to recruit additional staff to accommodate this 

demand. Of the total camp registrants, 209 children are enrolled for the entire summer. 

 

Submitted by Recreation Supervisor Jennifer Peterson 

 

Seniors: Our efforts to engage seniors from our community at the Active Senior Center have been 

fruitful. Daily drop-in numbers remain robust across all days of the week, demonstrating consistent 

growth. 

 

Senior Trips: Our trip program has seen remarkable participation. The Billy Elliot trip accommodated 

14 participants with 6 on the waitlist. The Multi-cultural Food Tour of Chicago attracted 25 

participants, while Lunch at Enzo and Lucia hosted 14 participants with 11 on the waitlist. The Jolly Inn 

trip in March saw 14 participants with 10 on the waitlist. Our trip programming is expanding 

significantly. However, we face challenges in finding additional drivers to assist with trips or securing 

additional spots at venues. 

 

Senior Fitness: Our Senior Fitness program continues to thrive, evident from the daily punch pass 

numbers. 

 

Fitness: The spring session is scheduled to run from April to May. 

 

Youth: Unfortunately, no youth programs were conducted in March. We are optimistic about seeing 

improved enrollments in the upcoming spring session. 

 

Submitted by Racket Club Manager Rob Laue 

 

 

Court Usage (In Hours of Court Time) 

Month 

Permanen

t Court 

Time 

Open 

Court Time 

In-Club 

League 

Private 

Lesson 

Group 

Lesson 

Practice Lane 

(Paid / PCT 

Comp) 

TOTAL Usage % 

Mar 2024 710.5 976 36 296.5 367 68.25 / 132.75 2,386 68.1% 

Mar 2023 712.5 1482.5 30 279 398.25 83.5 / 217 2,902.25 78.3% 

Mar 2022 627.5 1423.5 22.5 244.5 351.25 113.5 / 151 2,669.25 71% 



 

Save for an exceedingly temperate stretch in its first week, March brought pretty dreary outdoor 

conditions and limited the appeal of outdoor play – unless you were a high school tennis team.  This 

spring brought record indoor reservation numbers for the local teams’ mid-March tryouts, but a great 

majority of those reservations fell through with weather in the high 40’s and low 50’s being just 

acceptable enough to brave the elements.  That, coupled with an earlier Spring Break & Easter, took 

a bite out of court usage this year. 

 

Outdoor Adventures Afoot: It sure was gratifying to put 

the outdoor hard court nets up this year on fully 

operational, rust-free posts anchored into brand new, 

uncracked courts.  The courts were readied for their 

maiden season right at the end of February and had 

some quality early traffic before the weather 

nosedived.  (McHenry County College’s team 

practice was the official christening, for the record.)  

The new grass is also coming in nicely and the 

electricity to Court 1 has been enabled.  Aside from 

the clay courts, which are set to be activated in May, 

things are all systems go out there.  Let the games 

begin. 

 

Quick Hits 

• Men’s Singles Scrambles were held March 1 & 22. 

• Coach Jon Betts’ USTA indoor winter league concluded on March 2. 

• A Friday Night Pickleball 

Mixer was held March 15. 

• A USTA Girls 16U 

tournament was held 

March 16. 

• Del Webb’s Tall Oaks 

Tennis Club held their 

monthly mixer on March 

23. 

• Spring Break was March 

25 – 30, during which time 

there were no classes & 

leagues.  The Club was 

closed on Easter (March 

31). 

• New wall padding was 

installed on Court 7 & the 

Practice Lane throughout 

the month.  What a 

difference – safer AND aesthetically pleasing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Submitted by Facility Rental / Food & Beverage Supervisor Antony Mores 

 

Facility Rentals: I am pleased to present our latest update on facility rentals, reflecting a positive 

trend that surpasses last year's figures for the same period. The current data indicates a noteworthy 

increase in rental activity by roughly 18%, showcasing our organization's ability to meet the evolving 

demands of our clientele. Notably, the Rotary Building and Grand Oaks facilities have demonstrated 

resilience by maintaining a consistent pace of bookings, underscoring their enduring appeal and 

reliability as preferred event venues. Additionally, we’re seeing an uptick in the use of smaller 

facilities, Woodscreek and Spoerl Park, as well as more inquiries concerning fundraisers and events 

with more community involvement. These are all welcomed signs that point to a strong finish for the 

fiscal year and signal an optimistic tone as we begin to look ahead to the next. Looking forward our 

strategic efforts will continue to revolve around enhancing customer experiences, optimizing facility 

utilization, and exploring opportunities to diversify our offerings. 

 

Submitted by Natural Resources and Interpretative Services Manager John Fiorina 

 

Visitation: The Nature Center remained closed during the month of March due to preparations for the 

instillation of the new exhibits.  However, the Colonel Palmer House was visited by 141 people, which 

brings the total number of visitors for the facility during the 2023/2024 fiscal year to 1,649.  This 

represents a 29% increase in visitation over the previous fiscal year.  The combined total number of 

visitors to both facilities during the current fiscal year is 17,301.   

 

Interpretive Services Fiscal Year to Date Visitation Report 

 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 2023/2024 

    Nature Center Palmer House 

May 0 718 1,343 1,867 356 

June 26 2,027 2,443 2,410 103 

July 408 1,558 2,188 2,263 115 

August 468 1,204 1,509 1,771 178 

September 289 809 1,282 1,109 69 

October 360 780 1,676 1,734 87 

November 173 770 1,403 1,818 157 

December 1,721 3,025 3,249 2,327 221 

January 292 0 694 0 94 

February 479 0 972 19 128 

March 641 133 1,445 334 141 

April 1,012 772 2,065 0 0 

Fiscal Year Total 5,869 11,796 20,269 17,301 

 

Volunteers: Volunteer service hours continue to be coordinated by Interpretive Services staff with 

assistance from Preston Skultety, Manager of Natural Resources.  During the month of March natural 

area volunteers contributed 72 hours of service.  Colonel Palmer House volunteers contributed 85.5 

hours of service during the same period, which brings the total number of volunteer service hours 

coordinated by Interpretive Services staff for the 2023/2024 fiscal year to 1,671.5.   

 

 



 

Interpretive Services Fiscal Year to Date Volunteer Report 

 

Natural 

Area 

Volunteer 

Hours 

Nature 

Cetner 

Volunteer 

Hours 

Palmer 

House 

Volunteer 

Hours 

Misc. Project 

Volunteer 

Hours 

Total 

Volunteer 

Hours 

May 54 0 109 0 163 

June 48 0 98 0 146 

July 32 5 71.5 148 256.5 

August 52 0 44 0 96 

September 45 0 72 30 147 

October 55 0 43.5 30 128.5 

November 33 50.75 80.5 0 164.25 

December 38 67.5 57 0 162.5 

January 34 0 105 0 139 

February 45 0 66.5 0 111.5 

March 72 0 85.5 0 157.5 

April 0 0 0 0 0 

Fiscal Year Total 508 123.25 832.5 208 1671.75 

 

Programs: During the month of March Interpretive Services staff provided a total of 22 programs, 

which reached 220 people.  There has been a total of 211 programs with 7,102 participants during 

the 2023/2024 fiscal year. 

 

Not included in the program numbers for March is an eclipse event held at the Nature Center on 

Monday, April 8, which was enjoyed by nearly 600 participants.  Also not included is the 1858, Once 

Upon a Springtime Tea program taking place at the Colonel Palmer House on Sunday April 14.  At the 

time of this writing, both sections of the program are at maximum enrollment. 

 

Interpretive Services Fiscal Year to Date Program Report 

  

Number of 
Programs 

Percentage of Total 
Programs 

Number of 
Participants 

Percentage of Total 
Participants 

Birthday / Private Tea 78 37.0% 1086 15.3% 

Cub Scout 11 5.2% 107 1.5% 

Boy Scout 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Girl Scout 21 10.0% 205 2.9% 

In District Fieldtrip 21 10.0% 590 8.3% 

Out-of-District Fieldtrip 18 8.5% 576 8.1% 

Brochure 39 18.5% 370 5.2% 

Traveling Naturalist 1 0.5% 60 0.8% 

Outreach 11 5.2% 751 10.6% 

Special Event 8 3.8% 3327 46.8% 

Building Rental/Use 3 1.4% 30 0.4% 

Fiscal Year Total 211   7102   

     



 

In addition to the programs that took place in March, Interpretive Services staff continue planning for 

several larger programs scheduled to take place in the coming months.  Among the programs are a 

park district staff open house/lunch at the Nature Center on Thursday, May 16, a volunteer planting 

event at the Nature Center on Saturday, May 18, the Grand Re-Opening of the Nature Center, 

scheduled for Saturday, June 1, and an event centered around the Blue Star Memorial at the 

Colonel Palmer House scheduled for Saturday, June 29.  The event at the Palmer House is entitled 

Honoring the Brave Heritage Fest and will include several local organizations and agencies, such as 

the Crystal Lake Public Library and the Blue Star Banner Committee. 

 

 

 

     
(participants enjoying themselves at the eclipse event at the Nature Center) 

Other: The Nature Center exhibits grant continues to move forward.  The main area of the building 

has been emptied and the floors have been cleaned and waxed.  The exhibits have been 

fabricated and are being prepared for shipping.  They are scheduled to arrive for installation on 

Monday, April 15. 

 



   
 

Report to the Board from:   

Jenny Leech, Marketing Manager, Jacqui Weber, Marketing Coordinator 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

Sponsorship and Advertising Update 

 
Other Marketing April 2024 

• NWH ads for April 

• Attended the D47 Summer Enrichment Fair on Apr 4 at Hannah Beardsley, 6-8 pm 

• Barlina House monthly newsletters 

• Barlina House Week of the Young Child flyer 

• Peachjar flyers 

• Proofs of summer brochure; sent to printer 

• Finalized concert signage 

• Special events meeting 

• Program and event photos and videos 

• Ordered more promo items  

• Banner trade with Dole for Lakeside Fest 

• Boncosky Beer schedule 

• Concessions feather flag 

• Safety action team flyer 

• Research onboarding promo items 

• Ordered concessions t-shirts 

• NC bird wall/NC timeline wall: designed murals 

• Intrepretive signs for NC landscape 

• Agent of Discovery planning 

• Finalized staff apparel catalogue 

• Ordered camp shirts for campers and staff 

• Updated facility rental marketing materials and printed 

• Created new banners for frames 

• Alice in Wonderland t-shirt 



 

 

 

Media Releases -15 media releases submitted and/or self-published Mar 1-Apr 9, 2024 

Advertising-4 weekly print ads published in Northwest Herald 

Press Submissions and Other Ads 

Submitted organization updates for the 2024 Crystal Lake Chamber Guide 

Ads submitted for 2024 Crystal Lake Chamber Guide, Guide in circulation late May 2024 

• Crystal Lake Park District General/Beaches 

• Lippold Family Golf Center 

• Barlina House 

• Racket Club 

• Grand Oaks Active Adults 

 

Park District Connect E-Newsletter March (sent Apr 2, 2024) 

5586 sends 

65% open rate (3568 opens) 

4% click rate (227 clicks) 

Industry averages:  

24% open rate 

3% click rate 

 

Popular Annual Financial Report E-News Distribution (sent Mar 11, 2024) 

6057 sends 

67% open rate (3972 opens) 

2% click rate (135 clicks) 

 

Current & Upcoming Publications 

PAFR (Popular Annual Financial Report)-mailed Mar 8 

Summer Camp Guide 2024-digital only, online and registration open since Feb 8 

Summer 2024 Activity Guide- proofing through Apr 15 when files go to printer. Digital guide 

online and registration opens May 3. Delivery to residences May 6-10, 2024. 

May Connect E-News-May 2, 2024 

Park Report Print Newsletter-to post office end of June 

 
Website 

Website updates are made as needed along with preparations now underway for all summer season 

website updates 

Page Views in Last 30 Days:  

42,646 page views (Mar-Apr) 

Compared to 38,195 page views (Feb-Mar)  

compared to 24,747 page views (Dec-Jan) 

Users (United States only) in Last 30 Days, (A user is a visitor to the site) 

12,241 user (Mar-Apr) 

11,716 users (Feb-March) 

10,494 users (Jan-Feb)  

7318 users (Dec-Jan) 

 

 

 

 



Sessions in Last 30 Days (A session is a group of user interactions with your website that take place 

within a given time frame. For example, a single session can contain multiple page views, or events) 

 

18,561 sessions (Mar-Apr) 

18,369 sessions (Feb-March) 

15,770 sessions (Jan-Feb)  

11,471 sessions (Dec-Jan) 

 

Top 10 Page title by Users 

Mar 1-Apr 9, 2024 

PAGE TITLE  USERS 

Home    6072  

Not set*  1001 

Calendar of Events  946 

Summer Day Camp 880 

Adult Sports  853 

Lippold Golf  771 

Beaches   644  

Job Opportunities 841 

Lippold Park  594 
*Google Analytics shares all visitors who do not have information about search words in "Not set". This can mean 

the traffic did not come from a search engine, but from a referral, directly or for example from an email 

campaign.  

 

Digital Guide Stats 

Winter-Spring Activity Guide plus Summer Camp Guide 
The current usage report is attached. This is the first reporting month since Google Analytics changed 

their reporting structure that includes both the main Program Guide and the Summer Camp Guide. As a 

result of their structure change, we are not able to separate out the usage of the Summer Guide. 

 

The February data attached includes both publications together. We will be able to separate out the 

versions next year by utilizing an updated URL for the summer guide. The main guide will remain at its 

current URL. 

 

  WINTER/SPRING     

  LIFETIME DECEMBER JANUARY 

Metrics Start Date 12/8/2023 12/8/2023 1/1/2024 

Metrics End Date 3/31/2024 12/31/2023 1/31/2024 
       

Unique Visitors                     9,900                     1,800                     2,400  

Issue Views                   15,549                     3,348                     4,470  

Page Views                 335,292                   93,502                   89,487  

Pages per Session                          22                          28                          20  

Average Engagement Time 3 mins 09 secs 3 mins 58 secs 2 mins 38 secs 

Click through Rate 27.63% 24.04% 14.65% 

Social Shares                          10                            3                            1  

PDF downloads of full guide                          63                          15                          12  

Search Queries                        500                        151                          99  

 
 

   

 



 

 

  +CAMP GUIDE +CAMP GUIDE 

  FEBRUARY MARCH 

Metrics Start Date 2/1/2024 3/1/2024 

Metrics End Date 2/29/2024 3/31/2024 

     

Unique Visitors                       3,100                        2,500  

Issue Views                       3,192                        4,539  

Page Views                     66,221                      86,082  

Pages per Session                            21                             19  

Average Engagement 
Time 

2 mins 49 secs 2 mins 34 secs 

Click through Rate 15.26% 28.93% 

Social Shares                              2                               4  

PDF downloads of full 
guide 

                           24                             12  

Search Queries                          154                             96  

 
 

  

 

 

Crystal Lake Park District Social Media 

Staff schedules content each week for all Park District social media pages and reviews daily for 

questions, comments, and reactions. We also monitor community pages for park district related items 

that need a park district response. Marketing reviews for increases in followers/likes, what posts are 

getting top engagement, timing on posts and comparisons to other similar park district and community 

pages in all those areas. Park District social media pages include multiple Facebook pages (facilities, 

parks, and general park district), Twitter and Instagram.  

 

February-March Follower Stats 

General Park District Social Media 

Facebook: 12,557 followers, up 119 

X (formerly Twitter): 498 followers, down 1 

Instagram: 2672 followers, up 4  

Park District facility and park Facebook pages-most active 

Barlina House Preschool 260 followers, down 2 

Crystal Lake Park District Nature Center 2303 followers, up 124 

Main Beach 6035 followers, up 274 

Colonel Palmer House 642 followers, same 

Lippold Park 1172 followers, same 

Lippold Park Boncosky 371 followers, up 6 

Grand Oaks 194 followers, up 14 

Main Beach Pavilion 994 followers, up 12 

Veteran Acres 3518 followers, up 102 

Sternes Woods 1061, up 30 followers 

Lippold Park Family Golf Center 479 followers, up 6 

The Racket Club 858 followers, up 2 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Page Overview (last 28 days, Mar 12-Apr 9) Crystal Lake Park District 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Top 10 Reaching Content Mar 12-Apr 9 (last 28 days) 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Benchmarking to other similar Facebook pages (Mar 12-Apr 8, 2024) 

Marketing continues to monitor similar Facebook pages (park districts, recreation departments, 

community partners etc.) to see how our performance compares. The Park District performance is 

compared in the following areas: increased growth (likes) and total content created (posts). Of the 50+ 

similar pages we have chosen to benchmark from, the Crystal Lake Park District has consistently 

maintained a ranking of 8th  within the similar industry pages we have selected as our benchmarks. Top 

pages above the Park District include City of Elgin, Rockford Park District, Naperville Park District, 

McHenry County Conservation District, Real Woodstock and Three Oaks Recreation. 

 

 

 



 

Page 1  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

 

Report to the Board From:  John Longo, Chief of Police 

Date:  April 1, 2024 

Monthly police statistics 

Statistical information is collected and reviewed monthly as a measure of performance, 

to identify crime patterns and predictability of areas of attention for future police patrols. 

The Park District Police Department compiles statistical information on both criminal 

complaints/offenses and calls for service officers respond to or discover during their 

patrols. Included please find the current statistics from which the following observations 

can be made.  
 

Calls for service 

During the month of February, Park Police handled calls 23 for service. The following is a 

summary from our CAD system, detailing those incidents and locations they originated.  

Case Numbers Problem Address Response Date 

CP-24-000044 INFORMATION FOR POLICE 300 Lake Shore Dr 3/3/2024 9:11 

CP-24-000045 
ANIMAL OTHER ANIMAL 
COMPLAINT 

180 Midlane Dr 3/4/2024 10:52 

CP-24-000046 FOUND ARTICLE 5617 E Hillside Rd 3/6/2024 15:29 

CP-24-000047 OUTSIDE ASSIST POLICE 40 N Williams St 3/7/2024 17:46 

CP-24-000048 OUTSIDE ASSIST POLICE 5580 Northwest Hwy 3/9/2024 9:08 

CP-24-000049 BATTERY 180 Midlane Dr 3/10/2024 17:22 

CP-24-000050 ANIMAL BITE 851 Route 176 Hwy 3/12/2024 14:02 

CP-24-000051 DISTURBANCE NON-SPECIFIC Thornwood Ln / Honeysuckle Dr 3/12/2024 18:37 

CP-24-000052 DRIVING COMPLAINT 951 Route 176 Hy 3/13/2024 18:33 

CP-24-000053 LOCK OUT POLICE 1420 Willow Tree Dr 3/15/2024 10:36 

CP-24-000055, CL-24-005056 OUTSIDE ASSIST POLICE Three Oaks Rd / Lutter Dr 3/15/2024 22:05 

CP-24-000056 HARASSMENT GENERAL 1420 Willow Tree Dr 3/17/2024 17:56 

CP-24-000057 OUTSIDE ASSIST POLICE 911 Tek Dr 3/17/2024 19:27 

CP-24-000058 PUBLIC INDECENCY 5617 E HILLSIDE RD 3/19/2024 11:55 

CP-24-000059 ASSIST FIRE 1051 ROUTE 176 HY 3/20/2024 17:04 

CP-24-000061 SUSPICIOUS AUTO 1151 Route 176 Hy 3/25/2024 20:18 

CP-24-000062 DRIVING COMPLAINT 925 SARASOTA LN 3/25/2024 22:56 

CP-24-000063 SUSPICIOUS INCIDENT 180 Midlane Dr 3/26/2024 16:01 

CP-24-000064 STRAY ANIMAL 1251 Route 176 Hy 3/29/2024 15:01 

CP-24-000065 SUSPICIOUS AUTO 300 Lake Shore Dr 3/29/2024 18:25 

CP-24-000066 TRAFFIC STOP 851 Route 176 Hy 3/29/2024 21:06 

CP-24-000067 DUMPING/LITTERING 851 Route 176 Hy 3/31/2024 9:21 

CP-24-000068 ASSIST FIRE 431 N Walkup Av 3/31/2024 19:22 

javascript:__doPostBack('ucPageContainer$ctl00$dgIncidentSummary$ctl02$ctl01','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ucPageContainer$ctl00$dgIncidentSummary$ctl02$ctl03','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ucPageContainer$ctl00$dgIncidentSummary$ctl02$ctl05','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ucPageContainer$ctl00$dgIncidentSummary$ctl02$ctl07','')


 

Page 2  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

Incidents of Note:  

Suicidal Subject:  On March 20, park police were dispatched to Lippold Park for a subject 

that had been drinking alcohol for a couple of days straight and stated that he didn’t 

want to live anymore. The subject also stated that he wanted help and would voluntarily 

go to the hospital.  Subject was transported by CLFR. 

Driving Complaint:  Park police were dispatched for Four Colonies Park for a driving 

complaint for a vehicle that was driving around the field and then hit the basketball pole 

in the park on March 25.  The occupants of the vehicle fled the scene and were not 

located, but it was determined that the vehicle had been stolen earlier in the evening. 

Citations Issued:  

(“W”=Warning, “56” = State Citation, “L056” = Park Ordinance Citation)  

In all, one(1) citations were issued during the month of September, including: 

O5604653 Speeding 3/29/2024 Route 176 at Lippold 

 

Training:  All Officers completed the monthly Police Law Institute on-line training which 

this month covered the topics below. 

 

 

Illinois Monthly Legal Update & Review™  
March 2024  

Reference & Review – Lesson Summary  
 

  

Pretextual Stops  
  The dictionary definition of pretext is "a reason or excuse given to hide the real reason for something." 

(The American Heritage Dictionary of the English Language). An Ohio court provided a very good basic 

definition of a pretextual stop:  

 "A stop is pretextual when a police officer uses a minor traffic violation as a justification to investigate a 

vague suspicion that a motorist might be engaging in illegal activity." (State v. Bishop, 95 Ohio App. 3d 

619 (Ohio Ct. App. 1994))  

 "Generally, a stop is considered 'pretextual' when a law enforcement officer observes or suspects a 

minor traffic infraction, and uses it to stop the vehicle and search it for evidence even though the officer 

has no legal basis to suspect the vehicle contains any illegal contraband or the occupants are engaged in 

any criminal activity." (People v. Roberts, 184 Cal.App.4th 1149 (Cal. Ct. App. 2010))  

  

f   



 

Page 3  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

Specific and Articulable Facts: Terry v. Ohio  
  When people discuss the law concerning searches and seizures, those two actions are usually listed in 

that order – first searches, then seizures. This is undoubtedly due to the position of those words in the 

U.S. Constitution: "The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, 

against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated...." (U.S. Constitution.  

Amendment IV)  

 However, logically that order is backwards when the search occurs during a pedestrian or traffic stop. 

Officers can't realistically search a moving object, so a stop must come before it. By definition, a 

pretextual stop also requires a stop, the legal standard from Terry v. Ohio – the case creating the “Terry 

stop."  

 Facts of the Case. A Cleveland law enforcement officer observed two men, one of whom was 

John W. Terry, walking back and forth in front of a store about a dozen times. The officer suspected the 

pair were preparing to commit a robbery. After the two were joined by a third man, the officer 

approached and asked all three for their names.  

 The men mumbled responses and continued walking. Increasingly suspicious, the officer grabbed Terry, 

spun him around, and patted down his clothing. He felt a handgun in Terry's coat pocket, but couldn't 

successfully remove it, so he ordered the three men into the store. Once there, he removed Terry's coat 

and the handgun. The officer proceeded to pat down the other two men, one of whom also had a gun. 

He later testified that he didn't place his hands beneath either man's clothing before feeling the guns 

they were carrying.  

 After being charged with carrying a concealed weapon, Terry argued that the search was 

unconstitutional. An appeals court and the  

Supreme Court of Ohio disagreed, allowing the gun to be admitted into evidence. Terry continued his 

appeals all the way up to the  

U.S. Supreme Court. (Terry v. Ohio, 392 US 1 (1968), the source of all subsequent quotes in this 

section unless cited otherwise)   The Questions Before the Court. "The question is whether in all 

the circumstances of this on-the-street encounter, [Terry's] right to personal security was violated by 

an unreasonable search and seizure."  

 Takeaway Ruling. "The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and 

effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, 
but upon probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be 

searched, and the persons or things to be seized." (U.S. Constitution, Fourth Amendment)  Prior to 
Terry, law enforcement officers had to assume that probable cause was required to stop an individual. 
After Terry, what they needed instead was reasonable suspicion based on "specific and articulable 

facts."   

 Reasonable Suspicion. "[I]n determining whether the officer acted reasonably in such 
circumstances, due weight must be given, not to his inchoate and unparticularized suspicion or 'hunch,' 

but to the specific reasonable inferences which he is entitled to draw from the facts in light of his 
experience."   



 

Page 4  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

 Specific and Articulable Facts. "And in justifying the particular intrusion the police officer must 
be able to point to specific and articulable facts which, taken together with rational inferences from 
those facts, reasonably warrant that intrusion.... And in making that assessment it is imperative that the 

facts be judged against an objective standard: would the facts available to the officer at the moment of 

the seizure or the search 'warrant a man of reasonable caution in the belief' that the action taken was 

appropriate?"  
(citing Carroll v. United States, 267 U.S. 132 (1925) and Beck v. Ohio, 379 U.S. 89 (1964))  

 Implications for Law Enforcement. "An investigatory stop must be justified by some objective 
manifestation that the person stopped is, or is about to be, engaged in criminal activity." (United States 

v. Cortez, 449 U.S. 411 (1981))    

    

Right to Leave Investigatory Stops: Florida v. Royer  
  This 1983 U.S. Supreme Court case examines the nuances of lawful stops and the questions law 

enforcement officers may ask. It also clarifies the rights of citizens, and the limitation of officers when 

they initiate contact for investigatory reasons.  

 Facts of the Case. In January 1978, two plainclothes detectives investigating drug activity took 
note of Mark Royer at the Miami International Airport. Believing Royer's "appearance, mannerisms, 
luggage, and actions fit the so-called 'drug courier profile,'" they watched him use cash to purchase a 
one-way ticket to New York City. He checked two suitcases, each bearing an ID tag with the name Holt.  
 They approached Royer, identified themselves as law enforcement officers, and asked Royer if he had a 

"moment" to speak with them. Royer said, "yes," and they asked to see his plane ticket and driver's 

license. Silently, Royer produced them, and the detectives learned that his name didn't match the one 

on the luggage tags. Royer explained that a friend made his reservation in that name.  Royer grew 

increasingly nervous once the detectives informed him they were narcotics investigators, and had 

reason to suspect him of transporting illegal drugs. They asked Royer to accompany them to a small 

nearby room with a desk and two chairs. Without consent, one detective used Royer's ticket stubs to 

retrieve the "Holt" bags, brought them to the room, and asked him for consent to search them. Royer 

remained silent, but unlocked one bag containing illegal drugs. When the detective asked if he could 

open the second bag (Royer didn't know the lock combination), he said, "Go ahead." It took 15 minutes 

after first approaching Royer to find the narcotics.  

 Before his trial for felony drug possession, Royer moved to suppress the evidence obtained in the bag 

searches. The motion failed, and Royer was convicted. The appeals court reversed, ruling that: Royer 

had been involuntarily confined without probable cause; the detention exceeded the limited restraint 

permitted by Terry v. Ohio; and Royer's "consent" to search the bags was invalid because of the 

unlawful confinement. (Florida v. Royer, 460 U.S. 491 (1983), the source of all subsequent quotes in this 

section unless cited otherwise)  

 The Questions Before the Court. "We are required in this case to determine whether ... Royer 

was being illegally detained at the time of his purported consent to a search of his luggage."   

 Approaching a Person to Ask a Question isn't Legally a Seizure. "[L]aw enforcement officers 
do not violate the Fourth Amendment by merely approaching an individual on the street or in another 

public place, by asking him if he is willing to answer some questions, by putting questions to him if the 



 

Page 5  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

person is willing to listen, or by offering in evidence in a criminal prosecution his voluntary answers to 

such questions."  

 "[I]f there is no detention—no seizure within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment—then no 

constitutional rights have been infringed."   

 Refusing to Answer is Lawful as Well. "The person approached, however, need not answer 

any question put to him; indeed, he  

may decline to listen to the questions at all and may go on his way.”   

 Refusal to Answer Questions Doesn't Justify Investigatory Action. "He [the suspect] may not 
be detained even momentarily without reasonable, objective grounds for doing so; and his refusal to 
listen or answer does not, without more, furnish those grounds."  "We have consistently held that a 

refusal to cooperate, without more, does not furnish the minimal level of objective justification needed 

for a detention or seizure." (Florida v. Bostick, 501 U.S. 429 (1991))  

 Implications for Law Enforcement. "[S]tatements given during a period of illegal detention are 
inadmissible even though voluntarily given if they are the product of the illegal detention and not the 
result of an independent act of free will." (citing  

Dunaway v. New York, 442 U.S. 200 and Brown v. Illinois, 422 U.S. 590 (1975))   

 "When the detectives identified themselves as narcotics agents, told respondent he was suspected of 

transporting narcotics, and asked him to accompany them to the police room, while retaining his airline 

ticket and driver's license and without indicating in any way that he was free to depart, respondent was 

effectively seized for purposes of the Fourth Amendment." (slip op.)  

 "We also think that the officers' conduct was more intrusive than necessary to effectuate an 

investigative detention otherwise authorized by the Terry line of cases. First, by returning his ticket and 

driver's license, and informing him that he was free to go if he so desired, the officers might have 

obviated any claim that the encounter was anything but a consensual matter from start to finish."   

Recommendation: Ask, Then Tell. Incriminating evidence against Royer's drug trafficking activities was 

ruled inadmissible because he consented to a search of his luggage only after the detectives had illegally 

seized him.  

 Royer directly states how law enforcement officers can prevent that outcome, even when they want to 

investigate, but lack sufficient facts for reasonable suspicion: instead of commanding someone to start 

answering questions, ask them if they're willing to do so; and assuming they are willing, make sure to 

tell them that they're free to go.  

 Royer tells officers that those actions help prove incriminating statements obtained in casual 

questioning are truly voluntary: "We also think that the officers' conduct was more intrusive than 

necessary to effectuate an investigative detention otherwise authorized by the Terry line of cases. First, 

by returning his ticket and driver's license, and informing him that he was free to go if he so desired, the 

officers might have obviated any claim that the encounter was anything but a consensual matter from 

start to finish."  

       



 

Page 6  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

Legal Pretextual Stops: Whren v. United States  
  Widely acknowledged as the most authoritative U.S. Supreme Court case on the topic, Whren v. United 

States establishes the conditions under which pretextual stops are constitutionally permissible.   

 Facts of the Case. In 1995, two plainclothes law enforcement officers were patrolling a "high 

drug area" in an unmarked vehicle.  

They observed a truck idling "unusually long" at a stop sign, and suspected the truck may be waiting for 

drug buyers.  

 When the officers made a U-turn to investigate, the truck's driver, James Brown, suddenly turned 

without signaling, and sped off at an "unreasonable" speed. The officers stopped the truck, citing 

traffic violations, and noticed passenger Michael Whren holding several plastic bags of crack cocaine in 

his hands. They then arrested both of the vehicle's occupants for felony drug crimes.  At the pretrial 

suppression hearing, the appellants challenged the stop's legality, which led to the seizure of the drugs 

that the prosecution had planned to introduce into evidence:  

 "They [Brown and Whren] argued that the stop had not been justified by probable cause to believe, or 

even reasonable suspicion, that petitioners were engaged in illegal drug-dealing activity; and that Officer 

Soto's asserted ground for approaching the vehicle — to give the driver a warning concerning traffic 

violations — was pretextual." (Whren v. United States, 517 U.S. 806 (1996), the source of all subsequent 

quotes in this section unless cited otherwise)   

 The Question Before the Court. "In this case we decide whether the temporary detention of a 
motorist who the police have probable cause to believe has committed a civil traffic violation is 
inconsistent with the Fourth Amendment's prohibition against unreasonable seizures unless a 

reasonable officer would have been motivated to stop the car by a desire to enforce the traffic laws."   

 Probable Cause. "As a general matter, the decision to stop an automobile is reasonable where the 
police have probable cause to believe that a traffic violation has occurred."  

 Probable Cause as a Pretext. "In United States v. Robinson, 414 U.S. 218 (1973), we held that a 
traffic-violation arrest (of the sort here) would not be rendered invalid by the fact that it was 'a mere 

pretext for a narcotics search....'"   

 "Petitioners urge as an extraordinary factor in this case that the "multitude of applicable traffic and 

equipment regulations" is so large and so difficult to obey perfectly that virtually everyone is guilty of 

violation, permitting the police to single out almost whomever they wish for a stop. But we are aware of 

no principle that would allow us to decide at what point a code of law becomes so expansive and so 

commonly violated that infraction itself can no longer be the ordinary measure of the lawfulness of 

enforcement."   Standard Law Enforcement Practices. "They [Whren and Brown] insist that the 

standard they have put forward — whether the officer's conduct deviated materially from usual police 

practices, so that a reasonable officer in the same circumstances would not have made the stop for the 

reasons given — is an 'objective' one."  

 "Petitioners argue that our cases support insistence upon police adherence to standard practices as an 

objective means of rooting out pretext. They cite no holding to that effect, and dicta in only two cases."   

 Stopping Officers' Motivations are Irrelevant. "Subjective intent . . . alone does not make 

otherwise lawful conduct illegal or unconstitutional." (citing Scott v. United States, 436 U.S. 128 (1978)  



 

Page 7  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

 "We think these cases [United States v. Villamonte-Marquez, 462 U.S. 579, 584, n. 3 (1983); United 

States v. Robinson, 414 U.S. 218 (1973); and Scott v. United States, 436 U.S. 128, 138 (1978)] foreclose 

any argument that the constitutional reasonableness of traffic stops depends on the actual motivations 

of the individual officers involved."  

 Plainclothes Officers and Unmarked Vehicles are Lawful Deceptions. "The making of a 

traffic stop out of uniform does not remotely qualify as such an extreme practice, and so is governed by 
the usual rule that probable cause to believe the law has been broken 'outbalances' private interest in 
avoiding police contact."  

 Summary of Takeaway Rulings. "As a general matter, the decision to stop an automobile is 

reasonable where the police have probable cause to believe that a traffic violation has occurred."  
 "The temporary detention of a motorist upon probable cause to believe that he has violated the traffic 

laws does not violate the Fourth Amendment's prohibition against unreasonable seizures, even if a 

reasonable officer would not have stopped the motorist absent some additional law enforcement 

objective." (slip opinion)   

 Implications for Law Enforcement. Whren established an important precedent: a law 

enforcement officer's subjective reason for conducting a stop doesn't invalidate the objectively 
justifiable behavior of conducting a seizure, if it's based on probable cause.  If an officer sees someone 

they suspect of more serious crimes commit a traffic offense, that violation is a valid legal basis for 
conducting a stop – regardless of other evidence they may hope to discover.  

 Officers should demonstrate clear justification for all stops they conduct. Furthermore, in incident 

reports, they should emphasize the documented traffic violation as the primary cause for the stop.  

  

    

Stops Based on Race: United States v. Brignoni-Ponce  
 A potential danger of the Whren decision is that law enforcement officers may misconstrue it to mean 

what Whren himself suggested it meant: "the 'multitude of applicable traffic and equipment regulations' 

is so large and so difficult to obey perfectly that virtually everyone is guilty of violation, permitting the 

police to single out almost whomever they wish for a stop." (Whren v. United States, 517 U.S. 806 

(1996))  

 That conclusion was not correct, as demonstrated by cases like United States v. Brignoni-Ponce.  

 Facts of the Case. Two California Border Patrol agents were monitoring northbound traffic near 

the Mexico border one night. They decided to stop a vehicle only because "its three occupants appeared 
to be of Mexican descent." The agents didn't justify the stop by citing a specific crime or traffic violation. 

Instead, they believed that people who "appeared to be of Mexican descent," driving north on a dark 
South California roadway, could be undocumented immigrants.  

 As it happens, the agents were right. Upon questioning driver Brignoni-Ponce and his two passengers, 

the agents learned that the passengers had illegally entered the country. Accordingly, the agents 

arrested all three.   

 At his trial for transporting illegal immigrants, Brignoni-Ponce moved to suppress all incriminating 

statements, claiming they were discovered during an unconstitutional seizure. The trial court denied 

the motion, convicting Brignoni-Ponce, who then appealed.  The appeals court held that Brignoni-



 

Page 8  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

Ponce's motion to suppress should have been granted. It cited recent Supreme Court precedent that 

"unless the officers have a 'founded suspicion' that the occupants are aliens illegally in the country," 

the Fourth Amendment forbade them from stopping the vehicle. Contrary to the government's 

position, the appeals court disagreed that Mexican ancestry alone supported such a "founded 

suspicion." The government then appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court. (United States v. Brignoni- 

Ponce, 422 U.S. 873 (1975), the source of all subsequent quotes in this section unless cited otherwise)   

 The Question Before the Court. "Section 287(a)(3) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. § 1357 (a)(3), authorizes 
agents, without a warrant, 'Within a reasonable distance from any external boundary of the United 

States, to board and search for aliens any vessel within the territorial waters of the United States and 
any railway car, aircraft, conveyance, or vehicle....'  

 Under current regulations, this authority may be exercised anywhere within 100 miles of the border. 8 

C.F.R. § 287.1 (a) (1975). The Border Patrol interprets the statute as granting authority to stop moving 

vehicles and question the occupants about their citizenship, even when its officers have no reason to 

believe that the occupants are aliens or that other aliens may be concealed in the vehicle. But 'no Act of 

Congress can authorize a violation of the Constitution.' [Almeida-Sanchez v. United States, 413 U.S. 266  

(1973)]. and we must decide whether the Fourth Amendment allows such random vehicle stops in the 

border areas."  

 "The only issue presented for decision is whether a roving patrol may stop a vehicle in an area near the 

border and question its occupants when the only ground for suspicion is that the occupants appear to 

be of Mexican ancestry."  

 Takeaway Rulings. Brignoni-Ponce is cited to this day for its landmark holding that race alone 

can't create reasonable suspicion or probable cause to seize an individual. To the benefit of law 

enforcement, the case also clarifies that race may be a factor for reasonable suspicion or probable 
cause, it just can't be the only or primary factor.  

 Race Alone Can't Create Reasonable Suspicion or Probable Cause. "In this case the officers 
relied on a single factor to justify stopping respondent's car: the apparent Mexican ancestry of the 

occupants. We cannot conclude that this furnished reasonable grounds...."  

 "The only formal limitation on that discretion [border patrol agents randomly stopping vehicles to 

prevent illegal entries] appears to be the administrative regulation defining the term "reasonable 

distance" in § 287(a)(3) to mean within 100 air miles from the border. 8 C.F.R. § 287.1 (a) (1975). Thus, if 

we approved the Government's position in this case, Border Patrol officers could stop motorists at 

random for questioning, day or night, anywhere within 100 air miles of the 2,000-mile border, on a city 

street, a busy highway, or a desert road, without any reason to suspect that they have violated any law."  

 Race May be a Factor for Reasonable Suspicion, but Other Facts are also Required. "The 

likelihood that any given person of Mexican ancestry is an alien is high enough to make Mexican 

appearance a relevant factor, but standing alone it does not justify  

stopping all Mexican-Americans to ask if they are aliens."  

 Implications for Law Enforcement. Brignoni-Ponce remains an important precedent for 

protecting citizens' Fourth Amendment right to be free from unreasonable seizures.    

   



 

Page 9  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

Discretionary Spot Checks: Delaware v. Prouse  
  

 This landmark case examines the constitutionality of randomly stopping drivers to ensure they have a 

valid driver's license and vehicle registration. Similar to challenges raised in the Whren case, some civil 

rights advocates argued that this practice gave too much discretion to law enforcement officers, who 

could use it as a pretext to stop whomever they want.  

 Facts of the Case. In November 1976, a law enforcement officer in Delaware was pulling over 
drivers to ensure they possessed a valid vehicle registration and driver's license. Presumably for fairness 
purposes, the selection of vehicles stopped by the officer was entirely random, and not based on 
witnessing a traffic violation or possible criminal activity.  

 One of these stops was of appellant William Prouse and three friends. As the officer approached 

Prouse's vehicle, he smelled marijuana – an illegal, controlled substance at that time. Although the 

license and registration checks came back clean, a clear, plastic bag filled with dried marijuana lay in 

plain view on the vehicle's floor.  

 The officer arrested Prouse, who in court, moved to suppress the marijuana. He claimed its discovery 

came from an unconstitutional stop, not one based on a traffic or equipment violation, or any suspicious 

activity. The trial court granted the suppression motion, ruling the stop and detention "wholly 

capricious," and a violation of Prouse's Fourth Amendment protection against unreasonable seizures.  

 Delaware's Supreme Court agreed, but because that conclusion differed from those in other 

jurisdictions, the U.S. Supreme Court took the case to resolve the conflict. (Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 

648 (1979), the source of all subsequent quotes in this section unless cited otherwise)  

 The Question Before the Court. "The question is whether it is an unreasonable seizure under 
the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to stop an automobile, being driven on a public highway, for 

the purpose of checking the driving license of the operator and the registration of the car, where there 
is neither probable cause to believe nor reasonable suspicion that the car is being driven contrary to the 

laws governing the operation of motor vehicles or that either the car or any of its occupants is subject to 

seizure or detention in connection with the violation of any other applicable law."  

 Random License and Registration Checks are Legally Seizures. "The Fourth and Fourteenth 

Amendments are implicated in  

this case because stopping an automobile and detaining its occupants constitute a 'seizure' within the 
meaning of those  
Amendments, even though the purpose of the stop is limited and the resulting detention quite brief."  

 Discretionary Spot Checks. "[T]he State of Delaware urges that patrol officers be subject to no 

constraints in deciding which automobiles shall be stopped for a license and registration check because 
the State's interest in discretionary spot checks as a means of ensuring the safety of its roadways 
outweighs the resulting intrusion on the privacy and security of the persons detained."   Takeaway 

Rulings. "We hold, therefore, that a random stop of a motorist in the absence of specific articulable 
facts which justify the stop by indicating a reasonable suspicion that a violation of the law has occurred 
is constitutionally impermissible and violative of the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United 
States Constitution." (State v. Prouse, 382 A.2d 1359 (Del. 1978))  "The question remains, however, 
whether in the service of these important ends [safety on public roadways] the discretionary spot check 



 

Page 10  
Illinois Legal Update – March 2024  

Copyright © 2024 by Police Law Institute, Inc.  
No part of this publication may be reproduced without the permission of Police Law Institute, Inc.  

is a sufficiently productive mechanism to justify the intrusion upon Fourth Amendment interests which 

such stops entail. On the record before us, that question must be answered in the negative. Given the 
alternative mechanisms available, both those in use and those that might be adopted, we are 

unconvinced that the incremental contribution to highway safety of the random spot check justifies the 

practice under the Fourth Amendment." (Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648 (1979))  

 Traffic Stops Require Individualized Suspicion of Wrongdoing. "An individual operating or 
traveling in an automobile does not lose all reasonable expectation of privacy simply because the 

automobile and its use are subject to government regulation."  "Accordingly, we hold that except in 
those situations in which there is at least articulable and reasonable suspicion that a motorist is 

unlicensed or that an automobile is not registered, or that either the vehicle or an occupant is 

otherwise subject to seizure for violation of law, stopping an automobile and detaining the driver in 

order to check his driver's license and the registration of the automobile are unreasonable under the 
Fourth Amendment."  

 License and Registration Checks Not Curtailed. "Vehicle stops for traffic violations occur 

countless times each day; and on these occasions, licenses and registration papers are subject to 

inspection and drivers without them will be ascertained....  Absent some empirical data to the contrary, 
it must be assumed that finding an unlicensed driver among those who commit traffic violations is a 
much more likely event than finding an unlicensed driver by choosing randomly from the entire universe 
of drivers."  

 Discretionary Spot Checks Prohibited. "In terms of actually discovering unlicensed drivers or 
deterring them from driving, the spot check does not appear sufficiently productive to qualify as a 

reasonable law enforcement practice under the Fourth Amendment."  "[S]topping an automobile and 

detaining the driver in order to check his driver's license and the registration of the automobile are 

unreasonable under the Fourth Amendment."  

 "The marginal contribution to roadway safety possibly resulting from a system of spot checks cannot 

justify subjecting every occupant of every vehicle on the roads to a seizure ... at the unbridled discretion 

of law enforcement officials."  

 A Roadblock Exception? "This holding does not preclude the State of Delaware or other States 
from developing methods for spot checks that involve less intrusion or that do not involve the 

unconstrained exercise of discretion. Questioning of all oncoming traffic at roadblock-type stops is one 
possible alternative."     



 

Page 11 of 17 
 

Implications for Law Enforcement. The most obvious impact on local law enforcement is Delaware v. 

Prouse's prohibition of discretionary spot checks to ensure motorists possess a valid driver's license and 

vehicle registration. That task can still be conducted, but chiefly incident to a traffic stop based on 

reasonable suspicion. Checking the license and registration of an innocent random driver is a violation of 

the Constitution's Fourth Amendment.  

 Officers enjoy a fair amount of discretion for making decisions in the field. Prouse emphasizes that this 

discretion isn't "unbridled." Legally, officers are almost always reined in by the reasonable suspicion 

requirement for seizures.  

  

Checkpoint Roadblocks: City of Indianapolis v. Edmond   
  

 Delaware v. Prouse proposed roadblocks as a possible legal alternative to prohibited randomized spot 

checks. Some 20 years later, the Supreme Court examined a specific type of roadblock.  

  Facts of the Case. For four months in 1998, Indianapolis operated vehicle checkpoints in an attempt 

to find and seize illegal drugs. Six roadblocks resulted in 104 arrests – a 9 percent "success" rate. Over 

half the arrests were for drugs.  

 The protocol was for roughly 30 law enforcement officers to stop a preset number of vehicles at each 

location. An officer would approach the vehicle, and advise the driver they were being briefly stopped at 

a drug checkpoint. They would then ask the driver to produce their license and registration, conduct an 

open-view exam of the vehicle's exterior, and check the driver for signs of impairment, while a 

narcotics-detection K-9 was walked around the vehicle.  

 Officers were directed to search the vehicle only if given consent, or based on particularized suspicion – 

such as a K-9's alert. Each stop was conducted exactly the same, unless reasonable suspicion dictated an 

individualized response. Absent suspicion or probable cause, most stops were completed within 3 

minutes.  

 The city operated its checkpoints during daylight, and warned drivers with lighted signs reading, 

"'NARCOTICS CHECKPOINT ___ MILE AHEAD, NARCOTICS K-9 IN USE, BE PREPARED TO STOP.'" Once a 

group of vehicles was stopped, other traffic passed by it, until all the stopped cars were processed or 

diverted for further investigation.  

 One checkpoint stopped James Edmond's car, which contained illegal drugs. He and another occupant 

filed a suit on behalf of themselves and a class of all motorists who were stopped or subjected to being 

stopped at a checkpoint. Edmond claimed the roadblocks violated his constitutional rights.  

 Edmond moved for an injunction against the checkpoint program, but a federal court denied that 

motion, ruling the checkpoints to be constitutional. The Seventh Circuit reversed it, holding that the 

checkpoints contravened the Fourth Amendment. The U.S. Supreme Court accepted review of the case. 



 

Page 12 of 17 
 

(City of Indianapolis v. Edmond, 531 U.S. 32 (2000), the source of all subsequent quotes in this section 

unless cited otherwise)  

 The Question Before the Court. "In Michigan Dept. of State Police v. Sitz, 496 U.S. 444 (1990), 
and United States v. MartinezFuerte, 428 U.S. 543 (1976), we held that brief, suspicionless seizures at 
highway checkpoints for the purposes of combating drunk driving and intercepting illegal immigrants 

were constitutional. We now consider the constitutionality of a highway checkpoint program whose 

primary purpose is the discovery and interdiction of illegal narcotics."  

 Exceptions to the Search and Seizure Reasonableness Requirement. "A search or seizure is 
ordinarily unreasonable in the absence of individualized suspicion of wrongdoing. Chandler v. Miller, 
520 U.S. 305, 308 (1997). While such suspicion is not an "irreducible" component of reasonableness, 

Martinez-Fuerte, 428 U.S., at 561, we have recognized only limited circumstances in which the usual rule 
does not apply. For example, we have upheld certain regimes of suspicionless searches where the 

program was designed to serve "special needs, beyond the normal need for law enforcement." See, e.g., 
Vernonia School Dist. 47J v. Acton, 515 U.S. 646 (1995) (random drug testing of student-athletes); 
Treasury Employees v. Von Raab, 489 U.S. 656 (1989) (drug tests for  

United States Customs Service employees seeking transfer or promotion to certain positions); Skinner 

v. Railway Labor Executives' Assn., 489 U.S. 602 (1989) (drug and alcohol tests for railway employees 

involved in train accidents or found to be in violation of particular safety regulations). We have also 

allowed searches for certain administrative purposes without particularized suspicion of misconduct, 

provided that those searches are appropriately limited. See, e.g., New York v. Burger, 482 U.S. 691, 

702-704 (1987) (warrantless administrative inspection of premises of "closely regulated" business); 

Michigan v. Tyler, 436 U.S. 499, 507-509, 511512 (1978) (administrative inspection of fire-damaged 

premises to determine cause of blaze); Camara v. Municipal Court of City and County of San 

Francisco, 387 U.S. 523, 534-539 (1967) (administrative inspection to ensure compliance with city 

housing code).  We have also upheld brief, suspicionless seizures of motorists at a fixed Border Patrol 

checkpoint designed to intercept illegal aliens, Martinez-Fuerte, supra, and at a sobriety checkpoint 

aimed at removing drunk drivers from the road, Michigan Dept. of State Police v. Sitz, 496 U.S. 444 

(1990). In addition, in Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648, 663 (1979), we suggested that a similar type of 

roadblock with the purpose of verifying drivers' licenses and vehicle registrations would be permissible. 

In none of these cases, however, did we indicate approval of a checkpoint program whose primary 

purpose was to detect evidence of ordinary criminal wrongdoing."  

    

Distinguishing Narcotics Checkpoints from Authorized Exceptions. "[W]hat principally distinguishes 

these checkpoints from those we have previously approved is their primary purpose."  

 "In none of these cases ... did we indicate approval of a checkpoint program whose primary purpose 

was to detect evidence of ordinary criminal wrongdoing."  
 "As petitioners concede, the Indianapolis checkpoint program unquestionably has the primary purpose 

of interdicting illegal narcotics."  

 "We have never approved a checkpoint program whose primary purpose was to detect evidence of 

ordinary criminal wrongdoing. Rather, our checkpoint cases have recognized only limited exceptions to 

the general rule that a seizure must be accompanied by some measure of individualized suspicion."  



 

Page 13 of 17 
 

 Takeaway Ruling. "Because the primary purpose of the Indianapolis narcotics checkpoint 
program is to uncover evidence of ordinary criminal wrongdoing, the program contravenes the Fourth 
Amendment."  

 "We decline to suspend the usual requirement of individualized suspicion where the police seek to 

employ a checkpoint primarily for the ordinary enterprise of investigating crimes. We cannot sanction 

stops justified only by the generalized and ever-present possibility that interrogation and inspection may 

reveal that any given motorist has committed some crime."  

 "We suggested in Prouse that we would not credit the 'general interest in crime control' as justification 

for a regime of suspicionless stops."   

 Implications for Law Enforcement. The main impact Edmond has for local law enforcement is 
the expansion of prohibitions against nonparticularized stops –those conducted for the general purpose 

of combating crime, but not based on reasonable suspicion or probable cause. More specifically, the 

Court prohibited setting up roadblocks for the purpose of checking everyone for illegal narcotics.  

 Analysis: Roadblocks and Pretext. The Indianapolis roadblock protocol had officers check 
drivers for signs of impairment.  

Other than mentioning that fact within the case background, Edmond doesn't address it again, or 

identify that element as objectionable.  One wonders what the Edmond ruling may have been had 

Indianapolis instead established a sobriety checkpoint program – ruled constitutional in Michigan 

Department of State Police v. Sitz – and the protocol instructed officers to ask the driver if they had 

drugs in the vehicle.  

  

Stops Based on Anonymous Tips: Florida v. J. L.  
  

 In their worst form, anonymous tips lead to swatting. In their finest form, they potentially save lives. In 

all forms, anonymous tips require analysis by law enforcement officers to determine which enforcement 

actions are legally permitted, and which would be unconstitutional.  

 Facts of the Case. In 1995, an anonymous caller told Miami-Dade Police that a black juvenile 

male in a plaid shirt was standing at a specific bus stop, and carrying a gun. Dispatched officers arrived 
at the bus stop about six minutes later, and saw three black males “hanging out.” One, 15-year-old J. L., 
was wearing a plaid shirt.  

 Apart from the tip, the officers didn’t have reason to suspect any illegal conduct. Even so, one of the 

officers approached J. L., told him to put his hands up on the bus stop, and frisked him. They found a 

handgun in J. L.'s pocket, and seized it. The second officer frisked the other two present, but didn’t find 

any weapons or contraband.  

 Juvenile J. L. was charged with two gun crimes. In court, he moved to suppress the gun as the fruit of an 

unlawful search. The trial court granted his motion. However, the appeals court reversed that decision, 

and the Supreme Court of Florida struck down the reversal, ruling that the search violated the Fourth 

Amendment, because the anonymous tip wasn't sufficiently reliable.  



 

Page 14 of 17 
 

 Noting that the Florida Supreme Court's decision conflicted with other courts' rulings in similar cases, 

Florida appealed to the U.S.  

Supreme Court. (Florida v. J. L., 529 U.S. 266 (2000), the source of all subsequent quotes in this 

section unless cited otherwise)   The Question Before the Court. "The question presented in this 

case is whether an anonymous tip that a person is carrying a gun is, without more, sufficient to 

justify a police officer's stop and frisk of that person."  

 Anonymous Tips and Reasonable Suspicion. "Anonymous tips, the Florida Supreme Court 
stated, are generally less reliable than tips from known informants and can form the basis for 

reasonable suspicion only if accompanied by specific indicia of reliability...."  

 Predictive Information. "Anonymous tips, the [affirmed] Florida Supreme Court stated, are 
generally less reliable than tips from known informants and can form the basis for reasonable suspicion 

only if accompanied by specific indicia of reliability, for example, the correct forecast of a subject's 'not 

easily predicted' movements." (quoting Alabama v. White, 496 U.S. 325 (1990))  "As we have recognized, 

however, there are situations in which an anonymous tip, suitably corroborated, exhibits 'sufficient 
indicia of reliability to provide reasonable suspicion to make the investigatory stop.'" (quoting Alabama 

v. White, 496 U.S. 325 (1990))  "The anonymous call concerning J. L. provided no predictive information 
and therefore left the police without means to test the informant's knowledge or credibility."     

Takeaway Rulings. "[W]e hold that an anonymous tip lacking indicia of reliability of the kind 
contemplated in Adams [v. Williams] and [Alabama v.] White does not justify a stop and frisk 
whenever and however it alleges the illegal possession of a firearm."  
 "The reasonableness of official suspicion must be measured by what the officers knew before they 

conducted their search. All the police had to go on in this case was the bare report of an unknown, 

unaccountable informant who neither explained how he knew about the gun nor supplied any basis for 

believing he had inside information about J. L."  

 Implications for Law Enforcement: The Firearms Factor. "A second major argument 

advanced by Florida and the United  

States ... is, in essence, that the standard Terry analysis should be modified to license a "firearm 

exception." Under such an exception, a tip alleging an illegal gun would justify a stop and frisk even if 

the accusation would fail standard pre-search reliability testing. We decline to adopt this position....  

 Such an exception would enable any person seeking to harass another to set in motion an intrusive, 

embarrassing police search of the targeted person simply by placing an anonymous call falsely reporting 

the target's unlawful carriage of a gun. Nor could one securely confine such an exception to allegations 

involving firearms."  

  

Retaliatory Seizures: Nieves v. Bartlett   
 A clearly unlawful class of pretextual stops is one conducted in retaliation against someone a law 

enforcement officer dislikes.   Facts of the Case. Russell Bartlett brought a civil action for deprivation 

of rights against two Alaska law enforcement officers, Nieves and Weight. They had arrested Bartlett for 

disorderly conduct and resisting arrest at Arctic Man, a winter festival in Alaska.  Bartlett alleged that the 



 

Page 15 of 17 
 

officers arrested him in retaliation for his challenging their efforts to question a teen about underage 

drinking, and his refusal to speak with Nieves during an earlier encounter.  

 To demonstrate the officers' ill will, Bartlett claimed that during his takedown attendant to arrest, 

Nieves told him, "Bet you wish you would have talked to me now." However, Bartlett didn’t suffer any 

injuries during the encounter, and the agency released him a few hours later.  

 After a lower court found in favor of the officers, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed that 

decision, holding that the officers' probable cause to make the arrest did not automatically defeat the 

plaintiff's retaliatory arrest claim. The officers, in turn, appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court. (Nieves v. 

Bartlett, 139 S. Ct. 1715 (2019), the source of all subsequent quotes in this section unless cited 

otherwise)  

 The Question Before the Court. "We are asked to resolve whether probable cause to make an 
arrest defeats a claim that the arrest was in retaliation for speech protected by the First Amendment."  

 Prohibited Retaliation. "'[A]s a general matter the First Amendment prohibits government 

officials from subjecting an individual to retaliatory actions' for engaging in protected speech.... If an 
official takes adverse action against someone based on that forbidden motive, and 'non-retaliatory 

grounds are in fact insufficient to provoke the adverse consequences,' the injured person may generally 

seek relief by bringing a First Amendment claim." (citing Hartman v. Moore, 547 U.S. 250 (2006))  

 Section 1983 Claims: Civil Actions for Deprivation of Rights. "Every person who, under color 
of any statute, ordinance, regulation, custom, or usage, of any State or Territory or the District of 
Columbia, subjects, or causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within 

the jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the 
Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law...." (42 U.S.C. § 1983)  

 Protected Rights. "[Bartlett] claimed that the officers violated his First Amendment rights by 

arresting him in retaliation for his speech. The protected speech, according to Bartlett, was his refusal to 
speak with Nieves earlier in the evening and his intervention in Weight's discussion with the underage 
partygoer."  

 Elements Required to Prevail in Rights Deprivation Claims. "To prevail on such a claim, a 

plaintiff must establish a 'causal connection' between the government defendant's 'retaliatory animus' 

and the plaintiff's 'subsequent injury.' Hartman, 547 U.S. at 259, 126 S. Ct. 1695. It is not enough to 

show that an official acted with a retaliatory motive and that the plaintiff was injured—the motive must 
cause the injury. Specifically, it must be a "but-for" cause, meaning that the adverse action against the 

plaintiff would not have been taken absent the retaliatory motive."  

 "But-For" Causation. When applied in Nieves, the but-for test requires that but for Bartlett's 
specific speech activities, his arrest would have never occurred. For that theory to hold, Bartlett had to 
prove that but for his protected speech, he would not have been arrested. Unfortunately for him:  
 "The officers testified that they perceived Bartlett to be a threat based on a combination of the content 

and tone of his speech, his combative posture, and his apparent intoxication."  

 Probable Cause. "The presence of probable cause should generally defeat a First Amendment 

retaliatory arrest claim."  

 "Hartman [v. Moore] requires plaintiffs in retaliatory prosecution cases to show more than the 

subjective animus of an officer and a subsequent injury; plaintiffs must also prove as a threshold matter 



 

Page 16 of 17 
 

that the decision to press charges was objectively unreasonable because it was not supported by 

probable cause....  

 Officers Nieves and Weight argue that the same no-probable-cause requirement should apply to First 

Amendment retaliatory arrest claims....  

 As a general matter, we agree."  

The Rare Enforcement Exception. "Although probable cause should generally defeat a retaliatory 

arrest claim, a narrow qualification is warranted for circumstances where officers have probable cause 

to make arrests, but typically exercise their discretion not to do so. In such cases, an unyielding 

requirement to show the absence of probable cause could pose 'a risk that some police officers may 

exploit the arrest power as a means of suppressing speech.'"   

 The Similarly-Situated Individuals Exception. "[T]he no-probable-cause requirement should 
not apply when a plaintiff presents objective evidence that he was arrested when otherwise similarly 
situated individuals not engaged in the same sort of protected speech had not been."  

 Absence of Probable Cause. "[I]f the plaintiff establishes the absence of probable cause, 'then 
the Mt. Healthy test governs: The plaintiff must show that the retaliation was a substantial or motivating 

factor behind the [arrest], and, if that showing is made, the defendant can prevail only by showing that 
the [arrest] would have been initiated without respect to retaliation.' (citing Lozman v. City of Riviera 

Beach, 138 S. Ct. 1945 (2018))  

 The Reasonableness Standard. "[E]venhanded law enforcement is best achieved by the 
application of objective standards of conduct, rather than standards that depend upon the subjective 
state of mind of the officer.” (Horton v. California, 496 U.S. 128  

(1990))   

 "To ensure that officers may go about their work without undue apprehension of being sued, we 

generally review their conduct under objective standards of reasonableness."  

 Assessment of Retaliatory Intent. "Thus, when reviewing an arrest, we ask 'whether the 
circumstances, viewed objectively, justify [the challenged] action,' and if so, conclude 'that action was 

reasonable whatever the subjective intent motivating the relevant officials.'" (citing Ashcroft v. Al-Kidd, 
563 U.S. 731 (2011))  

 Takeaway Ruling. "Because there was probable cause to arrest Bartlett, his retaliatory arrest 

claim fails as a matter of law."   Implications for Law Enforcement. So long as a law enforcement 
officer has lawful justification (in the form of probable cause) to stop and seize someone, a disgruntled 
arrestee will rarely recover damages for a retaliatory arrest.  

 Still, the exceptions are worth noting – particularly the one regarding similarly situated people. Even if 

officers strongly dislike someone, they can't stop "the loudmouth jerk" for something which they 

wouldn't stop and arrest others.  

  



 

Page 17 of 17 
 

Illinois Statutory Law  
More so than most states, Illinois has enacted several statutory provisions designed to reduce pretextual 

stops.   

 "A law enforcement agency or law enforcement official shall not detain or continue to detain any 

individual solely on the basis of any immigration detainer or civil immigration warrant or otherwise 

comply with an immigration detainer or civil immigration warrant." (5 ILCS 805/15(a))  

 "No person shall drive a motor vehicle with any objects placed or suspended between the driver and the 

front windshield which materially obstruct the driver's view. No motor vehicle, or driver or passenger of 

such vehicle, shall be stopped or searched by any law enforcement officer solely on the basis of a 

violation or suspected violation of this subsection." (625 ILCS 5/12-503 (c-5))  "No law enforcement 

officer shall stop a vehicle solely for the purpose of verifying the existence of a valid insurance policy." 

(625  

ILCS 5/7-608)   

 "[A] person may not operate or be in actual physical control of a motor vehicle while the motor vehicle 

is equipped with any instrument designed to interfere with microwaves or lasers at frequencies used by 

police radar for the purpose of monitoring vehicular speed....  
  A law enforcement officer may not stop or search any motor vehicle or the driver of any motor vehicle 

solely on the basis of a violation or suspected violation of this Section." (625 ILCS 5/12-613(a)(e))  

 "A person shall not smoke in a motor vehicle, whether it is in motion or at rest, if a person under 18 

years of age is in the vehicle, regardless of whether the vehicle's windows are open....  
  A police officer may not stop or detain a motor vehicle or its driver nor inspect or search the vehicle, 
the contents of the vehicle, or the operator or passenger of the vehicle solely for a violation or 
suspected violation of this Section." (625 ILCS 5/11-1432(b)(c))   Recommendation: Make 

Enforcement Decisions Based on State Law. State and federal laws often conflict. As well, state and 
federal courts can also disagree. When this happens, the federal courts control in determining the 
constitutionality of officers’ actions – especially the U.S. Supreme Court.:  

 "As a general matter, the decision to stop an automobile is reasonable where the police have probable 
cause to believe that a traffic violation has occurred." (Whren v. United States, 517 U.S. 806 (1996))  

The state law that may prohibit stopping a driver for turning right without signaling, federal case law 
deems lawful. If a case about such a conflict makes it to the U.S. Supreme Court, chances are decent 
that the contested traffic stop would be deemed lawful.  But what are the odds of such a case being 
heard at the U.S. Supreme Court? And even if it was, and the stopping officer "wins," is it really worth 
the exorbitant time and expense commitment?  

There are dozens of traffic violations for which officers can stops drivers, given probable cause. An 
opportunity to use one of these for a pretextual look-in is almost certain to present itself. So, the word 
to the wise is to follow the rules Illinois has enacted, or an agency's own published policy.   

 

Park police attended a class in De-Escalation and Smart Policeing for Changing Times. 

Park police have also hired 2 part time officers and 1 part time Community Service 

Officer. 

# # # 





































                                                      

Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood 
 

1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014      815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 

     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 

 

FOIA Requests 
Name Shamus Quinn 

Address 

6170 Joliet Road Suite 200 

Countryside, IL 60532 

United States 

Email squinn@iiiffc.org 

Daytime Phone Number 8157214084 

Phone (815) 721-4084 

Description of Request 

To Whom it May Concern: 

 

Pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 

et. Seq.), the Indiana, Illinois, Iowa Foundation for Fair 

Contracting (III FFC) respectfully requests the following 

information regarding Spoerl Park Playground Surfacing, bid out 

2/14/24:  

 

1. Please provide the bid tabulations and engineer’s estimates. 

2. Please advise if the projects have been awarded, to whom 

they’ve been awarded, the notice to proceed, estimated 

substantial completion date, and estimated final completion date. 

3. Please provide a list of sub-contractors if applicable. 

4. Please provide a copy of the signed contract between the park 

district and the awarded contractor. 

 

As a not-for-profit organization serving the public interest, we 

respectfully request the waiver of any fees for copying the 

requested records. If there are any fees, please bill our office and 

provide us with your public agency’s statutory compliant schedule 

of allowed fees. Once received, we will remit payment for the 

requested material. Please send the requested documents to the 

e-mail address, when possible, listed on this request. If any 

portion of this request is denied, please cite the specific 

exemption(s) that allows the denial. If the public agency has an 

appeal procedure, please provide the name, title and address of 

the person to whom the appeal should be sent.  

We appreciate your handling this request as soon as possible and 

we look forward to hearing from you within the limits allotted by 

the law. This information is not for use for commercial or 

solicitation purposes. 

mailto:squinn@iiiffc.org


                                                      

Serving the Residents of Crystal Lake and Lakewood 
 

1 E. CRYSTAL LAKE AVE     CRYSTAL LAKE IL 60014      815.459.0680     CRYSTALLAKEPARKS.ORG 

 

     E X P L O R E     |     P L A Y    |    E X P E R I E N C E 

 

Respectfully yours, 

Email squinn@iiiffc.org 

 

Name Gregorio Veluz 

Address 

1737 H St NW  

Washington, DC 20006 

United States 

Email gregorio@dailycaller.com  

Daytime Phone Number 2025062027 

Description of Request 

Requesting the FULL Body camera footage of the arrest of Ellie G. 

Masukevich of Fox River Grove on 12/06/22 

 

She was was charged with five counts of aggravated battery to a 

police officer, two counts of driving under the influence, resisting a 

peace officer and possession of liquor by a minor. 

 

New Article Link: 

https://www.lakemchenryscanner.com/2022/12/12/woman-

charged-with-battering-5-police-officers-resisting-arrest-during-

traffic-stop-in-crystal-lake/ 

Email gregorio@dailycaller.com  

                                                                   

mailto:squinn@iiiffc.org
mailto:gregorio@dailycaller.com
https://www.lakemchenryscanner.com/2022/12/12/woman-charged-with-battering-5-police-officers-resisting-arrest-during-traffic-stop-in-crystal-lake/
https://www.lakemchenryscanner.com/2022/12/12/woman-charged-with-battering-5-police-officers-resisting-arrest-during-traffic-stop-in-crystal-lake/
https://www.lakemchenryscanner.com/2022/12/12/woman-charged-with-battering-5-police-officers-resisting-arrest-during-traffic-stop-in-crystal-lake/
mailto:gregorio@dailycaller.com












































































4/12/2024 4:20:06 PM Page 1 of 1

Fund Balance Report
Crystal Lake Park District, IL As Of 03/31/2024

Fund Beginning Balance Total Revenues Total Expenses Ending Balance

01 - CORPORATE 6,171,348.88 4,587,159.28 5,303,027.78 5,455,480.38

02 - RECREATION 2,554,210.30 4,814,740.59 5,070,381.54 2,298,569.35

03 - IMRF 247,767.50 300,614.52 331,081.34 217,300.68

04 - LIABILITY 121,979.75 149,688.40 120,930.76 150,737.39

05 - BOND & INTEREST 270,825.25 2,442,305.84 2,562,694.81 150,436.28

06 - AUDIT 10,490.45 25,239.07 20,850.00 14,879.52

07 - SPECIAL RECREATION 388,879.37 708,863.41 491,699.69 606,043.09

08 - NATURAL HISTORY 191,612.08 357,746.01 310,363.92 238,994.17

09 - POLICE 324.50 0.00 0.00 324.50

10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS 0.00 125.00 52.59 72.41

11 - AQUATIC -2,453,873.41 294,770.79 360,980.53 -2,520,083.15

12 - FOOD SERVICE 429,971.87 151,877.93 145,861.53 435,988.27

15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 164,948.04 7,816.52 141,067.82 31,696.74

16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS 5,017,707.08 3,402,592.89 2,555,202.13 5,865,097.84

17 - PARK PLACE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 - DRIVING RANGE 122,931.42 227,234.56 136,517.06 213,648.92

20 - RACKET CLUB 452,913.10 1,336,780.32 1,330,289.37 459,404.05

13,692,036.18 18,807,555.13 18,881,000.87 13,618,590.44Report Total:



4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 1 of 8

All Funds Income Statement
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Fund: 01 - CORPORATE

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

12,697.04 4,003,783.60 -89,548.603,914,235.00 3,914,235.00410 - TAXES

31,564.18 318,241.75 -137,066.75181,175.00 181,175.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

44,261.22 4,322,025.35 -226,615.354,095,410.00 4,095,410.00Revenue Total:

Expense

100,282.13 831,529.48 164,189.52995,719.00 995,719.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

23,408.71 294,390.00 75,873.50370,263.50 370,263.50520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

2,385.86 37,183.49 29,516.5166,700.00 66,700.00530 - COMMODITIES

11,936.72 192,707.67 195,043.33387,751.00 387,751.00540 - INSURANCE

7,952.73 1,776,099.82 12,377.181,788,477.00 1,788,477.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

0.00 142,800.00 0.00142,800.00 142,800.00590 - BOND & DEBT SERVICES

145,966.15 3,274,710.46 477,000.043,751,710.50 3,751,710.50Expense Total:

-101,704.93 1,047,314.89 -703,615.39343,699.50 343,699.50Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 12 - PARK MAINTENANCE

Revenue

2,460.00 84,232.00 908.0085,140.00 85,140.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

2,460.00 84,232.00 908.0085,140.00 85,140.00Revenue Total:

Expense

87,590.43 787,714.23 179,657.77967,372.00 967,372.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

48,414.88 466,913.03 364,026.97830,940.00 830,940.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

33,977.08 224,344.26 71,405.74295,750.00 295,750.00530 - COMMODITIES

13,253.21 209,363.82 368,186.18577,550.00 577,550.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

2,901.48 96,135.35 132,016.65228,152.00 228,152.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

186,137.08 1,784,470.69 1,115,293.312,899,764.00 2,899,764.00Expense Total:

-183,677.08 -1,700,238.69 -1,114,385.31-2,814,624.00 -2,814,624.00Center: 12 - PARK MAINTENANCE Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 13 - PARK DEVELOPMENT

Revenue

0.00 0.00 600,000.00600,000.00 600,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

0.00 0.00 600,000.00600,000.00 600,000.00Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 8,366.39 391,633.61400,000.00 400,000.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

0.00 8,366.39 391,633.61400,000.00 400,000.00Expense Total:

0.00 -8,366.39 208,366.39200,000.00 200,000.00Center: 13 - PARK DEVELOPMENT Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 14 - POLICE

Revenue

0.00 0.00 26,000.0026,000.00 26,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

0.00 0.00 26,000.0026,000.00 26,000.00Revenue Total:

Expense

10,432.89 104,612.62 54,181.38158,794.00 158,794.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

283.20 21,334.15 12,465.8533,800.00 33,800.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

65.66 537.40 2,462.603,000.00 3,000.00530 - COMMODITIES

1,239.05 11,042.30 10,957.7022,000.00 22,000.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

0.00 0.00 1,700.001,700.00 1,700.00560 - MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

128.02 11,561.67 43,438.3355,000.00 55,000.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

12,148.82 149,088.14 125,205.86274,294.00 274,294.00Expense Total:

-12,148.82 -149,088.14 -99,205.86-248,294.00 -248,294.00Center: 14 - POLICE Surplus (Deficit):



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 2 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Center: 23 - FACILITY RENTAL OPERATIONS

Revenue

8,896.00 178,689.90 59,056.10237,746.00 237,746.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

0.00 2,212.03 1,624.973,837.00 3,837.00490 - MERCHANDISE

8,896.00 180,901.93 60,681.07241,583.00 241,583.00Revenue Total:

Expense

6,966.04 52,778.32 31,378.6884,157.00 84,157.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 11,174.29 2,535.7113,710.00 13,710.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

217.77 15,678.84 16,408.1632,087.00 32,087.00530 - COMMODITIES

666.79 6,760.65 1,739.358,500.00 8,500.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

7,850.60 86,392.10 52,061.90138,454.00 138,454.00Expense Total:

1,045.40 94,509.83 8,619.17103,129.00 103,129.00Center: 23 - FACILITY RENTAL OPERATIONS Surplus (Deficit):

-296,485.43 -715,868.50 -1,700,221.00-2,416,089.50 -2,416,089.50Fund: 01 - CORPORATE Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 02 - RECREATION

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 1,907,066.07 -33,499.071,873,567.00 1,873,567.00410 - TAXES

11,384.80 123,728.52 -101,728.5222,000.00 22,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

11,384.80 2,030,794.59 -135,227.591,895,567.00 1,895,567.00Revenue Total:

Expense

141,385.38 1,179,049.83 287,762.171,466,812.00 1,466,812.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

32,971.10 339,754.81 43,188.69382,943.50 382,943.50520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

10,673.97 140,964.06 83,865.94224,830.00 224,830.00530 - COMMODITIES

14,904.24 235,521.50 350,951.50586,473.00 586,473.00540 - INSURANCE

3,439.31 871,662.58 20,762.42892,425.00 892,425.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

203,374.00 2,766,952.78 786,530.723,553,483.50 3,553,483.50Expense Total:

-191,989.20 -736,158.19 -921,758.31-1,657,916.50 -1,657,916.50Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 14 - POLICE

Expense

10,432.89 104,612.62 52,181.38156,794.00 156,794.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 0.00 1,000.001,000.00 1,000.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

10,432.89 104,612.62 53,181.38157,794.00 157,794.00Expense Total:

10,432.89 104,612.62 53,181.38157,794.00 157,794.00Center: 14 - POLICE Total:

Center: 62 - ADULT RECREATION

Revenue

5,784.02 75,569.65 15,487.8591,057.50 91,057.50430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

5,784.02 75,569.65 15,487.8591,057.50 91,057.50Revenue Total:

Expense

7,498.98 47,025.64 9,211.3656,237.00 56,237.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

212.87 1,391.67 1,152.332,544.00 2,544.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

62.99 3,384.19 2,255.815,640.00 5,640.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

7,774.84 51,801.50 12,619.5064,421.00 64,421.00Expense Total:

-1,990.82 23,768.15 2,868.3526,636.50 26,636.50Center: 62 - ADULT RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 63 - YOUTH RECREATION

Revenue

185,687.45 2,277,936.56 180,343.442,458,280.00 2,458,280.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

185,687.45 2,277,936.56 180,343.442,458,280.00 2,458,280.00Revenue Total:

Expense

108,005.71 1,113,236.13 36,025.871,149,262.00 1,149,262.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

36,072.79 446,967.43 76,702.07523,669.50 523,669.50502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

5,075.85 77,833.13 3,172.8781,006.00 81,006.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

149,154.35 1,638,036.69 115,900.811,753,937.50 1,753,937.50Expense Total:

36,533.10 639,899.87 64,442.63704,342.50 704,342.50Center: 63 - YOUTH RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 3 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Center: 64 - PROGRAMS FOR ALL AGES

Revenue

18,814.52 144,196.19 50,777.81194,974.00 194,974.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

18,814.52 144,196.19 50,777.81194,974.00 194,974.00Revenue Total:

Expense

2,723.25 30,563.63 27,394.3757,958.00 57,958.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

637.00 16,186.65 7,092.8523,279.50 23,279.50502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

953.30 19,360.17 13,939.8333,300.00 33,300.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

4,313.55 66,110.45 48,427.05114,537.50 114,537.50Expense Total:

14,500.97 78,085.74 2,350.7680,436.50 80,436.50Center: 64 - PROGRAMS FOR ALL AGES Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 65 - SENIOR CITIZENS

Revenue

8,103.21 52,327.12 -18,587.1233,740.00 33,740.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

8,103.21 52,327.12 -18,587.1233,740.00 33,740.00Revenue Total:

Expense

2,653.44 18,542.34 3,246.6621,789.00 21,789.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

1,112.55 32,662.36 -13,632.3619,030.00 19,030.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

213.98 6,092.40 -2,347.403,745.00 3,745.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

3,979.97 57,297.10 -12,733.1044,564.00 44,564.00Expense Total:

4,123.24 -4,969.98 -5,854.02-10,824.00 -10,824.00Center: 65 - SENIOR CITIZENS Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 66 - SPECIAL EVENTS

Revenue

510.00 20,690.22 25,159.7845,850.00 45,850.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

510.00 20,690.22 25,159.7845,850.00 45,850.00Revenue Total:

Expense

770.38 1,002.88 1,756.122,759.00 2,759.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 11,799.10 1,900.9013,700.00 13,700.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

3,653.64 37,598.28 6,331.7243,930.00 43,930.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

4,424.02 50,400.26 9,988.7460,389.00 60,389.00Expense Total:

-3,914.02 -29,710.04 15,171.04-14,539.00 -14,539.00Center: 66 - SPECIAL EVENTS Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 68 - LIPPOLD PARK COMPLEX

Revenue

1,143.86 131,916.76 17,968.24149,885.00 149,885.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

3,117.50 81,309.50 33,990.50115,300.00 115,300.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

4,261.36 213,226.26 51,958.74265,185.00 265,185.00Revenue Total:

Expense

1,361.47 54,458.01 2,831.9957,290.00 57,290.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 1,407.00 21.001,428.00 1,428.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

822.00 27,941.15 9,435.8537,377.00 37,377.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

16,967.76 174,485.25 26,272.75200,758.00 200,758.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

2,773.94 16,156.92 12,743.0828,900.00 28,900.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

269.07 11,027.34 -4,877.346,150.00 6,150.00530 - COMMODITIES

321.02 49,694.47 26,665.5376,360.00 76,360.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

22,515.26 335,170.14 73,092.86408,263.00 408,263.00Expense Total:

-18,253.90 -121,943.88 -21,134.12-143,078.00 -143,078.00Center: 68 - LIPPOLD PARK COMPLEX Surplus (Deficit):

-171,423.52 -255,640.95 -917,095.05-1,172,736.00 -1,172,736.00Fund: 02 - RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 03 - IMRF

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 286,133.60 -3,644.60282,489.00 282,489.00410 - TAXES

1,335.46 14,480.92 -12,480.922,000.00 2,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

1,335.46 300,614.52 -16,125.52284,489.00 284,489.00Revenue Total:



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 4 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Expense

39,611.35 331,081.34 60,355.66391,437.00 391,437.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

39,611.35 331,081.34 60,355.66391,437.00 391,437.00Expense Total:

-38,275.89 -30,466.82 -76,481.18-106,948.00 -106,948.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-38,275.89 -30,466.82 -76,481.18-106,948.00 -106,948.00Fund: 03 - IMRF Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 04 - LIABILITY

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 139,313.75 -1,766.75137,547.00 137,547.00410 - TAXES

844.45 10,374.65 -7,124.653,250.00 3,250.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

844.45 149,688.40 -8,891.40140,797.00 140,797.00Revenue Total:

Expense

4,762.50 5,556.25 38,221.7543,778.00 43,778.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

140.00 2,795.00 6,205.009,000.00 9,000.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

0.00 0.00 1,000.001,000.00 1,000.00530 - COMMODITIES

0.00 112,579.51 60,115.49172,695.00 172,695.00540 - INSURANCE

4,902.50 120,930.76 105,542.24226,473.00 226,473.00Expense Total:

-4,058.05 28,757.64 -114,433.64-85,676.00 -85,676.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-4,058.05 28,757.64 -114,433.64-85,676.00 -85,676.00Fund: 04 - LIABILITY Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 05 - BOND & INTEREST

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 1,211,963.12 1,636.881,213,600.00 1,213,600.00410 - TAXES

2,337.06 1,230,342.72 122,403.281,352,746.00 1,352,746.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

2,337.06 2,442,305.84 124,040.162,566,346.00 2,566,346.00Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 284,388.00 0.00284,388.00 284,388.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

0.00 2,278,306.81 551.192,278,858.00 2,278,858.00590 - BOND & DEBT SERVICES

0.00 2,562,694.81 551.192,563,246.00 2,563,246.00Expense Total:

2,337.06 -120,388.97 123,488.973,100.00 3,100.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

2,337.06 -120,388.97 123,488.973,100.00 3,100.00Fund: 05 - BOND & INTEREST Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 06 - AUDIT

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 24,969.83 -219.8324,750.00 24,750.00410 - TAXES

25.48 269.24 -269.240.00 0.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

25.48 25,239.07 -489.0724,750.00 24,750.00Revenue Total:

Expense

250.00 20,850.00 8,880.0029,730.00 29,730.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

250.00 20,850.00 8,880.0029,730.00 29,730.00Expense Total:

-224.52 4,389.07 -9,369.07-4,980.00 -4,980.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-224.52 4,389.07 -9,369.07-4,980.00 -4,980.00Fund: 06 - AUDIT Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 07 - SPECIAL RECREATION

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 700,671.45 -11,689.45688,982.00 688,982.00410 - TAXES

754.29 8,191.96 -6,191.962,000.00 2,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

754.29 708,863.41 -17,881.41690,982.00 690,982.00Revenue Total:

Expense

14,317.80 195,981.69 -25,981.69170,000.00 170,000.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 295,718.00 300,282.00596,000.00 596,000.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 5 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

14,317.80 491,699.69 274,300.31766,000.00 766,000.00Expense Total:

-13,563.51 217,163.72 -292,181.72-75,018.00 -75,018.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-13,563.51 217,163.72 -292,181.72-75,018.00 -75,018.00Fund: 07 - SPECIAL RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 08 - NATURAL HISTORY

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 316,579.29 -4,017.29312,562.00 312,562.00410 - TAXES

2,086.00 28,856.00 6,644.0035,500.00 35,500.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

563.09 8,070.72 -3,070.725,000.00 5,000.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

1,200.00 4,240.00 560.004,800.00 4,800.00490 - MERCHANDISE

3,849.09 357,746.01 115.99357,862.00 357,862.00Revenue Total:

Expense

2,757.89 19,344.29 455.7119,800.00 19,800.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 222.98 477.02700.00 700.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

710.88 6,421.52 -181.526,240.00 6,240.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

23,128.15 200,746.65 34,058.35234,805.00 234,805.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

1,959.04 13,330.91 3,619.0916,950.00 16,950.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

343.76 22,594.61 11,305.3933,900.00 33,900.00530 - COMMODITIES

3,786.04 46,841.62 33,018.3879,860.00 79,860.00540 - INSURANCE

0.00 298.02 451.98750.00 750.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

45.56 563.32 361.68925.00 925.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

32,731.32 310,363.92 83,566.08393,930.00 393,930.00Expense Total:

-28,882.23 47,382.09 -83,450.09-36,068.00 -36,068.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-28,882.23 47,382.09 -83,450.09-36,068.00 -36,068.00Fund: 08 - NATURAL HISTORY Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

125.00 125.00 -125.000.00 0.00420 - USER FEES

125.00 125.00 -125.000.00 0.00Revenue Total:

Expense

52.59 52.59 -52.590.00 0.00530 - COMMODITIES

52.59 52.59 -52.590.00 0.00Expense Total:

72.41 72.41 -72.410.00 0.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

72.41 72.41 -72.410.00 0.00Fund: 10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 11 - AQUATIC

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

3,238.65 46,034.74 11,760.2657,795.00 57,795.00420 - USER FEES

0.00 35,509.25 1,395.7536,905.00 36,905.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

0.00 3,096.30 7,273.7010,370.00 10,370.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

3,238.65 84,640.29 20,429.71105,070.00 105,070.00Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 17,156.12 11,911.8829,068.00 29,068.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 2,173.00 4,902.007,075.00 7,075.00502 - PROGRAM CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

30.50 1,458.19 5,403.816,862.00 6,862.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

6,910.32 65,554.67 17,351.3382,906.00 82,906.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 21,538.91 16,735.0938,274.00 38,274.00530 - COMMODITIES

0.00 236.88 763.121,000.00 1,000.00560 - MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

0.00 628.84 9,311.169,940.00 9,940.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

6,940.82 108,746.61 66,378.39175,125.00 175,125.00Expense Total:

-3,702.17 -24,106.32 -45,948.68-70,055.00 -70,055.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 21 - MAIN BEACH

Revenue

1,710.00 202,597.50 -39,667.50162,930.00 162,930.00420 - USER FEES



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 6 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

0.00 5.00 -5.000.00 0.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

1,710.00 202,602.50 -39,672.50162,930.00 162,930.00Revenue Total:

Expense

15.94 210,022.24 -10,509.74199,512.50 199,512.50510 - SALARIES & WAGES

93.75 4,789.35 -764.354,025.00 4,025.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

0.00 3,940.99 284.014,225.00 4,225.00530 - COMMODITIES

0.00 3,129.47 945.534,075.00 4,075.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

109.69 221,882.05 -10,044.55211,837.50 211,837.50Expense Total:

1,600.31 -19,279.55 -29,627.95-48,907.50 -48,907.50Center: 21 - MAIN BEACH Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 22 - WEST BEACH

Revenue

0.00 7,528.00 -1,578.005,950.00 5,950.00420 - USER FEES

0.00 7,528.00 -1,578.005,950.00 5,950.00Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 29,841.50 -2,091.5027,750.00 27,750.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

13.50 502.37 822.631,325.00 1,325.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

0.00 0.00 1,680.001,680.00 1,680.00530 - COMMODITIES

0.00 8.00 42.0050.00 50.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

13.50 30,351.87 453.1330,805.00 30,805.00Expense Total:

-13.50 -22,823.87 -2,031.13-24,855.00 -24,855.00Center: 22 - WEST BEACH Surplus (Deficit):

-2,115.36 -66,209.74 -77,607.76-143,817.50 -143,817.50Fund: 11 - AQUATIC Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 12 - FOOD SERVICE

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 4,333.93 416.074,750.00 4,750.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

0.00 147,544.00 16,481.00164,025.00 164,025.00490 - MERCHANDISE

0.00 151,877.93 16,897.07168,775.00 168,775.00Revenue Total:

Expense

271.50 47,202.70 -3,086.7044,116.00 44,116.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

52.00 5,933.57 -1,883.574,050.00 4,050.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

572.09 91,393.26 2,951.7494,345.00 94,345.00530 - COMMODITIES

699.75 1,332.00 1,218.002,550.00 2,550.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

1,595.34 145,861.53 -800.53145,061.00 145,061.00Expense Total:

-1,595.34 6,016.40 17,697.6023,714.00 23,714.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-1,595.34 6,016.40 17,697.6023,714.00 23,714.00Fund: 12 - FOOD SERVICE Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

682.49 7,816.52 -7,516.52300.00 300.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

682.49 7,816.52 -7,516.52300.00 300.00Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 141,067.82 14,932.18156,000.00 156,000.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

0.00 141,067.82 14,932.18156,000.00 156,000.00Expense Total:

682.49 -133,251.30 -22,448.70-155,700.00 -155,700.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

682.49 -133,251.30 -22,448.70-155,700.00 -155,700.00Fund: 15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

14,339.82 3,402,592.89 -101,623.893,300,969.00 3,300,969.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

14,339.82 3,402,592.89 -101,623.893,300,969.00 3,300,969.00Revenue Total:

Expense

29,596.01 254,005.71 661,994.29928,000.00 916,000.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

276,226.37 2,301,196.42 2,774,403.585,063,600.00 5,075,600.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 7 of 8

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingSubAccount

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

305,822.38 2,555,202.13 3,436,397.875,991,600.00 5,991,600.00Expense Total:

-291,482.56 847,390.76 -3,538,021.76-2,690,631.00 -2,690,631.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-291,482.56 847,390.76 -3,538,021.76-2,690,631.00 -2,690,631.00Fund: 16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 19 - DRIVING RANGE

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

750.27 218,177.80 -32,199.80185,978.00 185,978.00440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

0.00 9,056.76 -1,921.767,135.00 7,135.00490 - MERCHANDISE

750.27 227,234.56 -34,121.56193,113.00 193,113.00Revenue Total:

Expense

224.65 43,267.87 576.1343,844.00 43,844.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

2,194.22 17,058.31 5,086.6922,145.00 22,145.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

486.92 11,961.01 3,843.9915,805.00 15,805.00530 - COMMODITIES

14,126.43 28,337.17 71,162.8399,500.00 99,500.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

2,192.29 5,544.95 2,705.058,250.00 8,250.00560 - MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

9,389.99 30,347.75 3,937.2534,285.00 34,285.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

28,614.50 136,517.06 87,311.94223,829.00 223,829.00Expense Total:

-27,864.23 90,717.50 -121,433.50-30,716.00 -30,716.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

-27,864.23 90,717.50 -121,433.50-30,716.00 -30,716.00Fund: 19 - DRIVING RANGE Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB

Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION

Revenue

0.00 33,068.50 -1,993.5031,075.00 31,075.00430 - PROGRAM REVENUE

97,036.87 1,243,838.05 -11,342.551,232,495.50 1,232,495.50440 - OPERATIONS INCOME

7,263.85 56,822.24 6,325.7663,148.00 63,148.00480 - PRO SHOP

325.50 3,051.53 8,698.4711,750.00 11,750.00490 - MERCHANDISE

104,626.22 1,336,780.32 1,688.181,338,468.50 1,338,468.50Revenue Total:

Expense

0.00 9,167.01 507.999,675.00 9,675.00501 - PROGRAM SALARIES & WAGES

0.00 229.90 70.10300.00 300.00503 - PROGRAM COMMODITIES

103,843.31 778,254.58 26,105.42804,360.00 804,360.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

12,493.19 115,135.01 28,711.99143,847.00 143,847.00520 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

4,844.46 34,962.21 6,144.7941,107.00 41,107.00530 - COMMODITIES

6,409.69 82,469.36 26,430.64108,900.00 108,900.00540 - INSURANCE

143.52 540.97 459.031,000.00 1,000.00550 - UNCAPITALIZED IMPROVEMENTS

841.48 45,032.32 -1,707.3243,325.00 43,325.00560 - MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

69.68 203,437.52 737.48204,175.00 204,175.00570 - OTHER EXPENSES

6,172.96 43,405.89 -5,173.3938,232.50 38,232.50580 - PRO SHOP

134,818.29 1,312,634.77 82,286.731,394,921.50 1,394,921.50Expense Total:

-30,192.07 24,145.55 -80,598.55-56,453.00 -56,453.00Center: 11 - ADMINISTRATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 14 - POLICE

Expense

1,891.16 17,654.60 11,752.4029,407.00 29,407.00510 - SALARIES & WAGES

1,891.16 17,654.60 11,752.4029,407.00 29,407.00Expense Total:

1,891.16 17,654.60 11,752.4029,407.00 29,407.00Center: 14 - POLICE Total:

-32,083.23 6,490.95 -92,350.95-85,860.00 -85,860.00Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB Surplus (Deficit):

-904,961.91 -73,445.74Total Surplus (Deficit): -6,977,426.00-6,977,426.00



All Funds Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:07:39 PM Page 8 of 8

Fund Summary

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingFund
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

01 - CORPORATE -296,485.43 -715,868.50 -1,700,221.00-2,416,089.50-2,416,089.50

02 - RECREATION -171,423.52 -255,640.95 -917,095.05-1,172,736.00-1,172,736.00

03 - IMRF -38,275.89 -30,466.82 -76,481.18-106,948.00-106,948.00

04 - LIABILITY -4,058.05 28,757.64 -114,433.64-85,676.00-85,676.00

05 - BOND & INTEREST 2,337.06 -120,388.97 123,488.973,100.003,100.00

06 - AUDIT -224.52 4,389.07 -9,369.07-4,980.00-4,980.00

07 - SPECIAL RECREATION -13,563.51 217,163.72 -292,181.72-75,018.00-75,018.00

08 - NATURAL HISTORY -28,882.23 47,382.09 -83,450.09-36,068.00-36,068.00

10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS 72.41 72.41 -72.410.000.00

11 - AQUATIC -2,115.36 -66,209.74 -77,607.76-143,817.50-143,817.50

12 - FOOD SERVICE -1,595.34 6,016.40 17,697.6023,714.0023,714.00

15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT RE… 682.49 -133,251.30 -22,448.70-155,700.00-155,700.00

16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS -291,482.56 847,390.76 -3,538,021.76-2,690,631.00-2,690,631.00

19 - DRIVING RANGE -27,864.23 90,717.50 -121,433.50-30,716.00-30,716.00

20 - RACKET CLUB -32,083.23 6,490.95 -92,350.95-85,860.00-85,860.00

Total Surplus (Deficit): -904,961.91 -73,445.74-6,977,426.00-6,977,426.00



4/12/2024 4:18:18 PM Page 1 of 2

Recreation Programs Income Statement
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingAccount Type

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Fund: 02 - RECREATION

Center: 62 - ADULT RECREATION

5,784.02 75,569.6591,057.50 91,057.50 15,487.85Revenue

7,774.84 51,801.5064,421.00 64,421.00 12,619.50Expense

-1,990.82 23,768.15 2,868.3526,636.50 26,636.50Center: 62 - ADULT RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 63 - YOUTH RECREATION

185,687.45 2,277,936.562,458,280.00 2,458,280.00 180,343.44Revenue

149,154.35 1,638,036.691,753,937.50 1,753,937.50 115,900.81Expense

36,533.10 639,899.87 64,442.63704,342.50 704,342.50Center: 63 - YOUTH RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 64 - PROGRAMS FOR ALL AGES

18,814.52 144,196.19194,974.00 194,974.00 50,777.81Revenue

4,313.55 66,110.45114,537.50 114,537.50 48,427.05Expense

14,500.97 78,085.74 2,350.7680,436.50 80,436.50Center: 64 - PROGRAMS FOR ALL AGES Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 65 - SENIOR CITIZENS

8,103.21 52,327.1233,740.00 33,740.00 -18,587.12Revenue

3,979.97 57,297.1044,564.00 44,564.00 -12,733.10Expense

4,123.24 -4,969.98 -5,854.02-10,824.00 -10,824.00Center: 65 - SENIOR CITIZENS Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 66 - SPECIAL EVENTS

510.00 20,690.2245,850.00 45,850.00 25,159.78Revenue

4,424.02 50,400.2660,389.00 60,389.00 9,988.74Expense

-3,914.02 -29,710.04 15,171.04-14,539.00 -14,539.00Center: 66 - SPECIAL EVENTS Surplus (Deficit):

Center: 68 - LIPPOLD PARK COMPLEX

1,143.86 131,916.76149,885.00 149,885.00 17,968.24Revenue

2,183.47 83,806.1696,095.00 96,095.00 12,288.84Expense

-1,039.61 48,110.60 5,679.4053,790.00 53,790.00Center: 68 - LIPPOLD PARK COMPLEX Surplus (Deficit):

48,212.86 755,184.34 84,658.16839,842.50 839,842.50Fund: 02 - RECREATION Surplus (Deficit):

48,212.86 755,184.34Total Surplus (Deficit): 839,842.50839,842.50



Recreation Programs Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:18:18 PM Page 2 of 2

Fund Summary

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingFund
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

02 - RECREATION 48,212.86 755,184.34 84,658.16839,842.50839,842.50

Total Surplus (Deficit): 48,212.86 755,184.34839,842.50839,842.50



4/12/2024 3:54:45 PM Page 1 of 3

Prior-Year Comparative Income Statement March 2024
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Group Summary

For the Period Ending 03/31/2024

Account Typ…

2023-2024
March Activity

2023-2024
YTD Activity

March Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

YTD Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)
2022-2023

YTD Activity
2022-2023

March Activity Variance % Variance %

Fund: 01 - CORPORATE

Revenue 43,261.06 4,958,523.8155,617.22 12,356.16 4,587,159.28 -371,364.53 -7.49%28.56%

Expense 1,093,421.60 4,817,411.95352,102.65 741,318.95 5,303,027.78 -485,615.83 -10.08%67.80%

-1,050,160.54 141,111.86-296,485.43 753,675.11 -715,868.50 -856,980.36 -607.31%71.77%Fund 01 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 02 - RECREATION

Revenue 226,139.88 4,403,813.26234,545.36 8,405.48 4,814,740.59 410,927.33 9.33%3.72%

Expense 575,103.38 4,125,800.78405,968.88 169,134.50 5,070,381.54 -944,580.76 -22.89%29.41%

-348,963.50 278,012.48-171,423.52 177,539.98 -255,640.95 -533,653.43 -191.95%50.88%Fund 02 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 03 - IMRF

Revenue 1,058.38 392,303.381,335.46 277.08 300,614.52 -91,688.86 -23.37%26.18%

Expense 38,862.99 340,608.9539,611.35 -748.36 331,081.34 9,527.61 2.80%-1.93%

-37,804.61 51,694.43-38,275.89 -471.28 -30,466.82 -82,161.25 -158.94%-1.25%Fund 03 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 04 - LIABILITY

Revenue 657.69 161,677.42844.45 186.76 149,688.40 -11,989.02 -7.42%28.40%

Expense 375.00 127,471.364,902.50 -4,527.50 120,930.76 6,540.60 5.13%-1,207.33%

282.69 34,206.06-4,058.05 -4,340.74 28,757.64 -5,448.42 -15.93%-1,535.51%Fund 04 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 05 - BOND & INTEREST

Revenue 1,862.91 2,282,931.702,337.06 474.15 2,442,305.84 159,374.14 6.98%25.45%

Expense 0.00 2,208,360.500.00 0.00 2,562,694.81 -354,334.31 -16.05%0.00%

1,862.91 74,571.202,337.06 474.15 -120,388.97 -194,960.17 -261.44%25.45%Fund 05 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 06 - AUDIT

Revenue 21.02 25,113.3925.48 4.46 25,239.07 125.68 0.50%21.22%

Expense 0.00 19,950.00250.00 -250.00 20,850.00 -900.00 -4.51%0.00%

21.02 5,163.39-224.52 -245.54 4,389.07 -774.32 -15.00%-1,168.13%Fund 06 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 07 - SPECIAL RECREATION

Revenue 596.93 678,262.12754.29 157.36 708,863.41 30,601.29 4.51%26.36%

Expense 16,805.61 661,754.9514,317.80 2,487.81 491,699.69 170,055.26 25.70%14.80%

-16,208.68 16,507.17-13,563.51 2,645.17 217,163.72 200,656.55 1,215.57%16.32%Fund 07 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 08 - NATURAL HISTORY

Revenue 5,777.32 317,441.153,849.09 -1,928.23 357,746.01 40,304.86 12.70%-33.38%

Expense 34,890.47 285,592.3832,731.32 2,159.15 310,363.92 -24,771.54 -8.67%6.19%

-29,113.15 31,848.77-28,882.23 230.92 47,382.09 15,533.32 48.77%0.79%Fund 08 Surplus (Deficit):



Prior-Year Comparative Income Statement March 2024 For the Period Ending 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 3:54:45 PM Page 2 of 3

Account Typ…

2023-2024
 Activity

2023-2024
YTD Activity

 Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

YTD Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)YTD Activity Activity Variance % Variance %

Fund: 10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS

Revenue 0.00 0.00125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 0.00%0.00%

Expense 0.00 0.0052.59 -52.59 52.59 -52.59 0.00%0.00%

0.00 0.0072.41 72.41 72.41 72.41 0.00%0.00%Fund 10 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 11 - AQUATIC

Revenue 5,839.42 263,079.394,948.65 -890.77 294,770.79 31,691.40 12.05%-15.25%

Expense 15,728.31 382,066.057,064.01 8,664.30 360,980.53 21,085.52 5.52%55.09%

-9,888.89 -118,986.66-2,115.36 7,773.53 -66,209.74 52,776.92 44.36%78.61%Fund 11 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 12 - FOOD SERVICE

Revenue 0.00 158,584.560.00 0.00 151,877.93 -6,706.63 -4.23%0.00%

Expense 3,683.53 141,588.211,595.34 2,088.19 145,861.53 -4,273.32 -3.02%56.69%

-3,683.53 16,996.35-1,595.34 2,088.19 6,016.40 -10,979.95 -64.60%56.69%Fund 12 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

Revenue 626.84 4,080.06682.49 55.65 7,816.52 3,736.46 91.58%8.88%

Expense 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 141,067.82 -141,067.82 0.00%0.00%

626.84 4,080.06682.49 55.65 -133,251.30 -137,331.36 -3,365.92%8.88%Fund 15 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS

Revenue 1,014,285.11 6,563,566.9714,339.82 -999,945.29 3,402,592.89 -3,160,974.08 -48.16%-98.59%

Expense 236,364.30 2,196,654.03305,822.38 -69,458.08 2,555,202.13 -358,548.10 -16.32%-29.39%

777,920.81 4,366,912.94-291,482.56 -1,069,403.37 847,390.76 -3,519,522.18 -80.60%-137.47%Fund 16 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 19 - DRIVING RANGE

Revenue 347.40 166,419.78750.27 402.87 227,234.56 60,814.78 36.54%115.97%

Expense 48,285.01 193,296.2628,614.50 19,670.51 136,517.06 56,779.20 29.37%40.74%

-47,937.61 -26,876.48-27,864.23 20,073.38 90,717.50 117,593.98 437.53%41.87%Fund 19 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB

Revenue 110,930.76 1,231,281.98104,626.22 -6,304.54 1,336,780.32 105,498.34 8.57%-5.68%

Expense 122,800.08 1,002,985.00136,709.45 -13,909.37 1,330,289.37 -327,304.37 -32.63%-11.33%

-11,869.32 228,296.98-32,083.23 -20,213.91 6,490.95 -221,806.03 -97.16%-170.30%Fund 20 Surplus (Deficit):

Total Surplus (Deficit): -774,915.56 5,103,538.55-904,961.91 -130,046.35 -73,445.74 -5,176,984.29 -101.44%-16.78%



Prior-Year Comparative Income Statement March 2024 For the Period Ending 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 3:54:45 PM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

Fund
2023-2024

March Activity
2023-2024

YTD Activity

March Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

YTD Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)
2022-2023

YTD Activity
2022-2023

March Activity Variance % Variance %

01 - CORPORATE -1,050,160.54 141,111.86-296,485.43 753,675.11 -715,868.50 -856,980.36 -607.31%71.77%

02 - RECREATION -348,963.50 278,012.48-171,423.52 177,539.98 -255,640.95 -533,653.43 -191.95%50.88%

03 - IMRF -37,804.61 51,694.43-38,275.89 -471.28 -30,466.82 -82,161.25 -158.94%-1.25%

04 - LIABILITY 282.69 34,206.06-4,058.05 -4,340.74 28,757.64 -5,448.42 -15.93%-1,535.51%

05 - BOND & INTEREST 1,862.91 74,571.202,337.06 474.15 -120,388.97 -194,960.17 -261.44%25.45%

06 - AUDIT 21.02 5,163.39-224.52 -245.54 4,389.07 -774.32 -15.00%-1,168.13%

07 - SPECIAL RECREATION -16,208.68 16,507.17-13,563.51 2,645.17 217,163.72 200,656.55 1,215.57%16.32%

08 - NATURAL HISTORY -29,113.15 31,848.77-28,882.23 230.92 47,382.09 15,533.32 48.77%0.79%

10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS 0.00 0.0072.41 72.41 72.41 72.41 0.00%0.00%

11 - AQUATIC -9,888.89 -118,986.66-2,115.36 7,773.53 -66,209.74 52,776.92 44.36%78.61%

12 - FOOD SERVICE -3,683.53 16,996.35-1,595.34 2,088.19 6,016.40 -10,979.95 -64.60%56.69%

15 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT RE… 626.84 4,080.06682.49 55.65 -133,251.30 -137,331.36 -3,365.92%8.88%

16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS 777,920.81 4,366,912.94-291,482.56 -1,069,403.37 847,390.76 -3,519,522.18 -80.60%-137.47%

19 - DRIVING RANGE -47,937.61 -26,876.48-27,864.23 20,073.38 90,717.50 117,593.98 437.53%41.87%

20 - RACKET CLUB -11,869.32 228,296.98-32,083.23 -20,213.91 6,490.95 -221,806.03 -97.16%-170.30%

Total Surplus (Deficit): -774,915.56 5,103,538.55-904,961.91 -130,046.35 -73,445.74 -5,176,984.29 -101.44%-16.78%



4/12/2024 4:00:22 PM Page 1 of 2

Prior-Year Comparative Revenue Producing Funds March 2024
Crystal Lake Park District, IL Group Summary

For the Period Ending 03/31/2024

Account Typ…

2023-2024
March Activity

2023-2024
YTD Activity

March Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

YTD Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)
2022-2023

YTD Activity
2022-2023

March Activity Variance % Variance %

Fund: 01 - CORPORATE

Revenue 43,261.06 4,958,523.8155,617.22 12,356.16 4,587,159.28 -371,364.53 -7.49%28.56%

Expense 1,093,421.60 4,817,411.95352,102.65 741,318.95 5,303,027.78 -485,615.83 -10.08%67.80%

-1,050,160.54 141,111.86-296,485.43 753,675.11 -715,868.50 -856,980.36 -607.31%71.77%Fund 01 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 02 - RECREATION

Revenue 226,139.88 4,403,813.26234,545.36 8,405.48 4,814,740.59 410,927.33 9.33%3.72%

Expense 575,103.38 4,125,800.78405,968.88 169,134.50 5,070,381.54 -944,580.76 -22.89%29.41%

-348,963.50 278,012.48-171,423.52 177,539.98 -255,640.95 -533,653.43 -191.95%50.88%Fund 02 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 08 - NATURAL HISTORY

Revenue 5,777.32 317,441.153,849.09 -1,928.23 357,746.01 40,304.86 12.70%-33.38%

Expense 34,890.47 285,592.3832,731.32 2,159.15 310,363.92 -24,771.54 -8.67%6.19%

-29,113.15 31,848.77-28,882.23 230.92 47,382.09 15,533.32 48.77%0.79%Fund 08 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS

Revenue 0.00 0.00125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 0.00%0.00%

Expense 0.00 0.0052.59 -52.59 52.59 -52.59 0.00%0.00%

0.00 0.0072.41 72.41 72.41 72.41 0.00%0.00%Fund 10 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 11 - AQUATIC

Revenue 5,839.42 263,079.394,948.65 -890.77 294,770.79 31,691.40 12.05%-15.25%

Expense 15,728.31 382,066.057,064.01 8,664.30 360,980.53 21,085.52 5.52%55.09%

-9,888.89 -118,986.66-2,115.36 7,773.53 -66,209.74 52,776.92 44.36%78.61%Fund 11 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 12 - FOOD SERVICE

Revenue 0.00 158,584.560.00 0.00 151,877.93 -6,706.63 -4.23%0.00%

Expense 3,683.53 141,588.211,595.34 2,088.19 145,861.53 -4,273.32 -3.02%56.69%

-3,683.53 16,996.35-1,595.34 2,088.19 6,016.40 -10,979.95 -64.60%56.69%Fund 12 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 19 - DRIVING RANGE

Revenue 347.40 166,419.78750.27 402.87 227,234.56 60,814.78 36.54%115.97%

Expense 48,285.01 193,296.2628,614.50 19,670.51 136,517.06 56,779.20 29.37%40.74%

-47,937.61 -26,876.48-27,864.23 20,073.38 90,717.50 117,593.98 437.53%41.87%Fund 19 Surplus (Deficit):

Fund: 20 - RACKET CLUB

Revenue 110,930.76 1,231,281.98104,626.22 -6,304.54 1,336,780.32 105,498.34 8.57%-5.68%

Expense 122,800.08 1,002,985.00136,709.45 -13,909.37 1,330,289.37 -327,304.37 -32.63%-11.33%

-11,869.32 228,296.98-32,083.23 -20,213.91 6,490.95 -221,806.03 -97.16%-170.30%Fund 20 Surplus (Deficit):

Total Surplus (Deficit): -1,501,616.54 550,403.30-560,376.93 941,239.61 -887,039.84 -1,437,443.14 -261.16%62.68%



Prior-Year Comparative Revenue Producing Funds March 2024 For the Period Ending 03/31/2024

4/12/2024 4:00:22 PM Page 2 of 2

Fund Summary

Fund
2023-2024

March Activity
2023-2024

YTD Activity

March Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

YTD Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)
2022-2023

YTD Activity
2022-2023

March Activity Variance % Variance %

01 - CORPORATE -1,050,160.54 141,111.86-296,485.43 753,675.11 -715,868.50 -856,980.36 -607.31%71.77%

02 - RECREATION -348,963.50 278,012.48-171,423.52 177,539.98 -255,640.95 -533,653.43 -191.95%50.88%

08 - NATURAL HISTORY -29,113.15 31,848.77-28,882.23 230.92 47,382.09 15,533.32 48.77%0.79%

10 - LAKE USAGE DECALS 0.00 0.0072.41 72.41 72.41 72.41 0.00%0.00%

11 - AQUATIC -9,888.89 -118,986.66-2,115.36 7,773.53 -66,209.74 52,776.92 44.36%78.61%

12 - FOOD SERVICE -3,683.53 16,996.35-1,595.34 2,088.19 6,016.40 -10,979.95 -64.60%56.69%

19 - DRIVING RANGE -47,937.61 -26,876.48-27,864.23 20,073.38 90,717.50 117,593.98 437.53%41.87%

20 - RACKET CLUB -11,869.32 228,296.98-32,083.23 -20,213.91 6,490.95 -221,806.03 -97.16%-170.30%

Total Surplus (Deficit): -1,501,616.54 550,403.30-560,376.93 941,239.61 -887,039.84 -1,437,443.14 -261.16%62.68%


	Binder11111
	04.18.24 Reg Mtg Agenda
	A. Vouchers 03.31.2024
	B. Interim Vouchers 04.01.24
	C. Treasurers Report 03-2024 - with statements
	2024-03 Fifth Third Securities_CE0030172001284550_1.PDF
	Page Identifiers
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13
	14



	D. 03.21.24 Reg Mtg Min
	E. 04.04.28 COW Mtg Min
	F, Ord 23.24.15 Amndt Pk Pol 6.0 Bid Proc
	G. Knights of Columbus Request 03.12.24
	H. Dravet Syndrom Foundation Request 03.20.24

	Binder2222
	A. Ord. 23.24.16 GOB ARS, Series 2024A
	A1. Crystal Lake PD, GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2024A - Board Financing Presentation (4-18-24)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Debt Service Extension Base (DSEB)
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	B. Exec Dir Emply Agrmnt
	C Burke Play Equipment Giveaway
	1. Jason Herbster, Executive Director
	2. Tina Becke, Supt Bus Srvs
	3.  Erik Jakubowski, Supt Pk Srvs
	4.  Amy Olson, Mgr. Pk Plng Devlpmnt
	5.  Kurt Reckamp, Supt Rec Prg Fac Srvs
	6.  Jenny Leech, Mrktg Mgr
	7.  John Longo, Chief of Park Police

	Binder3333
	Correspondence FOIA
	FOIA April 2024
	a-Purchaing Card 02.24
	b-Fund Balance Report 03-2024
	c-Income Statement All Funds Summary 03-2024
	d-Income Statement Rec Programs 03-2024 summary
	e-Prior-Year Comparative Income Statement All Funds 03-2024 summary
	f-Prior-Year Comparative Income Statement Rev Prod 03-2024 summary




